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China Foods Limited (“China Foods” or the “Company” and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), a subsidiary of COFCO Corporation (“COFCQ”) and the
only focused beverage platform of COFCO, is listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 506).

The Company mainly manufactures, distributes, markets and sells the Coca-Cola
series products at 19 provincial-level administrative regions in the PRC through
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“CCBL”"), a 65%-owned joint-venture with The
Coca-Cola Company. CCBL offers eighteen brands of products in nine major types of
beverages which include sparkling drink, juice, milk drink, water, enhanced water,
coffee, ready-to-drink tea, energy drink and plant-based protein drink.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

0
MERE
REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS TOTAL ASSETS A& E
%%E%@%%i%u&l (RMB million) (AREEBET)
(RMB million) (AR¥EEIT) 13186 13,288
‘ ‘ ° g:urrent
17.1% 0.8% © Non-Current
FEED
2017 2018 2017 2018

ADJUSTED EBITDA FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS LIABILITY TO ASSET RATIO

HEREERNLTIEEBITDA EESBER
(RMB million) (AR EET)

4 -3.1ppt
16.8% 7

2017 2018 2017 2018

EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  NET ASSETS PER SHARE (owners of the Parents)

FEREEKER BRBEE @aass0
(RMB million) (AREEET) (RMB/share) (AR /&Fh%)

70.9% t
1 6.6%

2017 2018 2017 2018
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B 7% 2

The following table shows the comparison of the final results for the REBEZ2018F 12 A31 HIEFERFE
year ended 31 December 2018 of the Group as compared with 2017: 2017 FRIEZEMELL T -

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 December 31 December
2018 2017 Changes
BZ2018%F HE20174F
12A31ALEE  12A31ALLEE &
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EER) (AR®EFHERL)
(As reported) (B28H)
Continuing operations: HRCEXE
* Revenue o LA 15,648.1 13,358.0 +17%
* Gross profit margin o BFE 35.4% 35.2% +0.2ppt
¢ Distribution and selling expenses and o 735 S SHE A RITIR
administrative expenses margin F L E 31.4% 32.8% -1.4ppt
o Adjusted EBIT* o KEHEEEBIT* 768.8 535.3 +44%
o Adjusted EBITDAA o KEHEEEBITDAN 1,259.9 1,078.4 +17%

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has resolved ARRlEEe((EF5g]))AEMAREERR
to recommend to shareholders the payment of final dividend of BARFE 2 KHRBERARE0.0347T (4
RMBO0.034 (equivalent to HK3.9 cents) per share for the year (2017: B 3.971L) (2017 F - FAX2.474) -
HK2.4 cents per share).
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 81 # 2

Adjusted EBIT* from the continuing operation represents:

B S RS ATEEBIT 45

For the year ended 31  For the year ended 31

December 2018 December 2017

BZ2018%F HE2017F

12A31BLLEE 12A31BIEFE

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR¥EER) (AR¥EET)

Profit before tax from continuing operations P TSRO T A T 738.2 2,211.3

Reconciliation: AR -

Finance costs BB R A 74.8 88.3

Share of profits of associates FE(EEE N ENER (44.2) (41.1)

Dividend income from available-for-sale investments AT ERER BMA - (44.0)
Gains on disposals of Public Sale Bottling Interests ARM SRR 2 DSk

(Note i) (D) - (1,679.2)

Adjusted EBIT* EREEBIT 768.8 535.3

(Note i): One-off gains on disposal of certain subsidiaries, associates and available-
for-sale investment of approximately RMB1,679.2 million in aggregate were
recorded in 2017, in relation to the disposals of equity interests in certain
bottling plants, which were completed on 1 April 2017 and the disposal of the
interest in The Coca-Cola Bottling Unit of Shanghai Shen-Mei Beverage and
Food Co., Ltd. which was completed on 1 July 2017 (together “Public Sale
Bottling Interests”).

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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A Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations represents:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 817 2

SIEIS S TSR ATEEBITDANE ¢

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

December 2018 December 2017

HZ2018%F HE2017F

12B31ALLFEE 12A3181EFE

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR%EER) (AR¥EET)

Adjusted EBIT* R EBIT 768.8 535.3
Reconciliation: iR -

Provision against inventories FERE 24.7 125

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W% - BB MEENTTE 414.8 515.2

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FE 1 A & R 5 15.1 10.1

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BE KBRS (4.3) -

Impairments of property, plant and equipment W - BB MEFERE 38.2 6.3

Impairment/(reversal) of receivables FEMGRIERE, O ERE) 2.6 (1.0

Adjusted EBITDAA 4538 % EBITDA 1,259.9 1,078.4

PEEREMRART 20184 H



MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2018

PEIBR2018 FEARERL

40TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE COCA-COLA COMPANY’S
RETURN TO CHINA WITH THE SUPPORT OF COFCO

EFENHMEIT » AN AEAREERPE 40 FLR

On 13 December 1978, COFCO Corporation
(“COFCO”) entered into an agreement with The
Coca-Cola Company at the Beijing Hotel, which, led
to its establishment of bottling plants in China and
distribution of Coca-Cola to major cities and tourist
areas of China.

At the same time the agreement was being negotiated,
the PRC and the United States were negotiating their
own historic agreement to restore diplomatic relations
at another meeting room on the same floor of the
Beijing Hotel. On 16 December 1978, they issued
a “Joint Communiqué on the Establishment of Diplomatic Relations”, announcing “From 1 January 1979, the two
governments will establish diplomatic relations at ambassadorial level.”

1978412 A13 A - FIEKEARAQR ([FH18]) Er] O AT LA REIL RERE AT ek » A B AY 3 29 A ik
BRI ORILE  WHENBRBERHE -

FAAER] O AT LB IR RS E A EHAMAR - ERRER—EE S —MERAER - PEMBEETREBMNHKA
1978 F 12 B 16 HRXBNHA(PEREXIMARHK) EM (B 1979F 1 A1 Bl - B KERINREE]

In January 1979, COFCO transported 3,000
unit-cases of Coca-Cola to Beijing and
Guangzhou. Coca-Cola was the first foreign
consumer brand returned to the China market
after the reform and opening up of China.

19794 1 A - B &%k - 3,00048 7 O A
LEBEAL T AMEN - RREFRRILE —E
ERPEREMRSHNINEEE RS
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2018 FBIR fn 2018 F A=

On 27 November 2018, Chairman and Party Secretary
of COFCO, Mr. Lu Jun, met with Mr. James Quincey,
President and CEO of The Coca-Cola Company, and
The Coca-Cola Company’s global management team at
COFCO Fortune Plaza.

2018F11A27H fREEECHRESTRAELRE
RARREPFIAEE R TRAIA AR AR EE
BB EEAETEREEREEERK—1T -

Both parties reviewed the achievements of COFCO and The Coca-Cola Company in China during the past four decades
and discussed new visions for future developments.

SR - BHHFCE T N+ FRPEBER QAT EARETETRMNGOAR - WRE T RREROHTE -
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2018 Bl R f2 2018 F A EE

2018 CCBL NEW PRODUCT YEAR - 35 NEW STOCK KEEPING UNITS WERE LAUNCHED
2018 R AIER B FTmEFE——Lm 35 EEHEMR

Jan — H Feb — A Mar = H Apr @ A May £ A Jun <A

Sparkling
Drinks
awi

(e

e

W ‘\l‘! ‘i.

UPGRADES AND INNOVATIONS FOR THE COCA-COLA SERIES
PR mE—KES A O ARSI ERFR - BIF

ekl

Sparkling drinks: Increase the diversity of healthy
sparkling drinks with the introduction of new produéts
such as “Fanta Zero”, “Coca-Cola Fiber +” and “Sprite
Fiber +”, and the upgrading of “Schweppes Soda Water”
packaging

AKmER  RREREUKH M EW[FETE]
[AORT&Es+]  [SEMMH+] ZFER - ARTE
RERFTIK] B8

_Water_: Extend_ the Chun Y_ue bran_d product line t_)y
introducing new offerings such as 800ml PET and 4.5
litre (new packaging) and “Chun Yue Shenxian Water”

Ken iR BB R AL Gh R EE AR AR L T 800m
PET ~ 4.5L ¥R K [#Etireaik | #iam

8 China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2018 |



MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2018 FBIR fn 2018 F A=

2018 New Product Year 13 Brands 35 SKU | 2018 ff i@ 5 13 @Mk 35 {8 SKU

Jul £ A8 Aug \ B Sep LA Oct + A

h‘-.-_,'l

—
]

e
1 -t
er_J%

Ready-to-drink coffee: Upgrade
GEORGIA coffee with improved
packaging and formula with fine
coffee concentrate, offering two
flavours such as rich aroma American
coffee and mellow latte

BN AR ONEE R 48 - B TR 2 E T
Ao BIEBEMET - A LR
ERNMPERER - RHEORE XA
EEEHEMmEOK

Tea drinks: Target young consumers
by introducing the Yo! Tea flavour
series

R AREEEEE LS
%" RIBER AR

Juice: Upgrade the product with
new 1 litre juice packaging, aimed to
fulfil consumer needs for ‘household
consumption’ during festivals
RAml: Em/BEAR - LT
—RITILFEE - W E B HE
RERBRHEET K

FEARRERAT 20184 9



MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2018 Bl R f2 2018 F A EE

CCBL NEW PRODUCT YEAR -
INTRODUCING A PREMIER WATER BRAND

PR mE—SRKmEEm L™
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Completed the design of a premier water brand and its products; introduced six SKU

products from three water sources, including “ZhongKe Kamchatka”, “ZhongKe Baikal”
and “ZhongKe Arxan”.
BB SMAARKDIE REMORE - EW (Rl e 85 - [Hr] e BME] -

[ A] o FERLL | = fEZKIRMBEY 6 18 SKU 2 &

NEW PRODUGT YEAR

YOU'RE ON THE TEAM -
WORLD CUP THEMED BRAND EVENT

BRT B — AN EEMEEE

{

RUSSIA 2018

G
RN

I.I:¥FF AR5

To ride on the World Cup fever, we launched a new packaging for bottles with the design
of 31 national flags in our 2018 summer brand marketing campaign to cater for football-
fanatic consumers. Offline roadshows were also held to further increase consumer
engagement. A vivid World Cup theme at sales venues raised the customer preferences of
Coca-Cola’s brand profile and promoted product consumption. As a result, market share
effectively increased during the event.

2018 FEFMIERBENURN - ITEZRAY - S RBEEFRMR - BERBE
MR BHARREENREYE KT EEPREEELEES - EHOERF
TERABCRTREEL  WBEREE < TBHE - mHNBSIERE

10 China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2018



MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2018 FBIR fn 2018 F A=

On 11 September, ZhongKe Kamchatka was featured ZhongKe Baikal was first revealed at the JD 11.11
in the “2018 Fourth Eastern Economic Forum”, during Festival and participated in the JD product origin tracing
which the Chairman of SASAC, Mr. Xiao Yaqing, and the event. The results successfully demonstrated the purity
Chairman and Party Secretary of COFCO, Mr. Lu Jun, of Lake Baikal water to consumers.

assessed the performance of CCBL. “thil e« BN R EE11.11 2Ty S =48 -
9A118 - “EPT BN E M 2018 F E MU & WRERRFYPREE - REEEBELBIIREE

ROTEEwmE - PREREASRK EFRBELLER KR —R INERE AR LK -
RBBREE R TEE B EETIGRAM D A2
RER

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE COCA-COLA COMPANY VISITED
CCBL'S MARKETS IN BEIJING

O AR ARRED R TRBL TS

On 27-28 November,
Mr. James Quincey,
President and CEO of
The Coca-Cola Company
and the company’s core
management team visited
CCBL’s market in Beijing.
Their activities included
examining new channels

such as online sales, new
retail supermarkets and convenience stores, as well as major sales channels such as general trade, tourism and schools.
The group’s visit led to a deep recognition of CCBL’'s market execution and efforts to broaden its sales channels.

11 A27-28 8 » AIOAT4 R R 2 BRABEL S 4R f%?ﬁi&ﬁﬁlumfil%ﬂﬁﬁqﬂT'E"M«Htﬁﬁiﬁ HEWMRE  NTE
T - BFE S EREMERRE  RKENEREFEIMRBET TED - BPAIRHNTIGRTHFRERIRE
WETRINEEMSEMNRA -
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2018 Bl R f2 2018 F A EE

CCBL WON SEVERAL AWARDS
AT THE COCA-COLA CHINA REGION CONTEST FOR 2017

A ECEHE AT O AT F B E 2017 FERIEFF L RE S H AR

On 10 April, CCBL'’s bottling plants won several awards
in terms of the Coca-Cola China Region Contest for
production quality and safety, sustainable development,
point of sales performance, sales revenue growth and
business execution.

4R 108 - ETATLFEELETRS - B AKH
ERBEAEERERS  THERRE BRER ¥
SR BTN S AR RS B -

CCBL WON COCA-COLA GLOBAL CUSTOMER AND
COMMERCIAL LEADERSHIP AWARDS

] RS T O W2 R E S R h A8

On 16 May, CCBL's PBMS project beat 122 outstanding entries from
32 countries and 14 bottling groups to win the 2017 GCCL (Global
Customer & Commercial Leadership) Awards. The occasion marked the
second time the honour had been bestowed on CCBL, after it won in the

“2016 Jiajiayue Project”.
@5 écceL 5A16H » RAISEIN PBMS (A {EB 2 ER 24) HE E2H 14

B awards

EEIAER - 2@ - 122 EESRAIFFEML - BS0] O A4
2017 2Bk GCCL A (The 2017 Global Customer and Commercial
Leadership Awards) o It 2518 2 4R ] g0k} [2016 ER K IE A
%+ BIRIELLIRE o
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MAJOR EVENTS OF CHINA FOODS IN 2018 FBIR fn 2018 F A=

During 2018, members of the Company’s board of directors, including the existing Chairman of the board of directors,
had paid several visits to CCBL's markets to receive work reports, inspect conditions and provide guidance on operations
and to bottling plants in Chongging, Tianjin, Shaanxi, Sichuan, Shandong, Jilin and Gansu to promote a range of business
improvements

20184 ' FHIRMEF G EBERIZEETGEFELRETFHARK TS - BIRIEER  wEm% - 58T
BREAAESFSIF TIERSESE  RREHTEE - XF - BRE - I - ILFR - &5 HESEIR - #HEBKH
HUEE o

FERRERAR 20184 13



Yu Xubo T8
Chairman F/Z




Dear Shareholders,

The year 2018 was China Foods’ first full year of operation
since completing the disposal of all its non-beverage businesses
and beverage business merger and acquisitions (M&As) and
restructuring. Under the leadership of the Board, our management
team responded successfully to the challenges of slower economic
growth in China and surging raw material prices, while pushing
forward innovation. As a result, our revenue reached RMB15,648
million, a year-on-year increase of 17%. We recorded a total profit of
RMB576 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 19% after
deducting one-off gains on the M&As and restructuring last year,
maintaining a strong momentum of growth.

The integration effects after the restructuring were increasingly
in evidence. Newly-acquired plants continued to improve their
profitability. The operating profit margin was significantly enhanced
from the previous year. The gaps of various expense ratios and
the turnover ratio between newly-acquired plants and our original
plants will be continuously narrowed. We believe that our operational
efficiency will continue to improve through further synergic
optimization.

The year 2018 marked the 40th anniversary of both China’s
reform and opening up, and the cooperation between The Coca-
Cola Company and COFCO. When Coca-Cola products returned
to the China market through COFCO 40 years ago, it was the first
foreign brand to enter post-reform China, which also promoted the
development of a fast-moving consumer goods market in the country.
Looking forward, COFCO group and The Coca-Cola Company will
strive to develop CCBL as a beverage company with a full spectrum
product portfolio. As a pioneer in the reform of state-owned capital
investment companies, COFCO group will devote more effort toward
the market-oriented reform of systems and mechanisms for brand
businesses in 2019. It will further explore reforms in mixed ownership
and employee stock ownership, establish and improve the incentive
system for brand businesses, and integrate “market-oriented
selection and employment of talents” and “market-oriented appraisal
and incentives” principles to encourage and stimulate staff teams. It
will consolidate the competitiveness of China Foods and promote the
sustainable development of brand businesses through mechanism
innovation.

Based on the above, we firmly believe that China Foods will achieve
better results in 2019.

Yu Xubo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Luan Xiuju &3%E%
Managing Director Z FAE4EFE




O,

STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

2018: NEW START, NEW HEIGHTS

The year 2018 marked the first full year of China Foods’ operation as
a focused beverage business platform. It was also the first full year
for the newly franchised regional operation following the refranchising
of Coca-Cola bottling operations in China. The overall results show
that the Company maintained stable growth and the profitability of
its continuing operations was enhanced. Revenue, profit, return
on equity and other major operating indicators achieved budgeted
targets and delivered outstanding growth.

Five major working indicators we have focused on for years met their
targets in 2018. Under intensified market competition and pressure
from the high cost of raw materials, we recorded higher revenue
growth than sales volume increase, and an increase in total profit was
higher than revenue growth. Picture of success in outlets was fulfilled
and enhanced significantly, and INE scores of market execution
growth continuously led in China. Improvement of the product
freshness index was ranked number one in China, and various key
supply chain indicators met their respective targets. The Company
continued to rank first in terms of market share in NARTD sector,
sparkling beverage and juice products within its operation regions.

In light of changes in consumer trends and channel structure
development, in 2018 CCBL vigorously advanced innovation. Under
the theme of “Quality Improvement and Efficiency Enhancement,
Achieving Innovation and Win-win Results”, it leveraged new
products, new channels and new instruments.

1) 35 new SKUs were launched during the year, including
upgrades of traditionally advantageous products (such as Zero
Sugar series, Fiber + series and other new sparkling drinks),
optimizations of emerging categories (such as the overall
upgrading of GEORGIA coffee) and expansions of new products
that follow consumer trends (such as “Yo! Tea”, a tea drink with
blended flavors targeting young consumers).

EEREERN

BORE MR -

20185 : LR - S !

20184 - R MR & F A THICKR LG
TABENE—EREER - DRIRES
FE ] O A R EE B A R R RS
BENHE—EREED - AQABBEATS
R FESEEBORNENBIR
T A R - BRI S B
SEREEKTAE - WHRE T RIFHOKE °

BPMZE-—EEHAINARITIEERE
2018 w152 T EImMWER - AT
SHF MRV EABAT - BRTRAE
RRIVEEIRR - FBAEERRNUIALE
& EHBITKFREREE  MHRTHE
IRAEERSHEREL - ERNIERNE
BT EE - BIRMEERERIEIREKTE
B AREREANERITRNE - UKD
BMB TN REERITITREN ©

20185 - FEIRKIHEHEBE - REBEHE
BORCMER  BEEBEF - FEH
FEdn - FTRE - T AT ETT [RE 18
M BIFTHR WEETEERE

) EHFEMSIHE G 2FXLEM36EE
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an (AR mBEER L - #i4 + R
%) #EmEE R B (B M
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iR R (HE R FEEEENFRKRR
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2)  Our position in new retail channels was enhanced with the
strengthening of e-commerce channels, Omni Channel, CVS,
intelligent automatic vending machines and others. New retail
channel businesses have been proportionally increased and
are continuing to improve.

3) We continued to optimize management and operational
systems to improve management efficiency and control
operational risks. Our PBMS (Partner Business Management
System) program beat other contestants in the 122 outstanding
case studies submitted by 14 bottling groups from 32 countries
and was granted the Global Customer and Commercial
Leadership (GCCL) award by The Coca-Cola Company.

2019: ENRICH CATEGORIES, ENHANCE
PROBABILITY

In 2019, the steady growth of China’s economy and the continuous
urbanization have provided a good development environment for
the beverage industry. The distribution channel upgrade, which
brought about by the rapid development of the network economy,
has enriched the consumption scenes and brought new growth
opportunities for China Foods. Total beverage development strategy
of The Coca-Cola Company provides favorable support for categories
enrichment of China Foods.

In 2019, we will achieve our potential, seize opportunities and
continue to drive business growth. Our growth opportunities are
mainly from the following:

>  Continuing to advance the strategy on a full spectrum of
beverage products by launching new products. For sparkling
beverages, we will maintain the advantages of traditional
products and upgrade new products with healthy and
fashionable concepts to satisfy new consumer demand
and further enhance the position of the products. For juice
products, we will maintain and reinforce our existing industry
leadership through general product upgrades. For water
products, we will narrow the gap with competitive products
through a portfolio of enhanced, high-end, Chun Yue at RMB2
price point and Ice Dew at RMB1 price point. For energy drinks,
ready-to-drink coffees and tea, Chinese drinks and other new

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR £ $ 4245 1% (R 1

products, we will work together with The Coca-Cola Company
and Monster Beverage Corporation in promoting R&D and
introducing more new products to satisfy consumer demand.

> Continuing to enhance our position in new retail channels.
New retail channels account for an increasing proportion
of the beverage consumption market. However, our market
share and industrial position in new channels are far below
those in traditional channels. We will continue to devote more
effort to the cooperative development of new channels and
the replication of our competitive advantages in traditional
channels to bring new growth points to our business.

>  Continuing to facilitate the building of a world-class bottler,
particularly in terms of profitability. CCBL has been an
important driver of Coca-Cola’s global sales volume growth
for years. Its contribution to global sales volume growth ranks
higher than its ranking based on the sales volume. However,
CCBL still lags behind certain outstanding bottlers in terms of
profitability. We will gradually narrow the gap through overall
benchmarking, learning from their experience, and improving
management.

On behalf of the management team, | thank our shareholders for your
trust and confidence in China Foods. We will continue to work hard
to bring higher investment returns to shareholders.

Luan Xiuju
Managing Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERNT

Current status ERBAM

In 2017, China Foods disposed of its businesses in consumer-pack FEERE017FHREDE NBERRE
edible oils, other kitchen food products, wine and other non-beverage EERMEMER  HMmENKEMmIER
products, enabling it to focus on its beverage business through HEiE o DRGSR ER - BAEREEH
its control and operation of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited BRI OLER AT ([HFAIRE]) - AAO

(“CCBL"), Coca-Cola’s sixth largest global bottling partner. AJEE R IR N AREIRNESVERLE -

Currently, the Company’s exclusive franchise right to manufacture, BAl - AARIRBEE R DR 2 KA ERE
market and distribute products under the Coca-Cola series B R I9EEARITHEY  BEFHRAH
encompasses 19 provincial-level administrative regions, covering 50.4% I AC 82 - WAHBERERK
50.4% of mainland China’s population. The Company provides BT R4 7K ThaEAK ~ MBE - BIERES -
consumers with nine major types of beverages — namely sparkling BEE R M EYER B EIOANME - 181
drinks, juices, milk drinks, waters, enhanced waters, coffees, ready mEREmR °

to-drink teas, energy drinks and plant-based protein drinks — under

18 brands.

Today, the Company employs more than 10,000 salespeople to serve AARRABHEEAEBIBS  REERART
over million customers. Our marketing network reaches 100% of the BRULEMER - AREEHEREEES
cities, 100% of the counties and more than 60% of the towns within 4 [E 45 100% KT~ 100% FY 8 5 I
our operating regions, representing more than half of all retail points HBIBO0% AP - (HAS & [RIAFEUA £/
in the region. Controllable distribution accounted for the majority of TER - Heh - AT S EAES(EREEM
total sales. BRZE -
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Development strategy

As the only focused beverage business within the COFCO group, and
following The Coca-Cola Company’s strategy for the development of
a total beverage business with “Quality Improvement and Efficiency
Enhancement, Achieving Innovation and Win-win Results”, in 2018
China Foods followed the industrial development trend of meeting
consumer demand, boosting market status and shareholder returns,
and striving to become a world-class bottler. Specific strategies are as
follows:

° Quality systems: Demonstrate a firm commitment to food
safety, quality and full compliance with quality standards
required by the government, COFCO and The Coca-Cola
Company. Implement a tracking system and enhancement
mechanism to become a safe and environmentally-friendly
enterprise.

o Product structure: Continue to optimise and diversify the
product structure to offer appealing, high quality beverages that
bring consumers enjoyment, refreshment, health and energy.

° Sales and distribution network: Provide sustainable and stable
high-quality customer services in operating regions, with the
most extensive geographical coverage to support a growing
number of customers and robust business activities, and
maintain high sales revenue growth. Meanwhile, continue to
improve distribution efficiency and reduce the distribution
cost of each unit case, continue to improve the productivity
and adaptability of the network, and expand new sales
channels based on consumption trends and retail industry
developments.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [Emifr

° Best benefits: Maintain the Group’s higher than average
profit growth among the sector than average growth for the
COFCO group; continuously increase the net cash flows
generated from operating and investment activities, exceeding
the group’s average profit growth, constantly create returns
for the shareholders, and create returns for society via tax
contributions, employment opportunities and charitable
activities; share the enterprise’s success with employees
through the simultaneous realisation of individual value and
enterprise development.

° Teambuilding: Employees are integrated into highly efficient,
interactive teams under a corporate culture that stresses
honesty, professional dedication and development, innovation
and responsibility. Our culture is recognised and respected by
other bottlers in the system, the industry, our business partners
and shareholders.

Industrial environment

Based on statistics from the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC,
China’s GDP achieved a year-on-year growth of 6.6% in 2018. The
national economy was stable on the whole. The economy’s stable
development and the growth and upgrading of consumer demand
contributed to high single-digit sales volume growth in the non-
alcoholic ready-to-drink industry in 2018 as compared to the same
period in 2017. This was mainly driven by sparkling, energy drinks
and dairy products.

According to data released by Nielsen, China Foods maintained its
leading position in the industry and the regions in which it operates.
The total sales volume and market share by value of sparkling drinks,
juices, bottled water, milk drinks and enhanced water reached
24% and 21% respectively. Sparkling drinks and juices continued
to maintain a leading position, and market share of bottled water
continuously improved with a year-on-year growth of 0.5 percentage
points.
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REVIEW OF 2018 RESULTS

Below is a summary comparison of the beverage business’s 2018 and
2017 annual results:

2018 F</EM

RIS 2018 F AR B 2017 SR MR/
LB

For For

the year ended the year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2017 Change
#z2018%F HE2017F 2%

12831 HE2E  12A31HIERS

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR®BEER) (\E¥BEET)
Revenue WA 15,648 13,358 +17.1%
Sales volume growth rate HELMBEALL +17.0%

Percentage point change of EES-EEpE

gross profit margin +0.2ppt

In 2018, China Foods achieved growth of 17.0% in sales volume
to 1,250 million unit cases and 17.1% in revenue to approximately
RMB15,648 million compared with last year with gross revenue
growth surpassing sales volume growth. Among them, the new
products contributed 3.5% to total sales volume and 7.2% of
revenue respectively. Sales volume and revenue in original franchised
territories increased by 7.4% and 8.0% respectively. Prices of our
main raw materials, except white sugar, increased substantially
during the year, but the sales growth of new products with higher
gross profits and improvements in production efficiency offset these
adverse factors, allowing for an essentially unchanged year-on-year
gross profit margin.

In the first full year after China Foods completed the restructuring
of its Coca-Cola businesses in China, benefits integration and
restructuring of businesses continued. Efficiencies were achieved
through the improvement of capacity utilisation rates at newly
acquired bottlers and from the increased proportion of self-
production to reduce cost of subcontracting. Optimising adjacent
operating areas effectively reduced product transportation distances
and saved logistics costs. The cost savings were also made through
the synergistic effects of increasing warehouse utilisation rates
and improving storage capacity to reduce external warehouse
rental expenses. Through these measures, newly acquired bottlers
significantly improved their before-tax profit margins.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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In 2018, China Foods exerted tighter control over various fees
and expenses, leading to its overall expense ratio decreasing by
approximately 1.6%. The Company also focused on managing capital
expenditures and operating cash flow to gradually reduce finance
costs. The operating profit margin was higher than that of last year.
Four additional production lines were put into operation during the
year. At present, the Company’s annual production capacity for
sparkling beverages and water is approximately 1.8 billion unit cases,
a year-on-year increase of approximately 10%.

China Foods’ beverage business has maintained a solid and
sustainable pace of development in terms of total volume and

structure.

Business development by beverage category was as follows:

Sparkling drinks

While maintaining the stable development of its core brands, China
Foods also promoted new products with a higher gross profit, creating
sustainable development opportunities for sparkling drinks. Among
the core brands, Coca-Cola led the market in 2018 with the launch
of “Nickname Bottle”, “Lyric Bottle”, “Lines Bottle”, “Code Bottle” to
“Bracelet Bottle” summer promotion campaigns. With these, Coca-
Cola closely followed current beverage consumption behavior and
trends. Sprite’s collaboration with the popular “King of Glory” mobile
game and Marvel’'s The Avengers movie included the depiction
of game and movie characters on product packaging, increasing
their appeal among younger consumers. Responding to consumer
health trends and modern design, we upgraded product packaging,
introduced sleek canned products and increased the proportion of
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sugar-free series products in the sparkling category. Building on the
success of “Coca-Cola Zero” and “Sprite Zero”, we introduced “Sprite
Fiber +” and “Coca-Cola Fiber+”, both of which use “body shaping
and slimming” as their selling point, and which have maintained a
high reorder rate since their debut. With the debut of “Fanta Zero” in
March, a total of five new sugar-free series products were launched
already.

In 2018, sparkling products’ market share by value in our operating
regions increased by 0.6 of a percentage point, with a market share
of over 60%, further surpassing its main competitors’ products.

Juices

In 2018, the Company continued to strengthen the distribution of its
new-Flower series products. A “Spy Bottle” campaign and themed
roadshows with free drinks for consumers helped to significantly
increase the frequency of product consumption. Through its
sponsorship of the popular “Ultimate Challenge” TV variety show
and cooperation with popular IP dramas, the Company enhanced
audience recognition of its “Minute Maid Triple Fruit and Flower”
series products and influenced consumer preferences. At the level
of retail execution, the Company increased the number of shops
displaying our juice rainbow and reinforced the promotion of juice
products through catering channels.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Two strategically packaged juice products were launched in 2018.
To meet demand for household consumption, a new generation of
one-litre products of pulpy tropical fruit, pulpy grape and rose grape
flavors was debuted. To meet growing demand for multi-packaged
beverages, a 12-pack 300ml pulpy orange was also launched.

In 2018, the market share by value for juices in our operating regions
was approximately 20%, which was largely unchanged on a year-on-
year basis while maintaining our leading position in the industry.

Water

Leveraging on market demand for water products, and separate
from Ice Dew’s positioning in the RMB1 water market, the Company
launched Chun Yue water at the RMB2 price point. In June 2018,
we also launched the new “Chun Yue Shenxian Water” in original,
lime and cucumber flavors. The product targets urban youth and
addresses their health and quality of life concerns by containing
no sugar or calories. These products can provide 28% of the
recommended daily dietary fiber intake for adults, and satisfy the
demands of newly dominant urban consumer groups. At the same
time, the Company explored the source water market in preparation
for entering the medium-and high-end water industry. In the second
half of 2018, the Company launched two Russian source waters —
ZhongKe Kamchatka and ZhongKe Baikal.

In 2018, the market share by value for water in our operating regions
increased by 0.5%, year-on-year.
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Energy drinks

In 2018, Monster (EE/T\) energy drink initiated an award-
winning national uncapping campaign that ran throughout
the year. Monster was also integrated as a prop in the
popular “Player Unknown’s Battlegrounds” game. The
Company used the same theme for in-store displays and
promotions to consolidate online and offline marketing.
Targeting key customer channels, we continued to
strengthen cooperation with petrol stations, internet cafes
and gymnasiums to carry out continuous consumer
promotion, gift-giving and model shop construction. In
November 2018, one of the best-selling products in
developed markets such as the United States — “Monster
Beyond (JE/TUEB# )" — was launched in China, bringing
consumers a whole new experience in sugar and calory
free energy drinks.

Ready-to-drink teas

In May 2018, the Company introduced Yo! Tea, a Western tea drink
available in iced black tea with kumquat, black tea with blended
berry, and green tea with apple and kiwi flavors. “Magic” (EEI%),
“take off" (#£7R¥) and “fly, don’t be restrained” positioning, a uniquely
cool multilayered flavor and fashionable product packaging design
based on hand gestures all aimed at giving the product youth appeal.
A multimedia marketing campaign incorporating short videos, close-
ups and other interactions emphasised the product’s hip-hop style.
Annual sales volume results exceeded expectations.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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Coffee drinks

In May 2018, the Company launched two new GEORGIA products -~
rich aroma American coffee and mellow latte flavors — to create a new
market segment of high-end ready-to-drink coffees. These freshly
ground coffee products offered consumers appealing new tastes
and high-end packaging, and their sales volume was better than
expected.

Channel development

Building on its traditional channels, the Company has developed new
retail channels and established an e-commerce division responsible
for communication and cooperation with different e-commerce
platforms. In B2B, we began cooperation with a number of major
e-commerce platforms during the year and achieved good results.
At the same time, a Coca-Cola operational platform was established
to monitor various major indicators. We used B2C as a window
for brand-building, recruiting new consumers, and nurturing and
developing new products. We also cooperated with a number of
e-business operators, including JD, Tmall, and He Ma, to increase
our products availability, launch Double Eleven promotion activities,
and increase online sales. Finally, we set up teams to provide catering
and take-out services to help establish a leading position for Coca-
Cola products in the 020 catering segment.
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Outlook for 2019

China’s economy will maintain a stable rate of growth in 2019, and
driven by strong domestic demand, GDP growth is expected to
continue to be higher than the global average. The reform of the
individual income tax system will further increase the per capita
disposable income available to citizens. These factors, along with
the upgrading of consumption, are expected to contribute to steady
growth for the beverage industry.

In sparkling beverage products, we will maintain the advantages of
our traditional products while also developing healthy and fashionable
products to both maintain our leadership and enhance profitability.
We will integrate “Zero Sugar” series, “Fiber +” series and other new
products and continue to promote the rapid growth of modern cans
and multi-packaging products.

For juice products, we will fully upgrade existing products in 2019 to
consolidate our leading industry position with a more fashionable and
attractive appearance and a wide range of flavors.

For water products, we will continue to encourage consumer
preference for the “Yi Lu Chun Yue” brand through themed activities
and major events. We will also continue to improve the packaging
structure, and exploit water use opportunities in different occasions
with different-packaged products, and enhance our market share.

In the energy drinks sector, we will strengthen our communication
with Monster (E&/T0), formulate a development plan for the China
market, launch new products catering to Chinese consumers, and
increase the expansion of key channels and in-store promotions.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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As to the expansion of new retail channels, we will further refine our
channel portfolio based on the development of the market channel
structure, promote trial programs on B2B cooperation, and further
expand customer service coverage through e-commerce partners.
For B2C, we will increase the number of e-commerce partners and
expand the proportion of online sales and overall beverage products
and a continuous online and offline integrated strategy. In terms of
020, we will increase the online and offline distribution of goods
through catering channels, promote the display of essential packaged
products, improve the tracking appraisal system, and seize business
opportunities in new retail channels in the catering sector.

In 2018, the average consumption of Coca-Cola beverages in our
operation regions was approximately 43 cups per capita, which is
approximately 5.6% lower than the average in China and far below
the global average. The Company sees a great potential for future
development. China has become the largest contributor to Coca-
Cola’s global growth, and CCBL is an important engine driving it.
The management believes that through continuous new product
promotion, improved execution, channel expansion, deepening
and enhancing regional integration, it will continue to boost the
Company’s overall performance. In summary, the Company is
expected to maintain healthy growth in 2019.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

In 2018, sales volume growth amounted to 17.0% while revenue
growth reached 17.1%, mainly attributable to the stable results
from existing bottling plants, together with the stable transition
and improved results of newly acquired bottling plants after the
refranchising project completed in April 2017.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Prices of our main raw materials, except white sugar, increased
substantially during the year, but the sales growth of new products
with higher gross profits and improvements in production efficiency
offset this adverse effect of higher prices, allowing for a basically
unchanged year-on-year gross profit margin.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

One-off gains on disposal of certain subsidiaries, equity interests
in associates and available-for-sale investment of approximately
RMB1,679 million in aggregate were recorded in 2017, which was in
relation to the disposals of equity interests in certain bottling plants
in the refranchising project. There were no material change in other
income and gains after excluding the one-off gains mention above.

DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES
RATIO/ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES RATIO

More marketing expenses to promote new products incurred in
current year led to a slightly higher distribution and selling expenses
ratio.

Significant one-off professional fees related to the refranchising
project were recorded in the corresponding results for 2017. The
administrative expenses ratio of continuing operations decreased by
1.7 percentage points was mainly due to the decrease in professional
fees and gradual gains in efficiency from the business integration in
current year.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs dropped by 15% as a result of the repayment of
borrowings RMB590 million during 2018.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Significant income tax expense related to the gain on disposal of
certain subsidiaries, equity interests in associates and available-for-
sale investments of the beverage business as part of the refranchising
project was recorded in the corresponding results for 2017. Income
tax expenses increased in line with profit in the absence of the
exceptional factors mentioned above.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Company’s treasury function operates as a centralised service
for:

° Reallocating financial resources within the Group;
° Procuring cost-efficient funding for the Group;

° Managing financial risks, including interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks; and

° Targeting yield enhancement opportunities.

The treasury function regularly and closely monitors its overall cash
and debt positions, reviews its funding costs and maturity profiles
to facilitate timely refinancing. Cash pooling is applied in Mainland
China for the more efficient utilisation of cash. Also, the treasury
function formulated financial risk management procedures, which
are subject to periodic review by the senior management of the
Company.

In the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the Group’s unpledged cash and cash equivalents totaled
approximately RMB243 million (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB832 million). Net current liabilities were approximately
RMB2,468 million (31 December 2017: RMB1,457 million). The
year-on-year change is mainly related to reclassification of bank
borrowings RMB580 million from non-current liability to current
liability due to approaching of its maturity date.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [E @i

Having considered the (i) forecast cash flow from operating activities
of continuing operation, (ii) existing financial resources and gearing
level of the Group, and (iii) existing banking facilities available to
the Group, the directors believe that the Group’s financial resources
are sufficient to fund its debt payments, day-to-day operations,
contracted capital expenditures as at 31 December 2018.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018, the total
number of issued shares of the Company remained unchanged at
2,797,223,396. In the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings of approximately RMB1,167 million (31 December 2017:
approximately RMB1,747 million). As at 31 December 2018, all
bank borrowings in Mainland China were denominated in Renminbi,
carried at annual interest rate of loan prime rate -0.25% (31
December 2017: carried at annual interest rate of loan prime rate
-0.25%).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no other borrowings (31
December 2017: approximately RMB10 million, carried at fixed,
annual interest rate of 4.28%).

As at 31 December 2018, net assets attributable to owners of the
parent were approximately RMB4,219 million (31 December 2017:
approximately RMB3,957million) and net borrowing position of the
Group (interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less unpledged
cash and cash equivalents) was approximately RMB923 million
(31 December 2017: approximately RMB925 million) and the net
gearing ratio (ratio of net borrowing position of the Group to net assets
attributable to owners of the parent) was approximately 22% (31
December 2017: approximately 23%).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS
PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities nor assets pledged (other than certain bills payable) (31
December 2017: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [Emifr

FOREIGN EXCHANGE MANAGEMENT

Majority of monetary assets, monetary liabilities and transactions
of the Group were principally denominated in Renminbi and
recorded in the books of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
(functional currency as Renminbi). In respect of interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 December 2018, all interest-bearing borrowings
were denominated in Renminbi and recorded in the books of the
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China.

Although the Group has not used any financial instruments for
hedging purposes, the treasury function actively and closely monitors
foreign exchange rate exposure. The foreign exchange risk exposure
at the operational level is not significant.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 19,910 staff in
Mainland China and Hong Kong (31 December 2017: 20,293).
Employees are paid according to their positions, performance,
experience and prevailing market practices, and are provided with
management and professional training.

Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement benefits,
either under a Mandatory Provident Fund exempted ORSO scheme
or under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well as life
insurance and medical insurance. Employees in Mainland China are
provided with pension insurance, medical insurance, employment
injury insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance and
housing fund contributions in compliance with the requirements of
the laws of China. Details of these benefit schemes will set out in the
“Short-term and Other Long-term Employee Benefits” under note 4
“Significant Accounting Policies” to the financial statements in this
report.

The Company and its subsidiaries have no share option scheme.
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CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ERERFUITES

MR. YU XUBO

Mr. Yu, 53, is currently a non-executive director and the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company. Mr. Yu is also a director and the chairman of the board
of each of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“CCBL") and COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages (China) Investment Limited, both of which are 65%-owned subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Yu joined COFCO Corporation and/or its subsidiaries (together
but excluding the Company and its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “COFCO
Group”) in 1988. Mr. Yu has been the president of COFCO Corporation since
April 2007 and previously served at COFCO Group in various positions including
the general manager of COFCO Futures Co., Ltd. (Fi8HEAEHRARA]) and a vice
president of COFCO Corporation. Mr. Yu is currently also the managing director of
COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited as well as a director of certain members of COFCO
Group, and a non-executive director and the chairman of the board of China
Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (“China Mengniu”), a company listed in Hong
Kong. Mr. Yu was a non-executive director and the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company during the period from March 2013 until August 2015
and then served as a non-executive director of the Company during the period from
August 2015 until February 2016. Mr. Yu was also a non-executive director of China
Mengniu until September 2016; a non-executive director and the chairman of the
board of China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd., a company listed in Hong Kong, until
March 2017; a non-executive director of Noble Group Limited, a company listed in
Singapore, until May 2017; and a non-executive director and the chairman of the
board of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong
and an associated corporation of the Company, until January 2018.

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from University of International
Business and Economics in Beijing and an Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) from China Europe International Business School.
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MS. LUAN XIUJU —)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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MS. LUAN XIUJU

Ms. Luan, 54, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in January
2017 and then re-designated as the managing director of the Company in
December 2017. Ms. Luan is currently a director and the chief executive officer
of CCBL, a 65%-owned subsidiary of the Company, and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Luan joined COFCO Group in 1989 and is
currently also a director of certain members of COFCO Group. Ms. Luan was
an executive director of the Company during the period from March 2007 to
September 2013 and the managing director of the Company during the period from
February 2011 to September 2013.

Ms. Luan graduated from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor of Arts degree
in economics and a Master’s degree in economics, and has extensive experience
in food and beverage production, marketing and general management.
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MR. SHEN PENG —)
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MR. SHEN PENG

Mr. Shen, 46, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in December
2017. Mr. Shen is currently the finance general manager of CCBL, a 65%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Shen joined CCBL in 2002 and has held various finance positions in the group
of CCBL, including the chief financial officer of Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited and the chief financial officer of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Beijing)
Limited. Prior to joining CCBL, he was a financial analyst at Sithe (China) Holdings
Ltd. and Hei (China) Ltd..

Mr. Shen graduated from China Foreign Affair College in 1994 and then received a
Bachelor's degree in accounting management from the University of International
Business and Economics in 2004, and a Master of Science degree in applied
accounting and finance from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2015. Mr. Shen is a
senior accountant and has over 15 years of experience in finance and accounting.
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MS. XIAO JIANPING —)
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FHITES

MS. XIAO JIANPING

Ms. Xiao, 55, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in January
2017. Ms. Xiao is currently a director of each of CCBL and COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages (China) Investment Limited, both of which are 65%-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, and a director of COFCO Wines & Spirits Investments Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO Corporation. Ms. Xiao was the deputy general
manager and the chief accountant of China Merchandise Reserve Management
Center during the period from April to November 2016. Ms. Xiao joined The China
Huafu Trade & Development Group Corp. in 1999, and has held various positions
in the finance department. Ms. Xiao was the chief accountant and the finance
manager of The China Huafu Trade & Development Group Corp. during the period
from December 2013 to April 2016. Ms. Xiao was a director of COFCO Tunhe Sugar
Co., Ltd., a company listed in Shanghai, until February 2018.

Ms. Xiao graduated from Party School of the Central Committee of Communist Party
of China majoring in economics and management and has completed a two-year
professional training course of public finance at the Graduate School of Chinese
Academy of Sciences. Ms. Xiao is a senior accountant and a senior international
finance manager. Ms. Xiao has extensive experience in finance and accounting.
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MR. QIN YELONG

Mr. Qin, 56, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in January
2017. Mr. Qin is currently a director of each of CCBL and COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages (China) Investment Limited, both of which are 65%-owned subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Qin joined COFCO Group in 1992 and has held various
management positions, including the vice president of COFCO International Limited
during the period from September 2014 to November 2016, the deputy director of
the strategy department of COFCO Corporation during the period from May 2013 to
September 2014, and the general manager of COFCO Tunhe Co., Ltd., a company
listed in Shanghai, during the period from September 2005 to May 2013.

Mr. Qin graduated from Nanchang Institute of Aeronautical Technology (now
Nanchang Hangkong University) with Bachelor’s degree in engineering and holds a
Master’s degree in technologies and economics from Tsinghua University. Mr. Qin
has over 20 years of experience in business management.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BAFHITES

MR. STEPHEN EDWARD CLARK

Mr. Clark, 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in January 2005. Mr. Clark is currently a joint managing director of
The Anglo Chinese Investment Company, Limited, the chairman of the Takeovers
and Mergers Panel and a member of the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the

Securities and Futures Commission. Mr. Clark has served as a director of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and an alternate member of the Listing

) Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in the past. Mr. Clark has
MR. STEPHEN

extensive experience in corporate finance.
EDWARD CLARK
FBERE
( Mr. Clark holds a joint honors degree of Bachelor in history and history of art
from the University of Nottingham in England and a degree of Master in business
administration from the University of Witwatersrand, Johannesburg, South Africa.
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MR. LI HUNG KWAN, ALFRED

Mr. Li, 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in November 2008. Mr. Li was a member of each of the Takeovers and
Mergers Panel of the Securities and Futures Commission and the Listing Committee
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and an expert member of the Finance
Committee of the Kowloon Canton Railway Corporation and an executive director
and the chief finance officer of Hang Lung Group Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in economics and sociology from
The University of Hong Kong, and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland. Mr. Li has more than 30 years of experience in finance and accounting.
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MR. MOK WAI BUN, BEN

Mr. Mok, 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in August 2017. Mr. Mok is currently an independent non-executive
director of Yashili International Holdings Ltd, a company listed in Hong Kong.
Mr. Mok served as a senior consultant for CCBL, a 65%-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in 2012 and also served as the general manager of Beijing Coca-Cola
Beverage Co., Ltd. from 2002 to 2011. From 1993 to 2001, Mr. Mok was the
general manager of Hangzhou BC Foods Company Limited and Nanjing BC Foods

Company Limited and also served as the general manager of Swire Beverages
Limited responsible for overseeing bottling plants of Swire Beverages Limited in

China.
MR. —)
MOKlVﬁ]PUN, BEN Mr. Mok was awarded a Bachelor’s degree of economics from McGill University,
( R Canada in 1975. Mr. Mok has extensive experience in beverage production,

marketing and general management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EREEE

MR. ZHANG JIXIANG

Mr. Zhang, 56, has been an assistant general manager of the Company since
May 2013 and currently also the chief operating officer of the beverage business
unit of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined COFCO Group in 1987, and has served
as the deputy general manager of Hainan COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited
since 1996 and the general manager of that company since 1999. In 2002, he
was appointed as the general manager of Hunan COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Company Limited and was appointed as the general manager of COFCO Coca-
Cola Beverages (Beijing) Limited in 2010. Mr. Zhang has extensive operations and
management experience and has more than 20 years of experience in the beverage
industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from China Agricultural University and holds a
Master of Science degree in agriculture.
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MR. HU JIANZHI —>
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MR. HU JIANZHI
Mr. Hu, 47, joined CCBL in May 2011 and is currently the general manager of the

procurement department of CCBL. Mr. Hu joined COFCO Corporation in 1993 and
has held various positions in COFCO Group, including deputy general manager of
the risk management division of the strategic department and assistant general
manager of the oil and fats department of COFCO Corporation, and the general
manager of Top Glory (London) Ltd.. Mr. Hu has extensive experience in operations
and management. Mr. Hu graduated from the University of International Business
and Economics with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

As a leading beverage company, China Foods Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “China Foods” or the “Company”, together with COFCO
Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“CCBL"), a 65%-owned subsidiary,
and its subsidiaries, collectively as the “Group”) assumes the social
responsibility philosophy of “loyalty to national policies and making
people’s lives better”. It commits to the corporate mission and
responsibility of “dedicating to modern beverages and creating long-
lasting value” and striveing to achieve sustainable development for
itself and society.

This document is the Company’s “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” (hereinafter referred to as the “Report”). Its
contents were prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”)
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
are in compliance with all relevant regulations. The Report’s scope
includes the Company’s major production and operational activities
in China, and the reporting period is the 2018 financial year. The
purpose of the Report is to summarise the Company’s environmental,
social and governance (ESG) performance in 2018, and respond to
the concerns of various stakeholders.

The Company understands that the standard of its ESG management
and performance is an important factor in achieving its strategic
sustainable development objectives. We hope that the Report will
elicit constructive suggestions from the Company's stakeholders
to further enhance the Company’s management and performance
in this area. Please send your feedback on the Report by e-mail to
liuzhe@hq.cofcoko.com.
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ESGEEEZ
1.1 ESGESHEEELERE

1. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 1.

1.1 ESG philosophy and management structure

As one of 18 major professional platforms of COFCO
Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “COFCQ”), China
Foods adheres to COFCO's philosophy of “loyalty to
national policies and making people’s lives better”.
We strive to balance economic and social benefit in
sustainable development of the Company, and integrate
green concepts into our corporate development strategy.
By pursuing a sustainable development of enterprise and
society, economy and environment, we also promote the
low-carbon economy and explore methods of reducing
energy consumption, pollution and emissions in our
operations. In all our activities and routine operations, we
consistently adhere to the basic principal of “preserving
energy resources and reducing pollutant emissions”.

TERAESTEEEARA
BIATATE 1) 18 KHEX
ft¥az— —EHERTEHNA
FEZRRES -[BRERF R
REAE] SEBERSET SN
S ENMEAFERRORFZ
b UBFEELRAZIDE
BREBRRER - RERAXEM
g KE - BRENARERE
W R HEHE AR AT - TR RE
ORISR BHERMEZLR
A ERFXABMABELTER
Fr [EIR0BEIREIR - WA 525
B EVEARRA -

ESG
Management
ESGEH

Green Operation
fREEE

LLoyalty:to

National Boliciesiand
Vaking PeopleisiLives Better

B R RIS

Sustainable
Development
CIERF
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ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (continued)

1.1 ESG philosophy and management structure (continued)

In keeping with China Foods’ sustainable development
strategy, the Company established an ESG Work Leading
Group which is headed by the board of directors of
the Company and operated with the participation
of management as well as each relevant functional
department. Driven by its own high standards of social
responsibility, the Company continued to optimise its ESG
management system in 2018 to enhance its performance

ESGEEAEEQ“"E?H%( &)

RTEEHBERRABEERE
RS  ARRIKLTEFES
RE - FERERE - X HEMBRE
EBPI2ELR) ESG TYEREE /M
2018% - AARIESGERERT
HrEa¥ BARELERE
BEm EESARREREILE
FHESG EIRHE M - BRI AL

in this important area.

Corporate
Office

o /N

Procument
Department

RIBED

Supervision
Department

B

SEEEITRED °

Strategy
Department

B B& &0

Human
Resources
Department

ANETRER

China Foods

ESG Work Leading Group P i 7

FEEMR Safety

Management

Department
ﬁ-ﬁ— =]

ué 7 47

ESGTFEE/ M

Public Relation and
Affairs Department

DHER
EEERAR

Production
Technology
Department

4 E R AR

hEERERAE 20184 49



50

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 335 ~ 4t &

EamE

1. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (continued) 1. ESGEEEXR (&)

1.2 Stakeholder communications and responses 1.2 FREEF EEEREE
Creating shared values with stakeholders is a core ANEAESAER=EELEN
theme of the Company’s mechanism for implementing NEMNEEEITESIZOHRZ
responsibility. While developing our business and — o RRREERAFER - Al
creating value for the community, we also actively EHEEEMNRE  BIEETH
identify our stakeholders and maintain a good AR =R  WiBBER
relationship with them. A variety of communication ERYE MBS N 25 B8R T
channels enable the Company to stay fully abreast RIFRITEER - KB FIR
of their demands and concerns. Continuous two-way sk E2RAY) o BARIZARRE T RS
communication with stakeholders is essential for the FEORER - BANAR 2R
Company to comprehensively understand its social BEAETE  EmAHEN
impact, fulfil its social responsibilities, and meet the WETHAEEMT - HE TR
expectations of involved parties. Our key stakeholders FEFRER - BMIBANEE
include governmental and regulatory bodies, investors/ FIzAER S B1E - BUTREEE#
shareholders, employees, consumers, media, suppliers, BREARE BT - BB
distributors, universities and colleges/research E IR HER - LHEE S
institutions, and proximate communities. B BHAH%RE - BEtEE o

Stakeholder Description of Stakeholder Communication Method
Flz=AEBA S AR5 E A ERAN

Governmental/Regulatory

bodies

BRREE#E

Departments of Food, Taxation,
Environment and Safely, etc,
direct management and regulatory

institutions which have the authority

to exercise national or local laws
and regulations (such as local
governments)

EROEREEMEERE

Ran ~ B~ BIF - Z2FHA - 5
BUT & B BB RS AR ER AT

Important meetings, policy consultations,
case reports, institutional visits,
official correspondence, information
disclosures, etc

EREH  BRAER - BARER - #B
TR AXER  FEREF

Investors/Shareholders

Natural persons/institutions holding
certain shares of China Foods

General meetings, corporate interim and
annual reports, announcements, etc

China Foods Limited

REANBRR FETERM—EMNENEAA HE BREAE CEPRRFR 2HF
Employees Persons who have entered into labour Employee satisfaction surveys, employee
contracts with the Group and are activities, employee training, employee
serving the Group handbooks, corporate internal
publications, etc
8T BEAKERSHER - RBENEE BETwEERE  B1LES BT
BWAE Al BEIFM - DEABTIHME

Annual Report 2018
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (continued)

1.2 Stakeholder’s communication and response (continued)

ESGEERR (&)
1.2 F$AARA B E A (4D)

Stakeholder Description of Stakeholder Communication Method

FlzAEEE AR5 A A BERAN

Consumers People who purchase and consume the Customer service hotline, satisfaction
products of the Group surveys, etc

HEE BEHEAREEROER FRREER - mERERATE

Media Newspapers, television stations, websites ~ Corporate operation interviews, corporate
and other relevant media organisations culture promotions, press conferences,

special activities, etc
oy Wit - BRAE - BUHERABRENKE OSELCEHH - CEXULEE - FREH
e  BEEREHS

Suppliers Enterprises, shops or individual Supplier inspections, open tender
businesses who supply raw materials meetings, strategic cooperation
for production and office supplies to negotiations, exchange visits, etc
the Group

HPER MAKEHEEERMEPARREN HEFNZEER AHBRESZ  BRKE
% - sk EER ERH - RmEHE

Distributors Enterprises, shops or individual Product exhibitions, industry research,
businesses who conduct legitimate cooperation negotiations, distributor
business of all brand products under meetings, etc
the Group

ReHm BEREAREEE T EmEE R EmRE - (TEEM - SERA - K55
¥ - pehckERER P B

Proximate communities

ARdE

The public and communities at places of
operation

BEMEMHER  HEAR

Public welfare activities, community
activities, volunteer activities, social
support projects, etc

DEEE) - RER - EEEER - &t
BEEXHEASE

Universities and colleges,

BRIB TS

Universities, colleges and research
institutions which have established
cooperative relations with the Group

EAREERY A ERENAS -
RS

5 -

Provision of internship opportunities,
corporate recruitment, staff training,
seminars, academic exchanges and
research cooperation projects, etc

RHUEEHRE  CXBEEEHA B1E
& fatg - BMRRREHREEER
=l

4t

TERARARAT

2018 F 3k
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (continued) 1. ESGEERZA(E)
1.2 Stakeholder's communication and response (continued) 1.2 FFZHEBEHEEEEE(E)
Relatively important issues Key issues
HHEERE EERE
® 12 ® 29
0 ® 28 ® 19
S ®10011 2me 2% ® 3
o~ ®14 @] ® 38 O 32
gialm ® 6 ® 150 4 0 37 O 22
%“"é o7 o9 Bes ® 39
%'{-Q ® 3 ® 34 ® 16
46 E ® 41 ® 20
s
£ ® 2 ® 40
?E’ﬁ ® 5 ® 18 ® 23
Esﬁ e 2 ® 13 @ 35
Z ® 36
@ ® 21 ® 30
§\ﬂ ® 43 °5
9 iz ® 17
S Ha
gﬁ ® 24
o)
=
L]
BArEERE HHEERE
Less important issues Relatively important
issues

REPEE (HERBHTE)

Internal assessment
(Impact on business)

RNEEESGHBE E M AT
Material Assessment Matrix of the Group’s ESG Issues!

Through active communication with stakeholders and by

understanding their concerns and expectations, the Group identified

specific areas of focus for its 2018 annual ESG initiatives. The

Report accordingly covers key ESG issues such as emissions, use

of resources, employee rights, product responsibility, supply chain

China Foods Limited

management, anti-corruption measures, and community investment.

1

Annual Report 2018

Materiality Assessment Matrix of the Group’s ESG Issues: The ESG issue number
corresponds to the HKEX ESG reporting guide (see the “HKEX ESG Guide Index Table”
in the Appendix to the Report).

BBEENEAE TN MR NER - B
PRI EREIMEE - REBEHERIH
2018FEESGITBIMAMENES - +2
MEBRY - BRER - BTHE  ERE
£ HEREE RESMEEIZREFESG
B

U AREEESGHEBEERMMAEMR Bl ESGHEER
B ZX T ESG 18I B FE (2 RAREMIER 2 [
ZFTESGE3EIZRBIK]) °
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

China Foods is a proponent of sustainable development
through a low-carbon environment, and as such, it complies
with national and local environmental laws and regulations
such as the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({F#E AR £MBIRIFIRFEE)), Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution ({FZE AR FEMBI K &5 24
v&)), Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution ({1 # A R EFEIKS5 A
7&)), Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ({FZE A &
HANE [E g RE 5 2R 087%)) and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Environmental Impact Assessment ({1
= ARLMBIRIZEFZZTEEL)) . At the same time, on the
basis of improving its own environmental management system,
the Company continuously explores viable new energy-saving
and emissions-reducing technologies and techniques for its
operational processes and strives to reduce the environmental
impact of its activities. According to its environmental
compliance assessment, no significant violations occurred
in the environmental management of China Foods in 2018.
The same year saw the Company’s consumption of energy
and water continue to decrease, reaching the highest level of
national first-class standards.

2.1 Environmental management system

To further enhance the Company’s standard of
environmental management, China Foods encourages
its subordinate production units to establish and operate
their own environmental management systems with
reference to the ISO14001 standard. As of the end of
2018, all 19 bottling plants under the Company had
established the ISO14001 environmental management
system, and all had been accredited by certification
companies designated by The Coca-Cola Company.

RIREME

FERGEBEBERRROATFEERE
Bo o BERSRETER ki E
EIRFERAERER - 0 (PEA
REAMBIRIBREL) - (PEARH
FMBEARSLEP AR (FEARLE
BT R ARE) - (REARL
B [ BE BE )5 IR B DR R ) R P &
ARKMBIRRZETFELE - F
K AAREREESREEENE
RERE  TERRELBEPAIT
METRE R BER T R TE - B HRBRER
AEELFDEIRBERNTE - 1)
FEITHERQEHRRRO A FHER
RHIER - (KRB FRIBE R hE
R 2018FEN  FERMBEREE
BEEHABEEEREREM - EFEK
PR ERK - HEIER —RIEED
BEKFE e

2.1 RETHEZR
Bt — SRARNDERIRIEEE
KF - pERGHEGRELETBS
HE B2 1S014001 fE x4
SMAEITE FMIRIEEIRER o
HZE2018FK ' ARABL
BEE AR I9ORERmE S
M2 7 1S014001 IRIBE
HEER - WRBA ORI NG

ool 271 5% N\ S ik 27 S
)?EEI“]LIZ:J\;:E'LL\ CIE A
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY 2. REBEEF(E)
(continued)
2.1 Environmental management system (continued) 2.1 RREERZAE)

54

The Company assumes responsibilities on environmental
protection in accordance with the requirements of the
Construction Plan of Energy Preservation and Emission
Reduction System (2015-2017) (COFCO Zong Zi [2015]
No. 146) (HE R AL R E(2015-2017)) (g4
F[20151146%5%))and the Notice on Strengthening
Environmental Protection Work (COFCO Zong Zi [2016]
No.112) (KEARINRERIFRETERBA) (PIEET
[2016]11125%) ) issued by COFCO. Great attention was
paid to preventing and controlling pollution in compliance
with standards on emissions. Compliance management
was reinforced to prevent environmental protection risks.
Environmental protection supervision was strengthened
to establish an effective long-term mechanism. At
the same time, China Foods focused on enhancing
employee awareness of environmental protection and
strengthening the concept of low-canbon sustainable
development through the development of dedicated
training content.

Enforcement
of System

)
TH

Environmental
Management
A eeee

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY 2.

(continued)

2.2 Total emissions and consumption

REEME (&)

2.2 FHRHEELE

In 2018, the Group’s production volume growth rate was
18%. Emissions were mainly comprised of wastewater,
with total emissions of approximately 2,510,000 tonnes,
an increase of 3.9% compared with that of last year.
Total emissions of greenhouse gases was 23,000 tonnes,
an increase of 19.8% compared with that of last year
(primarily due to increased production of PET preforms).
Due to the implementation of centralised treatment in
2018, 91.87 tonnes of hazardous waste was produced,
an increase of 41% compared with the year 2017. Total
non-hazardous waste produced was 8,135.74 tonnes,
an increase of 12.3% compared with that of the last
year. Total energy consumption of standard coal was
approximately 48,700 tonnes. The energy consumption
per unit of product was 8.01 grams of standard coal/
litre of beverage. Water consumption was approximately
8,950,000 tonnes, an increase of 5.6% compared with
that of the last year; and water consumption per unit of
product was 1.47 litres/litre of beverage, a decrease of
5.8% compared with that of the last year. Total amount
of packaging materials used in finished products was
approximately 251,100 tonnes, a decrease of 1.4%
compared with that of the last year.

2018F  AREBLEEEMEL
RERAE18% - BEMWE B AR
Ko BB E N A251 8 M
b EFHBR3O% AERE
R E23EW LEFHEE
19.8% © EZMHRMA T L
BEE: MEANEEEEY
91.87MF © AN 20184F A &£
BRI BI20174F 1 N41%
HEREEYSG 135,74 - &£
FRI123% - R ERBEE
IR B487EN - B E
EERE B8Ol IZEE FHER
B BUKEX A895 &M - thk
FHRED6% @ BAERKES
1477 /8K kX F TR
5.8% : B mFTABREME K
BENA511EM  LEFT
[%1.4% °
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(continued)
2.3 Emissions control

China Foods has strictly implemented the “Three
Simultaneities” management system for environmental
protection (3R3F(RE [ Z[AKF | $1/E ), meaning that
installations for preventing and controlling pollution
at construction projects must be designed, built and
commissioned together with the principal part of the
project, and carries out full-cycle management from
the stages of design and construction to operation on
all projects. At the project design stage, we identify the
emissions and environmental impacts that will potentially
arise from the construction and operation phases and
propose corresponding measures for prevention and
mitigation. In 2018, we strengthened the environmental
supervision of the construction stage of ten projects.
Professional firms including a design institute were
engaged to carry out project design and planning,
and construction work was carried out according to all
relevant safety, environmental protection, occupational
sanitary and health regulations and policies of the
People’s Republic of China. Professional members
of our project teams followed up and controlled the
subsequent construction process. This enabled us to
concurrently design and construct projects and put them
into use effectively, minimising the impact of construction
activities on the surrounding environment. After the
project has gone into operation, we strictly enforce the
Company’s environmental management systems and
regulations to ensure that the relevant pollution control
and environmental protection measures are effectively
implemented.

The Company adheres to principle of reduction,
reclamation and harmlessness on the solid waste
management. Our plants give priority to the procurement
of materials which generate less solid waste, reduce
solid waste at source through precision management on
the operation process, and classifying the solid waste
into general solid waste and hazardous waste according
to hazardous characteristics. In 2018, the total non-
hazardous waste (such as paper and metals) reclamation
was 600 tonnes and the hazardous waste were all
transferred to third parties who have the qualifications for
hazardous waste treatment.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018

2.

REEME (&)

2.3 HERuniE

PEREMBREERERE =
B | BERHE - HHAAEB M
AT LR BT
2 EHERE  BEHLEERE
HRpE T FE PR S EE RS
PR BEENIRETE - 12
AR FE B E RN IR HE A 5 2018
F 101EE B i T 2E R B nsg
RIBEETE BETEENR
Bl E R bTEITBE A - R
2 RERNBELZE - RIE -
BEGTHEERMORT - BER#
THEL - A IBEHEEEEAE
EITREFEE - IEME TR
BraREt  REET - RRERAGE
A B EEE ERIRRN
LRB KK HERABLEE
TERENITA RS IBIR IR E 1 I E
T - BIREESRRENIRE

H s

R R EE E LA ET -

EEREMEETE - NRRE
REFFREL - BRIENREE(L
[RAI - EERRBELEREY D
BRME - A EBRERIRIRAEA
LB - FIRE LR E 48 REY)
MEL BEREREVORE
1t - TRABRIEEREYNE
R ED KRR —ARE 58
REVEITE R - 2018 F H E K
6O0MERE 4L - & /B 55 v [ W [E] 58
&Y - BIR T EEEMERL
HREREY - RIBRIZEEIR
HEHITERE 2018 % LMK
EENERENEHERHAEEE
M =JTETRIE - BRTER
BEMEEEL -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT #&3%

&

op
e
off

HERRES

2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY 2.

(continued)

REEME (&)

2.3 Emissions control (continued)

In 2018, our plants provided feedback based on
the current regime of environmental inspection. The
Company subsequently rectified all environmental
protection issues that were identified, according to the
requirements of environmental protection department
and combining the audit findings and environment
assessment of The Coca-Cola Company and COFCO.
These focused on on-site management, 5S, on-site
health, and other risks with the potential to adversely
affect environmental protections and/or stability of
operations. The environmental risks of all plants are
under control.

The Group additionally used its intranet to collect,
summarise and analyse the data on environmental
performance indicators for each subordinate branch/
subsidiary to further strengthen the tracking and
monitoring of environmental performance of the
Company and, based on this, formulate relevant
improvement plans and future development targets.

2.3 BrRmEs (&)

20184 » AR A& TRHKIEAR
RIRFRERE - R IRRABF
ER - AARERFRPEE
ZBRERENE - HERSE
255 MGHAEFHRRER
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(continued) "
2.4 Saving Energy 2.4 EiRERESE

2. RREFE(E)

58

China Foods is continuously exploring new measures
and technologies to save energy and resources in
its production and operations. It has accordingly
developed energy, water and resource management
and operating procedures such as the Energy Saving
Management System ((EngEfEFEEIEHIZE)) . In day-
to-day operations, in accordance with the Measures for
the Management of Energy Performance Assessment
KBEFEEMEZEEDE)), production management
departments issue energy consumption targets to
subordinate production units on a regular basis (monthly,
quarterly, semi-annual or annual), and the production
units report the energy consumption data through the
intranet system. Management departments assess
each department’s completion of their targets based on
these data. For units which have failed to attain their
targets, the management departments will arrange
for responsible employees to analyse the causes and

formulate improvement plans.

Byt

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

Energy saving
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY 2. RIREEE)
(continued)
2.4 Saving Energy (continued) 2.4 HigepR3E (4E)
In 2018, the Group revised its energy-saving and 2018%F « NEEERFE&
environmental protection projects, resulting in the saving IRIRTE B S - BREETE B 8D
of approximately 700 tonnes of standard coal, and STIZE L7000 - EIKEL 15
approximately 150,000 tonnes of water. In 2018, the BHE - 2018F - AEE X EEL
Group’s main energy-saving projects were as follows: BEFEFERDINT -
No Plant Energy-saving project in 2018
i OIK 2018 FEipEpEFE18 B R
1 CCBL Tianjin Cooling Tower Using Recycled Water
HR AT R 72 AN {58 FA [l oK
2 CCBL Hebei Concentrated Water Recycling Project in Water Treatment Plant
FRTEREDATIE IKERIEREK B
3 CCBL Huabei Bottle Washing Water Recycling
R ] BRRHEEL EEAIR/KE R A
4 CCBL Shandong Replace 5-Step Hot Cleaning and Sterilisation Process with
3-Step Process
F AT BRI R =HRBFRESRERSERES
5 CCBL Gansu Pre-sugar Filter Cleaning Water Recycling
RATERE H R AT HE 38 A& 25 7K Bl K
6 CCBL Inner Mongolia Reclaimed Water Recycling
AT AR Frok el A
7 CCBL Shanxi Using Reclaimed Water for Cooling Tower
HRARTEREHL 7R KBl A A B B2 AR R K
8 CCBL Inner Mongolia LED Lighting Technology Service
FRATERB AR LED FRAAHATAR T
9 CCBL Jinan Renovation of LED Lighting
AR LED & 2itis
10 CCBL Huazhong Frequency Control for Fresh Air System

PEEREMRART 20184 H
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(continued)
2.4 Saving Energy (continued)

In 2018, China Foods’ subordinate plants’ outstanding
results in saving energy and reducing emissions earned
a number of awards. Sixteen plants were names as
Excellent Water-saving Enterprises of the Beverage
Industry (BREHTREIKEFRZ), while 13 plants
were named as Excellent Energy-saving Enterprises
of the Beverage Industry (BUEHTERERTDE).
The Group also applied energy-saving and emissions-
reducing concepts to the construction of new plants. In
2018, CCBL Huazhong plant received LEED Platinum
certification from the US Green Building Council after a
multifaceted assessment of water resources utilisation,
energy and atmosphere, materials and material
resources, indoor environmental quality and innovative
design. It was the first industrial enterprise in Hunan
Province to receive this certification. The CCBL Inner
Mongolia plant was awarded LEED Gold certification,
while the CCBL Heilongjiang and CCBL Liaoning (Central)

plants each received LEED Silver certification.

3. EMPLOYEE CARE

The Company strongly believes in "relying on trust,
emphasising on performance, people oriented and creating a
win-win situation" and is committed to providing fair and open
employment opportunities for those who meet its recruitment
conditions. We also provide a favourable environment for career
development with opportunities for university and college
graduates, and hope to attract and nurture more talent for the

beverage industry.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued)

3.1

Employment and employee benefits

We strongly believe that talent is the Company’s most
valuable asset and the basis for ensuring its sustainable
development. In its operations, the Company fully
complies with laws and regulations on employment and
employee rights, such as the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({FFEARAMELEE
[E)%)), the Social Insurance Law (it &1REE)) | the
Juvenile Protection Act ((REKF AREE)), Female
Workers’ Labour Protection Regulations (€ ZC B T 4 8h{R
357 )), Measures for Paid Annual Leave ({ & & &4k
R¥%)) and the Minimum Wage Regulations ({ /& T
EHRED). The Company has established comprehensive
policies and systems for employee recruitment, labour
contracts, remuneration and benefits, attendance
management, training and development, performance
appraisal, disciplinary policies, protection of employee
interests, etc, in order to protect the basic interests of
employees, eliminate discrimination by nationality, age
and gender, etc, and strictly prohibit the hiring of child
labour and any form of forced labour.

During the employee recruitment process, the human
resources department confirms the age and identity of
candidates through identity verification and qualification
checks, and enters successful candidates into the
human resources information management system,
which is maintained regularly. Employees legally enter
into labour contracts with their respective members of the
Group, and pay social insurance and housing funds for
employees in accordance with laws.

To regulate employee working hours, the Company
has put into place systems such as attendance/leave
management regulations and approves of special
working hours only in accordance with laws. Employee
working hours are managed by the human resources
department. If an abnormal situation is discovered,
the human resources department will immediately
communicate a warning to the person in charge, and at
the same time arrange leave or overtime payments for the
affected employees.
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued)

3.1

3.2

China Foods Limited

Employment and employee benefits (continued)

The Company has also compiled a Staff Handbook ({ &
T51)) to give employees a comprehensive insight
to corporate culture and values, the human resources
management system, employee benefits and rights,
employee assessment criteria, and other matters. The
Company has established staff communication and
complaint mechanisms to ensure that employees can
express their concerns and opinions through secure
channels.

As of the end of December 2018, the Group’s total
number of employees was approximately 19,900, and
no significant violations of relevant labour laws and
regulations had occurred.

Employee development and training

The Company strongly believes in “creating a most
admired professional team” and is committed to
providing employees with a solid career development
platform and a comprehensive training system, so
that the Company can pursue development with the
employees hand in hand. To this end, the Company
formulated management systems and regulations such
as the Training and Management System ({(3&3&
IBHIZ)Y), Training System ((Z3IF& %)) and Career
Development System (B E £ EZEREZR)). The
Company’s human resources department is responsible
for the formulation and implementation of annual training
plans. The human resources department of each region/
plant is also responsible for cooperating with the human
resources department at headquarters to implement
the Company’s training programmes, formulate training
plans for its region/plant, and manage the relevant
training records.

Annual Report 2018
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued) 3. ETEEE)

3.2 Employee development and training (continued)

The Group’s employee training includes:

For new employees — Induction training, including
centralised and professional
training organised by various
departments;

General skills— Training to improve productivity and
professional skills;

Professional skills — Training to enhance professional
skills, including technical-and
research and development-based
training; and

Leadership — Training to enhance leadership ability of
management staff.

The Company’s training is broadly categorised as
either internal or external, and includes the internal
training of COFCO and the Group, the employment of
external trainers to provide training for employees, and
arrangements for employee participation in external
open classes. In 2018, the total training provided by
the Group to its employees amounted to 890,127 hours
and a total of 949,705 person-times. Cumulative per
capita training was 46.2 hours. In terms of training
hours, classroom training accounted for 73% and
online training accounted for 27%. In terms of training
content, professional training, management and general
knowledge respectively accounted for 73%, 6%, and
10%, while new employee training accounted for 11%.
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued)

3.2

3.3

China Foods Limited

Employee development and training (continued)

The Group has also built a platform for internal talent
flow, launched internal open recruitment, promoted
a reasonable accumulation of talent, and provided
abundant opportunities for the staff members' career
development.

Occupational health and safety

The Company strives to create a safe and healthy
working environment for all employees, and abides by all
national and local occupational health and safety laws
and regulations including the Labor Law of the People’
Republic of China ((FPEE AR KX MEIEE)E)), the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases ({F#E ARILFIE
B3 E0745%)) and the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Work Safety (FEARKEMBELZ 2 EE
7£)). The Group has emplaced occupational health and
safety management systems including Safety Production
and Occupational Hygiene Management Regulations,
Measures for Safety Management of Dangerous
Operations, and Measures for the Management of
Safety Production and Treatment for Accidents, as
well as operational safety procedures. The Company
continues to expand and refine its occupational health
and safety management systems in its subsidiaries/plants
in order to raise their standard. As of the end of 2018,
18 of the Company’s 19 production units had gained
OHSAS18001 certification for occupational health and
safety management systems, with the remaining unit to
be audited in 2019.
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3. EMPLOYEE CARE (continued) 3. ETEEE)

3.3 Occupational health and safety (continued)

In implementing specific measures stipulated by the
relevant system, the Company requires its subordinate
plants to establish quality, environmental protection
and safety departments, and to position safety and
environmental protection specialists responsible for plant
safety and the environmental protection management
work. Furthermore, each plant formulates a compliance
list on EHS (environment, health and safety) regulations
which is renewed and maintained by the aforementioned
specialists. The plants identify dangerous operational
positions and potential hazards, provide their operators
with personal protective equipment such as goggles,
helmets, safety gloves and safety shoes, implement
strict approval and supervision procedures for special
operations, and provide appropriate protection measures
such as fencing or lifelines where climbing is required.

As a matter of routine, the Company arranges annual
medical check-ups for all employees as well as annual
check-ups on occupational diseases for employees doing
specific types of work. In accordance with the relevant
requirements, the Company retains employee medical
records for subsequent follow-ups.

During 2018, the Group recorded no fatalities related to
production safety. As of the end of 2018, 1,122 working
days had been lost due to work-related injuries.

PRODUCT LIABILITY

To fulfill its dedication to “modern beverages and creating long-
lasting value”, the Group perceives quality as its first priority.
It strives above all to provide consumers with consistently
satisfying, safe products. The Group wholly abides by national,
regional and industry laws and regulations relevant to product
liability, including the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of Chinaa (FREE AR XMBE R BZ2E)), the Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FhZE A R MEZE
TEEYA)), the Measures for the Administration of Food
Production Licenses (R MmAEERTAIEEHE)) and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer

Rights and Interests ({2 A R ELFBHE E#EDIREL)) .
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued) 4.

66

4.1 Food quality and safety

China Foods continuously promotes a corporate culture
of quality and safety through enhancements to its
products and management. The Company’s quality and
safety system certifications have been implemented at
factory level for eight consecutive years, as audited by
a third-party professional certification body. As of the
end of 2018, all 19 production units had attained FSSC
(Food Safety System Certification) 22000 and 1SO9001
certifications. In terms of management systems, in recent
years, CCBL has driven the full implementation of the
Consolidated Emergency Plan for Food Safety Issues({ &
MEEBWIRATESTEER)), the Measures for Quality
and Safety Management of Suppliers ({tERE 8L %
EIBYHE)), Food Safety Management Regulations (&
mMEEEEMIE)), the Measures for Food Additives
Management ({R@ANINBEIEEHE)) , the Measures
for Food Recall Management { EmAB EEEHE))
and other product quality inspection related systems in
subordinate enterprises.

Product safety inspection

While the Company’s subordinate production units
routinely conduct production inspections of raw and
semi-finished materials and finished products, CCBL
also frequently retains qualified third-party institutions
to conduct additional regular enforcement inspections
for certain nationally-required standards. Enforcement
of other standards is supplemented by inspections
carried out by production unit laboratories. At the start
of each year, CCBL’s Quality, Safety and Environmental
Protection Department formulates a supervision and
sampling plan which is issued to the plants. The plants
subsequently conduct quarterly sampling inspections
on finished and semi-finished products, raw materials,
packaging materials, etc. In 2018, a total of 29,796
product batches passed the first self-inspection test,
with a passing rate of 100%. The plants commissioned
external qualified third-party inspection organisations to
inspect 1,043 batches of self-tested products, and the
passing rate was 100%.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)
4.1 Food quality and safety (continued)

Product safety inspection (continued)

Inspection of
raw materials

RR AR

e All raw materials are
sent to the plants for
inspection, and are
warehoused after
passing the inspection
F7B R R
08 - BiRERIAE

e Confirm information
of suppliers
Mg {s SR

e Report and dispose of
failed materials
TEREERERR
BE

Production inspection process

L EBERBRE

Inspection of
semi-finished
materials

¥ R iR

e According to the
scope of work of
each category of
business product,
conduct inspection
on each control point
and record relevant
information
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e Supervision of
production process
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Outgoing
inspection of

finished products
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e According to its own

inspection
requirements,
conduct conduct on
finished products in
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Record effective
information
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Special capacity building in food safety
Taking full consideration of the risks inherent to its

upstream, downstream and manufacturing phases, the

Company extended the HACCP management system

which was traditionally applied to the manufacturing

phase forward to its production base, suppliers and new

product development, and backward to the customer

services system.
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China Foods Limited

4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)
4.1 Food quality and safety (continued)

Special capacity building in food safety (continued)

All Company’s production plants have installed high-
definition cameras to monitor all areas of food safety
risk. Each plant also employs responsible persons to
arrange monitoring frequency. For issues revealed by
video surveillance, supervised corrective action is taken
to ensure that such risks are brought fully under control.

Qualified third-party inspection organisations were also
engaged to perform microbiological competence tests on
plant laboratories. All inspected plants passed the latest
round of these tests.

Prevention and emergency mechanism of food safety issues
China Foods has a system of emergency response plans
for food safety incidents in its plants, and organises drills
on a regular basis. The Company has also established
a preventive early warning mechanism for significant
hidden dangers in areas such as product quality and
microbial detection. The mechanism has achieved
remarkable results, reaching a 100% passing rate in
sample testing. At the same time, the Company also
continues to tackle Daily Quality and Safety Issues
(EEREE2ME))and has accordingly used risk
identification and assessment to prepare a risk list and
develop commensurate control measures. This approach
enabled the measures to control significant risks from
within the normal dynamic control process. During 2018,
there were no recalls of sold or delivered products from
the Group due to safety or health reasons.

Annual Report 2018
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)

4.2 Customer services system

4. EmEE(HE)
42 EFRBER

To help provide consumers with high quality products,
the Group has established a customer service centre
with an information service system for recording and
processing information such as customer complaints,
enquiries and recommendations. The Group’s consumer
complaint handling procedures were also developed
specifically to receive and respond to complaints with
an open-minded attitude, careful investigation, positive
feedback and follow-up action.

In 2018, more than 219,000 calls were received by the
customer service centre, and the excellent performance
of its staff enable us to maintain a good relationship
with our customers and further enhanced the Group’s
reputation. In 2018, we completed an online and
continuous function upgrade of the customer information
service system in all operating regions. The new system
provides more convenient and efficient customer
services in major sales regions, enhancing the customer
experience and consumer satisfaction.

The customer service centre is committed to following up
oral complaints within 24 hours and confirming written
complaints within 48 hours. The customer service staff
at each sales region attaches great importance to every
case and makes every effort to ensure that customers
are satisfied. In 2018, the completion rate for handling
consumer complaints reached 97%, and the customer
satisfaction rate was maintained at the high level of 95%.
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)

4.2

4.3

China Foods Limited

Customer services system (continued)

To protect customer information, all sales orders and
deliveries are completed in the Group’s SAP system.
Only authorised personnel can access the information
and maintain the system, which effectively protects the
information and privacy of customers.

Advertising, marketing and brand management

The Group fully abides by laws and regulations
concerning advertising and marketing, including the
Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic of China
(HPZEARLFIEES L)) and the relevant regulations
of COFCO. Through COFCO, the Company selects
advertising and media vendors which meet its unified
selection standards, and all advertisements are approved
by the Company’s legal department in view of controlling
risk. The Company has also formulated strict assessment
standards pertaining to the use of trademarks of COFCO
and the Group in marketing and media. After a stringent
review of their proposed use, the Company determined
the suitability of the trademarks’ use and reports to
COFCO for approval.

In 2018, the Group committed no violations of laws and
regulations relevant to advertising and marketing.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In order to ensure the Company’s product quality and safety
and control risk from its point of origin, we continue to
strengthen our supervision of our supply chain. The Company
also works with suppliers to build a green and sustainable
supply chain system, and has continuously improved its
operational management performance as well as its cooperative
partners.

Various assessment instruments are used to ensure the
quality of the raw materials purchased by the Group. The
Group and The Coca-Cola Company have jointly established
a comprehensive supplier evaluation mechanism. A review of
suppliers’ social responsibilities conducted by independent
third parties is one of the basic contents of on-site review.
It aims at making comprehensive judgments on suppliers’
environmental and social risks, including compliance of
relevant laws and regulations, possession of relevant permits,
engagement of child labour, and sufficient protection for
workers. The Group ceases its cooperation with any supplier
who fails to meet requirements, and require the said suppliers
to rectify their issues within a defined time period. We also pay
regular visits to suppliers who have passed the review.

The Group and The Coca-Cola Company has jointly established
a proven supplier information management system,
implemented whole process management from supplier access
verification, regular audits and performance evaluations. We
conduct comprehensive evaluations on suppliers on a regular
basis, and exercise the exit system on suppliers who fail.
After each assessment, we update our supplier information
management system and require each unit to execute their
purchases in accordance with the supplier list.
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China Foods Limited

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group also attaches great importance to the ethical
behaviour and contractual spirit of suppliers. Our supplier
contracts contain specific terms obliging both parties to prevent
any improper procurements in accordance with The Coca-Cola
Company’s Supplier Code of Business Conduct (7] 0 A £4A
A EREREITRRE)) .

Number of beverage business suppliers by region

Region 2018 Data (number)
North-east 9
North China 28
Central China 4
East China 21
South China 27
North-west 7
South-west 13
Total 109

ANTI-CORRUPTION

“Integrity” is a core value of China Foods, and the Company
maintains a “zero tolerance” stance on violations of
professional and business ethics. The Company fully abides
by laws and regulations such as the Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((ARFEMEIFSE)), the Law of
the People’s Republic of China Against Unfair Competition
(FPEARAMBE R NEEFHFE)), the Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery ((BIRZEIE ¥ BEERTT
AHE T EY)and the Opinionson Issues concerning
the Application of Law in the Handling of Criminal Cases
of Commercial Bribery KR IR MERAERM4EA
EEETHEENER)), and has implemented COFCO’S
regulations relevant to integrity discipline management.

Annual Report 2018
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ANTI-CORRUPTION (continued)

The Company is constantly improving its internal anti-fraud
systems and strengthening its corresponding mission training.
The Company has implemented COFCQ’s 14 Provisions on
COFCO Manager Professional Conduct (Revised Edition) (¢
TR ACIR NS IR T T (1&3THR) ), which stipulate that
employees shall not “conduct business with relatives, use their
authorities to seek benefits for themselves and their relatives
and friends, obtain benefits from subsidiaries and customers,
and take any form of rebate”. Employees found to have violated
these regulations are subject to disciplinary action according
to the severity of the act, until legal liability is pursued. The
Company has also fully implemented the China Foods Limited
Close Relatives Avoidance System ({(FRE B R AER A IHE
i I ))and the Rules Governing China Foods Limited Staff
Indiscipline Report Award (Trial) ((FEIRRBR AT E TE
W17 RRRERE IEIE (F17) ))to encourage employees to
actively report any violation of laws, regulations, the Company’s
regulations and any act which is damaging to the Company’s
economic interests and social reputation. Such reports can be
made via channels such as the special report line and e-mail.

The Company has attached great importance to scrutinising
and tightly managing all activities connected with tendering and
procurement. It has implemented the Rules Governing Tender
and Procurement of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (/1
AT O AT B R A RIBEEBEEIVE)) , to avoid non-

compliance in these areas.

In 2018, CCBL received 11 concern and clue reports and 7
were closed. No violation of regulatory violations were found
upon following up.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

“Loyalty to national policies and making people’s lives better” is
the overall mission of COFCO and the motive behind the Coca-
Cola China’s “We Care” sustainable development and public
welfare strategies. Through “We Care”, we provide a wide range
of high quality beverages to the market while at the same time
fulfiling our role as a corporate citizen. The Group actively
responds to the needs of communities, makes contributions
in respect of environmental protection, education, sports,
community and disaster relief, and encourages its employees to
participate in various welfare activities in order to promote the
mutual development and progress of enterprises and society.

In 2018, we launched a series of multi-form social welfare
activities with participation total of 29,009 person-times. The
cumulative labour hours devoted were about 85,705, while the
capital invested was about RMB10.07 million.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

Representative Cases

7. HERE(H)
RRERFIRT

Targeted Poverty Alleviation:

In 2018, CCBL continued to implement its poverty
alleviation programme. For the third consecutive year,
a team engaged in poverty alleviation tasks in Shiqu
County, Ganzizhou, located at 4,500 metres above sea
level in Sichuan Province. In total, it participated in
12 such projects including plateau animal husbandry
dairy processing, agriculture, forestry science and
technology industry demonstration park, and tourist area
development, generating economic benefits of more
than RMB3 million. From 2016-2018, with the support
of COFCO, CCBL contributed an accumulated fund of
RMB10.65 million to poverty alleviation projects, while
its donation of fixed assets and others was approximately
RMB1.33 million. These efforts helped raise five “Poverty
Villages” out of poverty. The excellent performance of Wei
Lai, one of the Group’s poverty alleviation team members,
led him to be named as an “Outstanding Individual” in
Shigu County in 2018.
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7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

2.

China Foods Limited

Environmental protection projects:

Volunteers Actions:

Each bottling plant of the Company responds to the
unigue environmental protection requirements of its
surrounding area with voluntary actions. These can
include participation in “Earth Hour”, tree planting and
garbage classification education. As well as protecting
communities’ environments, we educates consumers
on sustainability through employee behaviour and
corporate communication. In 2018, the Group invested
RMB791,118 in voluntary environmental protection
projects.

Education/Sports:

Safe School Campus:

In 2015, a series of “Safe School Campus” activities for
students were launched in all the Company’s beverage
business operating regions. Students’ self-protection
abilities were improved with special classes covering
such eventualities as fires and drowning, earthquakes,
traffic safety, and self-rescue in emergencies. In 2018,
CCBL promoted the “Safe School Campus” project by
working with firefighting, traffic control, public security
and other government departments to provide life-
saving knowledge to 110,000 students from 172 schools
in 13 markets. Total investment in the project was
RMB966,742.

Annual Report 2018
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7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued) 7. HERE (&)
3. Education/Sports: (continued) = HE/BEEX(A)

“Flowers Blossom” Relief Programme:

In 2011 CCBL launched “Flowers Blossom” with the
aim to relief the pressure of living of students, and since
then our employees have continued to make one-on-one
donations for students in poverty-stricken areas under
the programme’s lead. Currently, “Flowers Blossom” is in
effect at several bottling plants including Central China,
Xinjiang, Gansu and Sichuan. More than 800 students
have benefitted from the programme thus far, with the
amount of subsidy granted at RMB183,400.

Promoting Football game:

CCBL has a long-term charitable interest in supporting
the development of campus football. In places such
as Shandong, Hunan and Inner Mongolia, our bottling
plants cooperate with government departments to
promote the game through hosting or co-organising a
wide range of activities. We have helped to open up
the field for young footballers and the next generation
of players. In 2018, RMB620,000 was invested in the
programme.

“COFCO Coca-Cola Cup” Youth Sports Club Football
Tournament:

In 2018, a “COFCO Coca-Cola Cup” youth sports club
football tournament was held by the CCBL (Huazhong)
plant in Changsha City. Twenty-six youth clubs, more
than 440 coaches, team leaders and athletes from the
city participated. The tournament has lasted for more
than a month, comprising 115 matches with a total of
531 goals recorded.
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7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

3.

Education/Sports: (continued)

Coca-Cola Mayor Cup Football Tournament:

In 2018, the CCBL (Shandong) plant organised its 21st
consecutive annual “Coca-Cola Mayor Cup Football
Tournament”. More than 300 teams played 885
matches, with over 6,000 participants in all.

Caring for the community:

Water Purification Programme:

CCBL is an important participant in a “Water Purification
Programme” charity project initiated by the Coca-Cola
China United One Foundation Fund (7] H A] £ BB &
SH%). The scheme assists schools and communities
in remote areas to install water purification equipment,
so that local children may avoid the harm from unsafe
water. In 2018, the Xinjiang Poverty Alleviation and
Water Purification Project was carried out in one of
the Company’s beverage business areas. The project
installed 50 sets of purification equipment in the Hetian
area of southern Xinjiang, covering 47 schools in five
counties and benefiting 20,119 teachers and students in
four regions.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued) 7. #HERE (&)
4. Caring for the community: (continued) CHEEE  (F)
520 Incentive Programme for Women: 52047 X HEET &) -

The “Coca-Cola 520 Programme” is a global sustainable
development project was launched by The Coca-Cola
Company to empower women and realise their values.
CCBL bottling plants in various areas have participated in
a variety of ways, including by providing comprehensive
entrepreneurial guidance and support to women
who wish to or at the beginning of starting their own
businesses. “Coca-Cola 520 Maternity Universities” were
also launched in 11 operating regions to teach female
shop owners retail business skills through online and
offline courses. At the same time, we worked with Ali
Tianmao Store and Jingdong Convenience to help female
entrepreneurs understand new retail development
trends. In 2018, CCBL carried out 63 activities and
benefited 31,353 people, with an accumulated input of
RMB363,942.

Community Care:

Each bottling plant under CCBL strives to work toward the
genuine needs of the community. They carry out public
welfare projects such as visiting welfare institutions,
children requiring special attention, and elderly
residents. In 2018, CCBL launched 75 such community
care activities with a total investment of RMB323,936.
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7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

5. Disaster relief:
Clean Drinking Water in 24 Hours Rescue Mechanism:

The operating areas of CCBL's 19 bottling plants cover
81% of mainland China and 50.4% of its population. In
cases of natural disasters, the plants’ strong marketing
network and logistical resources are harnessed to bring
such essentials as drinking water to where it is most
vitally needed. In 2018, CCBL responded to the “Clean
Water in 24 Hours” rescue mechanism on 16 occasions,
providing more than 750,000 bottles of water to victims
and rescuers in disaster-stricken areas.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK

P 8% -

BRPTESGIES|I R S|&K

EXCHANGE
Contents covered
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
R EH Fafm et EAEtEpu AREBEZAR
Aspect Al:
Emissions 1 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
EEAL : —REE BHRERAEREHR - MKR LN  BEREERE <
By EMMEESH
(@) B Kk
(b) EFHBETAREATENEMERRRDINER -
2 KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Yes
WREMIERALL SRR AR RER - =
3 KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where Yes
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
MREBIEEAL2 RERBEHNE CAESE) R (ER) BE (MASESE =
- SERIEHE) «
4 KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Yes
appropriate, intensity (eg. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BIREMIEIRALS FELAZEEDES CAEE) R(NER)ZE (MNEE I
BER - SERIHE) -
5 KPIAL.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Yes
appropriate intensity (eg. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BIREMIEEALY FEARFEERVES CAEE) R(NER)ZE (MNEE =
=B - BIERMEE)
6 KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results Yes
achieved.
WEREBUERALS  HREHRE R RFTERE o bl
7 KPI' Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Yes
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
BRERIEGREALE HRARBEESRESEERNNE O REEESNERIAE P
BRR o
TERmAERAT  2018FH
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK P& : BRXFTESGIE 5| &5l &

82

FENTE -

EXCHANGE (continued) (%)
Contents covered
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
FEER ZRmES REBME ok RREREZND
Aspect A2:
Use of Resources 8 General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, Yes
water and other raw materials.
EmA2 — AR R BRERER (BIERR « KREMEME) HECR o P
ERER
9 KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (eg. Yes
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (eg.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BIRETIEIZA2.1 RERESNEREREEER(NE - fRIvh) BEE (M P
FRTERETE) RBE (MATES S - FERETE)
10 KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (eg. per unit of Yes
production volume, per facility).
BB ISR A2.2 BRKEBRTE WABESEN - BIERGE) P
11 KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Yes
achieved.
BIRERIERA2.3 il EERE A Bt B RIS E b3
12 KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Yes
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
MREBIEEA24  HISKEVERKR EAIAEMERE - AR R KRG & & =
FTSRR ©
13 KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) Yes
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
MRERIEEA2S  HRGFAABEMKNAE CAEFE) Rk (NER) BEEEN b
1hE -
Aspect A3:
The Environment and
Natural Resources 14 General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the Yes
environment and natural resources.
[EH A3 —RHER HIEET AR RAARE REKEANT EMNHECR bl
BRRARER
15 KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Yes
Yes environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
WRETUEEA3L R EREDHRBERARAERNEAZE R FNEEFH =z

China Foods Limited
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK

8% 5

B X FTESGHE 5l & 5l &

EXCHANGE (continued) (&)
Contents covered
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
ARER ZERS BERT ot TREBREZN
Aspect B1:
Employment 16 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
[EmEB1 —MRERER B REE  BEREA  TIERE - B TE5Ke - <
&R %t - RIBARA REAAFE RAEFIR
(@) BE: Rk
) ETFHETABEAZENEBERRAGINER -
17 KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and No
geographical region.
S A BB BL.1 RIER - BIBRE - FRAR EE D MIES B - A
18 KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical No
region.
MEERIEEBl2  RIER - FRARRERSDNESRALE B
Aspect B2:
Health and Safety 19 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
[EmE B2 — MR ERRHZ2 TIERERRERESBEBELLEN P
fERET M%'&
SHETABEATENHEBEERATINESR
20 KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Yes
BIRAEIERB2.1 A TEREME TR AZR X o =z
21 KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Yes
BB ISR B2.2 AIGEAIERS - =z
22 KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Yes
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
BIRENIEEB23  MIMFTRANBERREL 2 ER - UREBERITRERS P
& e
TERmAERAT  2018FH
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK

Py 8% : B RXPTESGHE 5l R 5l %

EXCHANGE (continued) (%)
Contents covered
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
AREH ZRmES REBME EaEE TREBREZAD
Aspect B3:
Development and 23 General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Yes
Training discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
EmB3 — AR R BERAEE BT IERE R RH IR ECR - it P
EEISeE & -
24 KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee No
category (eg. senior management, middle management).
HRERIEER3l ERMRIREERA(NEREEE  FREEES)EHHZ B
EEBERL ©
25 KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender No
and employee category.
MgERIEER32 RURIREERERIES  BREETRZIIN TR - e
Aspect B4:
Labour Standards 26 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.
[Em B4 — MR BRAVIEE T8I TH) : =
& TR (@) BE: Rk
(b) EFHBTAREATEHEMERRADIOER -
27 KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Yes
avoid child and forced labour.
MRENIEREBAL HRAREEAREEARRET RAHSET - =
28 KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Yes
discovered.
MRERIEREBL2 HREBRRERBRREREBERMTERNTR o I
Aspect B5:
Supply Chain
Management 29 General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Yes
supply chain.
JETE B5 —REE ERHEENIRR A 2 BBIOR © <
HrEEER
30 KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Yes
BIRENIEEBS]  RMERESHEERSE o Z
31 KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number Yes
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how
they are implemented and monitored.
WRERIEEBS2 HIEHERHKERNES  mERTERENNRERH b3

B ARARBHIMRTRERTE
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8% )

B X FTESGHE 5l & 5| &

EXCHANGE (continued) (&)
Contents covered
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
HEEH ZERm SRR ot TREBEZAR
Aspect B6:
Product
Responsibility 32 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
[E®B6 —REE BHFREERNRENREEREZ S  BE  BERLEBEE <
EmEM LA AR AR
@@ HBE: Rk
) EFHETABBEAYENEBERRBTINER
33 KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls Yes
for safety and health reasons.
BRRAEIEIR B6.1 PENEEXEMBHT R BERZAMARKNE S =
g, =
34 KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received Yes
and how they are dealt with.
BIRENIEIRB6.2 MR ER RIS E AR EE 7 o <3
35 KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Yes
intellectual property rights.
MRERIEREB6.3 M EAE KRS AHEREBOED P
36 KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Yes
BB IR B6.4 i E ERTE B2 REREWERT o P
37 KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Yes
how they are implemented and monitored.
BIRENIEEB6S MU BEHRRERIBER - UREERTRERHE b3
Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption 38 General Disclosure Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
[ETH B7 — AR R BB LR - B1R - BEFRERER =
k&5 (@) BE: Rk
) EFHBETABEAZENBREERIROINER
39 KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Yes
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
BIREMIEER7.] MR ERBAHETASEESRETESENEFHFRARMEN i
EEPEEN
40 KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Yes
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
BIRENIEER7.2 B SEERERER  URABERITRERERE 7
TERmAERAT  2018FH
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK

EXCHANGE (continued)

(%)

Pt &% : B R FTESGHE 5l &5l 3%

Aspect B8:
Community
Investment 41 General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs Yes
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
[EEB8 — MR BRAE2ERBREEMELRTR ENRREXLIDS =
HERE ZEERAZEOER
42 KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (eg. education, environmental Yes
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
BREMIEEBSLl  HIEREE(NHE BEEH SIHK - #F - k- I
BEF) -
43 KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (eg. money or time) to the focus area. Yes
BIREMIEEBS2 EEISEMPABER(MEEIEH) - =

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. The board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) beliefs that good corporate governance
standards and practices are crucial to improving the efficiency and
performance of the Group and to safeguarding the interests of our
shareholders, investors, customers and staff.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles of the CG Code and
complied with all the Code Provisions with the exception of Code
Provision E.1.2 throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“year”).

Under the Code Provision E.1.2 the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. The former chairman of the
Board, Mr. Ma Jianping, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2018 due to other
engagement. Ms. Luan Xiuju, executive director and the managing
director of the Company, took the chair of the annual general
meeting, in accordance with bye-law 73 of the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-Laws”), and other members of the Board were all
present at that annual general meeting.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. The Company
has made specific enquiry of all directors of the Board (“Director(s)”)
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during the year,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES (continued)

The Company has also adopted a code for securities transactions
by relevant employees (the “Employees Trading Code”) based on
the Model Code concerning dealings by relevant employees in the
securities of the Company. Relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are required to comply with the
Employees Trading Code in respect of their dealings in the securities
of the Company. The terms of the Employees Trading Code are no
less exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code.
During the year, the Company has not received any non-compliance
report from any of such employees.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Xubo
as non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board, Ms. Luan
Xiuju as an executive Director and the Managing Director, Mr. Shen
Peng as executive Director, Ms. Xiao Jianping and Mr. Qin Yelong
as non-executive Directors, and Mr. Stephen Edward Clark, Mr. Li
Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben as independent
non-executive Directors. Independent non-executive Directors
constitute more than one-third of the Board throughout the year and
at least one of them has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
has received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and considered that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent based on
the independent criteria in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules set out in the confirmation letter, the non-involvement
of independent non-executive Directors in the daily operation and
management of the Group and the absence of any relationship which
would interfere with the exercise of the independent judgement.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition of the Board (continued)

At as the date of this report, the Board comprises eight Directors, two
of them are women. The educational background of the directors
cover finance, accounting, business management, economics,
engineering, sociology, history and history of art. The Company
considers that the current composition of the Board has the
characteristics of diversity, whether from perspectives of gender,
professional background and skills.

The biographies of the Board members are set out in the “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” on pages 36 to 43 of this annual
report. To the best knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors
are involved in any relationship as defined in Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has also maintained on its website (www.
chinafoodsltd. com) (the “Company’s Website”) and the HKExnews
website of Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (the “HKEX")
(www.hkexnews.hk) (the “HKEx's Website”) an updated list of its
Directors identifying their roles and functions. Composition of the
Board, by category of Directors, is explicitly identified in all the
Company’s corporate communications.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (available on the
Company’s Website) in August 2013 setting out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Board believes that a diversity
of perspectives can be achieved through consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, work and professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All appointment of the members
of the Board will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. The ultimate decision will be based
on merits of the candidates and the contribution they will bring to
the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The nomination committee has primary responsibility for identifying
and nominating, for approval by the Board, suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out this
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the board diversity

policy.

The Board will from time to time review the board diversity policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting and General Meeting

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with additional Board meetings as
and when required.

Notices for regular Board meetings or Board committee meetings are
sent to Directors or Board committee members at least fourteen (14)
days prior to such meetings, Directors or Board committee members
were invited to include and matters which they though appropriate in
the agenda. For ad hoc meetings, shorter notice may be given.

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board or other
committees of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all relevant rules and regulations for meeting
proceedings are followed. Board papers were sent to the Directors at
least three (3) days before the intended dates of Board meetings or
Board committee meetings (or other agreed period).

It is the practice of the Company to record in sufficient detail of
matters considered and decisions reached, including concerns
raised or dissenting views expressed, by the Board and Board
committees. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings
and/or Board committee meetings are sent to Directors or
committee members (as the case may be) for their comment and
records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after
the meetings. The decision of the Board can be made by written
resolutions.

All minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
kept by the company secretary and are available to all Directors for
inspection. Every Board member has unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the company secretary to enable them to
discharge their duties effectively, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required. The cost of procuring these
professional services will be borne by the Company.

In case a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, such matter will be discussed through
an actual meeting and will not be dealt with by written resolutions.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will
be present at such meetings.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting and General Meeting (continued)

Directors play active role in the Company’s meetings through

contribution of their opinions and active participating in discussion.

During the year, other than resolutions passed by the Board in writing,

a total of five Board meetings and an annual general meeting at which

the external auditor attended were held and the attendance of such

meetings by each Director is set out below. In the following table, the

figures in brackets means the total number of meetings held during

each Director’s tenure throughout the year:

EEE (R
EEARBRAAE ()

EEFRRREBALEBR2ENR  £X
NANEZLEEERENAE - AEER
BRTHEFERFABNEEDARRINAET
hREEEGEN—RBINSZBENLED
BREAFAE  SUEENZFEHILE
BREIIMT - LTRME - WRABFE
RAFEASESTHARTONSHEE:

Annual General

Meeting
Name of Director EENE Board Meetings* (Note 2)
Ezgen RRAEAE
(Hat2)
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Luan Xiuju BERHITT 4/(5) /(1)
Mr. Shen Peng ERLSEE 5/(5) /(1)
Non-executive Directors FETES
Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman) (Note 1) SR EE (EE) (K1) 4/(5) 0/(1)
Ms. Xiao Jianping HEEZt 4/(5) /(1)
Mr. Qin Yelong BEREEE 4/(5) /(1)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUkHITES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark VA et 5/(5) 1/(1)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred = E b itas 5/(5) /(1)
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben Rkt 5/(5) /(1)

*

During the year, one of the Board meetings was related to continuing connected

transaction, in which non-executive Directors and an executive Director who are
related to COFCO Corporation (“COFCO”) had abstained from attending of voting

at the Board meeting.

Notes:

1. Mr. Ma Jianping resigned as non-executive Director and the chairman of the

Board on 4 January 2019.

2. The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 1 June 2018, and more

details are set out in the circular of the Company dated 26 April 2018 and the poll

results announcement of the Company dated 1 June 2018.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board, led by the chairman, is responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company, and be collectively responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and policies, reviewing
and monitoring financial and operating performance, reviewing the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems,
supervising and managing management’s performance of the
Company and approval of matters or transactions of a material nature
or those requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company and implementation of the strategies and
policies set by the Board to the management under the leadership of
the managing director.

Corporate Governance Function

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
function such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report contained in the annual report of the
Company.

During the year, the Board has performed the corporate functions by
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance practices.

Nomination, Appointment and Election/Re-Election of Directors
During the year, the Company has adopted a nomination policy
(available on the Company’s Website) which provides a framework
and sets standards to assist the nomination committee in identifying
and nominating suitable candidates for the Board’s consideration
and to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018

EExE (&)

ESRNEE

EEQMIFEY ARFURELAD
A - HIETAA TR SRS R - ST B
BHBRLERE  REAREIER A
BEGZAM - EERERAATEREY
R A RBLEBARIRE ETHRAIAT A
HENBFERZS -

EXeRTHEFALEEENERE A
BEARFZAEER  (THRMEETE A
KEBEE R HIEHRAS RBR -

EEERBAE
RN ER R ERLZEE  FiltHES
SRAEWITEREAREE - MHE LRE A

NAEEERZBREER - e METE
ENPREEENBIIRSEEEER - K
RAZBEEERARTEEZEMEERTE
AR R BE T REEAT R Z TR R #m
ARABFHRANDRE GRS ZHE

REER  EFRCEERAARTNEE
EEFRNBITRERE ARAE

EZRE ZAREE ERES
AEERN  ARFDEMEFRBERR (R
ARNRWUERIHER)  AGBIREEES
BRIRRBEABABUAREETSERE - Wk
REEENBABYERRAEBMTNR
I3 BB LZ T CEHMMN EREHER MR
FEARAE o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 12 %E /A

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination, Appointment and Election/Re-Election of Directors
(continued)

Pursuant to bye-law 111 of the Bye-laws, each Director (including
those appointed for specific terms) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and the retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election. Director who is appointed either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director to the Board shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to election at such meeting pursuant
to bye-law 94 of the Bye-laws. Any further re-appointment of an
independent non-executive Director, who has served the Company
for more than nine years, will be subject to separate resolution to
be approved by the shareholders. The director who shall retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company is
set out on page 115 of this annual report.

All Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) were appointed for specific terms of three
years and all existing Directors have signed formal appointment
letters with the Company with respect to their directorship with the
Company.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as directors and of the business and activities of
the Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive from the
chairman of the Board or executive Directors’ briefings on the
operations and business of the Group and an induction package to
ensure that he has a proper understanding on his responsibilities
under the relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. From
time to time, the company secretary disseminates information on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to the Directors to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
The Company will organise seminars on specific topics of significance
or interest for Directors and management staff and sponsors Directors
to attend professional development seminars or other programmes
where necessary.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development (continued)
According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors during the year is set out below:

EEg (R)

RESERE ()

REEREMELY  EENSEENFER
S 2 BRI -

Attending briefings,
seminars, conference and/or
reading materials relevant
to the director’s duties

and responsibilities
SHRERE - ZHE -

AREER SEHEE
Name of Director EEHA EERERBREEENER
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Luan Xiuju BT v
Mr. Shen Peng R A v/
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman) (Note 1) SEFLE (EE)(KF1) v/
Ms. Xiao Jianping HEFt v
Mr. Qin Yelong BEXELt v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS v
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred TRt v
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben REDRSEE v
Note: BREE -
1. Mr. Ma Jianping resigned as non-executive Director and the chairman of the 1. M2019F 1 A48 FRFEEREFNTES

Board on 4 January 2019.

Directors’ Insurance
During the year, the Company arranged appropriate insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of chairman and managing director are segregated and
discharged by different individuals. Currently, the chairman of the
Board is Mr. Yu Xubo who was appointed on 4 January 2019, while
the managing director of the Company is Ms. Luan Xiuju. Mr. Ma
Jianping was the chairman of the Board until 4 January 2019.

The chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring all significant and key
issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in a
timely manner.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

(continued)
The managing director of the Company is delegated with the authority

and responsibility to manage the businesses of the Company in all
aspects effectively, implement major strategies, make day-to-day
decision and coordinate overall business operation and regularly
report to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the executive
committee, the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee, to oversee corresponding aspects of
the Company'’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company have
defined terms of reference.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee currently consists of two executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Luan Xiuju who is the chairwoman of this
committee, and Mr. Shen Peng.

The terms of reference of the executive committee are available on
the Company’s Website. The primary responsibility of the executive
committee is to deal with and supervise the day-to-day business
operations, management and administration of the Group. There is no
minimum meeting requirements and the executive committee shall
meet as and when necessary for proper discharge of its duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee currently consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Mok Wai Bun, Ben who is the chairman of this committee, and
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark, and a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Board, namely, Mr. Yu Xubo. Mr. Ma Jianping, a
former non-executive director and the chairman of the Board has
ceased to be a member of the remuneration committee since his
resignation took effect from 4 January 2019.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The terms of the remuneration committee are available on the website
of the Company’s Website and the HKEx's Website. The duties of the
remuneration committee are mainly to make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and senior management and make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual non-executive Directors.

During the year, the remuneration committee held one meeting and
the attendance by each committee member is set out below. In the
following table, the figures in brackets means the total number of
meetings held during each member’s tenure throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018:

FMESS (&)
FZEenBEREEC SN AR AR
WRBER G  c HFNEE G 2 T ER
ARRMARREERSHRERE ZHMBR
RRBRESSREERZZ - AE - 7t
BURBTEERSREEENEAFTHE
B BESENR  BRRSBEILEED
B(EREMERIIR BB REENE
&) AR BAFATEZNHIGTER
EFEgRMES -

REERN  FHEESRITT —REg&E
NEEERBZHFEBEREHIINT - TR
MmE - ERABFENEZE 201812 A31
FIFFEHRSKEEHANRTHNGZE
2y

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEERBEER HEEERE
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben (Chairman) SEREE () /(1)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark WA BEAE /(1)
Mr. Ma Jianping BEFLEAE 1/(1)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
remuneration committee during the year:

o reviewed the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
Directors and senior management;

° reviewed the remunerations of Directors and senior
management for the year 2017;

o reviewed the performance of all executive Directors and senior
management and made recommendation to the Board on
bonuses for 2017; and

o reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the
remunerations of Directors and senior management for the year
2018.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration of
senior management (excluding directors of the Company) falls
into three brands, 2 individuals in the range of RMB1,000,001 to
RMB1,500,000; and 1 individual in the range of RMB2,000,001
to RMB3,000,000. Such amount includes pension scheme
contributions.

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s directors for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the note 13 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee currently consists of three members,
including a non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board,
namely Mr. Yu Xubo, who is the chairman of this committee and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Hung Kwan,
Alfred and Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben. Mr. Ma Jianping, a former non-
executive director and the chairman of the Board, has ceased to be
the chairman of the nomination committee since his resignation took
effect from 4 January 2019.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are available
on the Company’s Website and the HKEx's Website. The duties of
the nomination committee are mainly to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; identify suitable candidates for appointment as
directors; make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;
and assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review whether non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are spending enough time to
fulfill their duties annually.

In assessing the Board composition, the nomination committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the board diversity policy.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
nomination committee would consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with regards to the benefits of diversity of the
Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, no new director was appointed.

During the year, the nomination committee held one meeting and
the attendance by each committee member is set out below. In the
following table, the figures in brackets means the total number of
meetings held during each member’s tenure throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018:

REZ8E (HA)
RAFEN  WEHEEHEE -

REEAN  REZEGRITT —IREHE
NEEBEXEBZHBEBEREIINT « ETE
MmE @ ERABTIEREZE 20184 12 A31
HIEFEHRASKETHARTHSER
g

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEEREHSR HEEERE
Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman) SEYEE(EE) 1/(1)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred UL E /(1)
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben SRR EE /(1)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the nomination
committee during the year:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° reviewed the time required from non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) and assessed
whether they are spending enough time to fulfill their duties;
and

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Stephen Edward Clark who is the
chairman of this committee, Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Mok
Wai Bun, Ben.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on the
Company’s Website and the HKEx’s Website. The duties of the
audit committee are mainly to assist the Board to ensure objectivity
and credibility of financial reporting, and ensuring effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are
in place. The audit committee’s responsibilities also include
the appointment, compensation and supervision of the external
auditor. The audit committee is further authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and may make
recommendations to the Board to take appropriate actions emanating
from such investigations.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and the
attendance by each committee member is set out below. In the
following table, the figures in brackets means the total number of
meetings held during each member’s tenure throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018:

EREEE (&)
ERZEENBREEEEC TENA AR
U NEBEER S - BEREEGNBET
ZEMHEESERY GRS FTEIEMA]
B - WHEARANR A AFBERNEREIEM
MEFZESIHIE - BEZEENBEESEN
BN Es  FMNEE  -B%EZES
E—SEEFEEREASHERBREEANET
EE  WREEAHENESSRIES
HTTENIER

AEER  BRZEERTTMRER
NEEEXRBEZHFEBEREIIAT - BLTR
MmE - BRABFREREE 201812 A31
BIEFEHRFESKETRARTNEGER
2

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEERERR HEEERE
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark (Chairman) — ¥ {E%c4 (£/E) 2/(2)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred FHEHEE 2/(2)
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben R AE 2/(2)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the audit
committee during the year:

o reviewed and made recommendations for the Board’s
approve on 2017 annual results announcement, the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017; 2018 interim results announcement, and
the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2018;

° reviewed matters relating to the Group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices;

° reviewed continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and for the period ended
30 June 2018 respectively;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

° reviewed external auditor’'s management letter;

° reviewed the internal audit results and the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems in twice;

o approved the internal audit plan for the year of 2018;

° reviewed and assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes;

° made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the Company;

° reviewed improvements made in the Company’s finance
function; and

° met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope of
their audit work for the financial year ended 31 December
2018.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year, the fees paid or to be payable to the Company’s

external auditor are set out below:
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Fees paid/payable

Services rendered FriR {69 AR 7% 2t A HER
RMB’000

AREFIT

Annual audit services FEFRE 1,321
Non-audit services* IEEET RS * 566
Total a5 1,887

Such services included, among others, interim review, results announcements
review, compliance review relating to continuing connected transactions, and tax
advisory services.

1 00 China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018

* Eiﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬁl#ﬂ@%qﬂﬁﬂ*&iﬁﬁﬁ XERE
B FEMER SN RBHRTBHARE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 12 %E /A

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors, which is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements, receive monthly management accounts
and updates on the Group’s performance and financial position and
prospects prepared by management of the Company on a regular
basis. Management of the Company was required to provide detailed
report(s) and explanation to enable the Board make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put forward for its
approval. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018, the Board adopted appropriate accounting
policies consistently, made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates. The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of
the Company on a going-concern basis.

The Board is committed to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s affairs to its shareholders
and the public in a timely manner. The annual and interim results
of the Company are published in accordance with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The reporting responsibilities of the Directors and the external auditor
are further set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this
annual report. For other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules are disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company is committed to ensuring compliance with regulatory
requirements under the Listing Rules, applicable laws and regulations
in handling connected transactions. Accordingly, the Company
implemented various internal control mechanisms to capture
and monitor connected transactions to ensure that connected
transactions are conducted under normal commercial terms or
on terms that are fair and reasonable and properly disclosed and
(if necessary) approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company in accordance with the Listing Rules. Connected persons
will be required to abstain from voting in the general meetings. Details
of the connected transactions of the Company during the year are set
out in the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
comprehensive and effective risk management and internal control
systems, and for reviewing the effectiveness of these systems through
the audit committee of the Board.

Sound risk management and internal control systems are based on
the Company’s good business ethics and culture, the quality and
capabilities of its employees, the direction of the Board, and also the
efficiency and capabilities of management.

Management of the Company, under the Board supervision, is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group has established a sound and comprehensive risk
management and internal control system, formed a systematic and
effective system on segregation of duty and three lines of defense in
risk management, with each of the business units as the first line of
defense; the business supervision and inspection departments at all
levels as the second line of defense; and internal audit department
and supervision department as the third line of defense.

The Group has established its risk management and internal control
systems based on the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organisation
of the Treadway Commission) risk management framework.

The Group’s risk management covers the Company’s headquarters
and its subsidiaries, covering various risks faced in operation and
management, and focusing on and continuously monitor the key
risks.

According to the risk management strategy, the Group conducts a
comprehensive risk assessment every two years in combination with
the Group’s strategic and business objectives and changes in the
market environment. Identify major risks that adversely affect the
achievement of strategic objectives and prioritise the identified risks
based on a set of standard criteria and formulate a risk mitigation plan
to monitor the risk to an acceptable level.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

The Group has consistently dealt with and monitored the major
risks that were assessed and identified the responsible departments
and accountable persons, the management process and the
corresponding reporting mechanism.

The Group’s monitoring work usually consists of:

Analysis and review: through conducting annual budget and strategic
plan reviews and other forms to set the Company’s development
goals, and determine business plans and development strategies.
Senior management holds regular general managers meetings and
operation analysis meetings to discuss major strategies, policy and
overall issues of the Company. Each affiliated company holds regular
internal management meetings to analyze budget execution, sales
management, production management and risk control matters.

Work management: reports of work are reviewed by management
personnel who are responsible for the relevant functions;

Physical monitoring: ensuring the safety of equipment, inventory and
other assets, and conducting regular inspections;

Analysis of operational indicators: conducting analysis of operational
and financial data on regular basis to ensure early identification of
existing problems, so that any necessary rectification works can be
done in a timely manner; and

Separation of duties: responsibilities of employees are divided
according to the principle of separation of duties, so that the checks
and balances are strengthened and the probability and risk of errors
are reduced.

The Group has established effective systems and procedures to
ensure that employees are able to identify, document and report on
operational, financial and compliance information while performing
their duties.

The Group has established an internal audit department and
a supervision department which report directly to the senior
management and the audit committee of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

The internal audit department assists the audit committee to assess
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and attends meetings of the audit committee at least twice a
year, and reports on the work it has undertaken and its principal audit
findings.

The Group has also designed and formulated appropriate policies and
control measures to safeguard its assets against unauthorized use
and disposition, and to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The Company maintains reliable accounting records,
and financial information in accordance with the relevant accounting
standards and reporting requirements, and properly identifies and
manages risks that may affect the performance of the Company.

Such systems and internal controls are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. They
can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

In respect of 2018, the Board has reviewed, through the audit
committee, the work of the internal audit department, and its audit
findings in relation to the risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance controls),
and considers the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group are effective and adequate, and that the Company had
complied with the Code Provision on risk management and internal
control. The qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, and the
training programmes, budgets and the resources available to these
functions have been reviewed and are considered to be adequate.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has formulated the “Inside Information Disclosure
Policies and Guidelines of China Foods Limited”, which has set out
clearly the procedures of identification, report and disclosure of inside
information to ensure that the Company is able to disclose inside
information properly on a timely, fair and lawful manner, and keep
confidential before such information is approved appropriately, so as
to enhance the market transparency and provide better protection for
shareholders and investors.
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WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Group formulated a whistle-blowing policy to ensure
inappropriate business practices and conducts are properly reported
and handled. The discipline supervision department provided
an email address and telephone number for whistle-blowing and
formulated procedures for handling whistle-blowing matters, and
the whistleblower protection system. For cases in action, they are
recorded in detail, tracked and monitored, and report significant
accusations and results of treatment at a regular meeting to the audit
committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda has been the company secretary of the
Company since 2004. During the year, Ms. Liu undertook not less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training to update her skills
and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to the bye-law 68 of Bye-laws and section 74 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, shareholders shall have a right
to request the Board to convene a special general meeting of the
Company (“SGM"). Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less
than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company may
send a written requisition to the Board to request for convene a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists, must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three (3) months from the said date.

A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(a) any member(s) representing not less than one-twentieth (5%)

of the total voting rights of all the members of the Company; or
(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
The requisition specifying the proposal desired to be put forward
at the general meeting, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like from each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company, together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto, not less than six weeks
before the general meeting (in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution) or not less than one week before the general meeting (in
case of any other requisition). The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangement once a valid requisition is
received.

Procedures for Director’'s Nomination and Election by Shareholders
If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong at 33/F., COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong, (a) a written notice signed by such shareholder
(other than the proposed person) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the meeting of his/her intention to propose such person for election
and (b) a written notice by the proposed person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected together with the personal information of the
proposed person as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and consent of publication of his/her personal information.

The period during which the aforesaid notice may be given shall be
seven days (or such other period as determined and announced by
the Board). Such period will commence on the day after the dispatch
of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, once valid
notice is received.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Communication with Shareholders (continued)

The Company attaches great importance to communicate with
shareholders, both individual and institutional, and the shareholders
communication policy was adopted by the Company on 30 March
2012 to ensure the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with the Company’s information in a timely and effective manner.

The means to communicate with the shareholders and the
investment community used by the Company including the following:

i. corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are issued in printed form and are
available on the Company’s Website and the HKEx's Website;

ii. corporate announcements are made through The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and published on the
Company’s website and the HKEx's website;

iii.  corporate information is made available on the website of the
Company;

iv.  annual and special general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the
Directors and management executives; and

V. Tricor Progressive Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company serves the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend payment
and related matters.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and
concerns to the Company, either by post or facsimiles, together with
his/her contact details, such as postal address, email address or fax
number, via the company secretary whose contact details are as
follows:

The Company Secretary
China Foods Limited

33/F., COFCO Tower

262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2833 0388
Fax: (852) 2833 0380
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s memorandum of association
and Bye-Laws during the year. A copy of the latest consolidated
version of the Company’s memorandum of association and Bye-Laws
is available on the Company’s website and the HKEX's website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We have always believed that maintaining a high standard,
effective and multi-channel communication system and ensuring
the transparency and timeliness of information disclosure enables
investors to accurately understand the latest developments of
the Group. It also helps to enhance investors’ confidence and
shareholders’ value.

Our strategic objectives of investor relations function have been
clearly defined as follows:

1)  to raise the profile of the Company as a leading participant in
the industry, that is in line with our strategic positioning within
the COFCO Group;

2)  to build a long-term and trusting shareholder base;

3)  toenhance the knowledge of our investors about the Company;
and

4)  to understand the key concerns of the investment community
and provide timely feedback to our management, and to make
constant improvement based on the constructive feedback.

Interactions between the Company and the investor community:
We believe effective communication and fair information disclosure

builds investor confidence, and also facilitates constructive
feedbacks for continuous improvement.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

In 2018, apart from disclosing transparent and fair financial and
operational information in annual and interim reports and having
direct communicate with shareholders at annual general meeting,
we have also effectively bridging the Company and the investment
community through:

° Interactive communications between our management and
investors/analysts directly at post-results briefings, investor
annual conferences/seminar and regular investor meetings;
and

° Collection of market feedback, such as research reports and
market views, for the review of our management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased
to present its report together the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018, which were
approved by the Board on 26 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Currently, the Company through its subsidiaries operates beverage
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2018 and material factors underlying its results and
financial position, principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
as well as the Group’s business outlook can be found in the sections
headed “Chairman Statement”, “Statement from Managing Director”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Notes to Financial
Statements” in this report. Such review and discussion form parts of
this report of the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s main operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations are regulated by
Hong Kong and PRC laws. For the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this report, the Board was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.

Please refer to the discussions in this report, the “Corporate
Governance Report” and the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” for further details of the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In view of the Board, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year. Details of the Company’s work in
corporate governance during the year are disclosed in the “Corporate
Governance Report”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance is
contained in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” .

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the

state of affairs of the Company and the Group as of that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 130 to 240.

There was no interim dividend declared for the six months ended 30
June 2018 (30 June 2017: NIL).

The Board now recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB0.034 (equivalent to HK3.9 cents (31 December 2017: HK2.4
cents) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2018,
subject to the approval obtained at the annual general meeting to be
held on Tuesday, 4 June 2019. The proposed final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 will be distributed on or after Friday,
5 July 2019 to shareholders of the Company whose nhames appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 14 June 2019.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement made on 9 June
2013, the Company received the approvals of State Administration
of Taxation of the People’s Republic of China which confirmed that
(i) the Company is regarded as a Chinese resident enterprise; and
(i) relevant enterprise income tax policies shall be applicable to the
Company starting from 1 January 2013. Thus, the Company will
withhold 10% enterprise income tax when it distributes the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 to non-resident
enterprise shareholders of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 30 May 2019 to Tuesday, 4
June 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Progressive Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 29 May 2019.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(continued)
For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final

dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 13 June 2019 to Friday, 14 June 2019, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
The ex-dividend date will be Tuesday, 11 June 2019. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Progressive Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 12 June 2019.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on page 241. This summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY
During the year, the Company has adopted a dividend policy,

pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company to allow shareholders to share the
Company’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves
for future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s financial results, the overall financial
position of the Group, the relevant financial covenants of the Group,
liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group, surplus
received from the Company’s subsidiaries and any other factors that
the Board deem appropriate. The Company’s ability to pay dividends
is also subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules and all relevant
applicable laws, rules and regulations in the Bermuda, Hong Kong
and the Company’s memorandum and association and bye-laws (the
“Bye-laws”).
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s authorised or issued
share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company and its subsidiaries have no share option scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 43 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, amounted to approximately RMB2,855,718,000, of
which RMB95,106,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the financial statements,
respectively.

B S BUR (7))
EEEEHERTRS B - WREHE—
RABHBERFBERSER - 53R, Rt

REBHEK - REBRETSEBRAARAK
MEASESBEORE 2 REROR DA
o RSRSAR AR AR AER R TRE
IKALE, °

S
RAERER - AR EMBRAREETR
ALREEE -

B RERT 8
AT REMB A AL KA B S -

1%%@&%%

NGIEEIE =R S e 7Ryl Ng::372) N
AR B IR L I BB E D 2
IBEERE -

NG|
=

1Bk

i

REER » KRR MAEE 2 FHEBFSE
DR BRI FEA3 AR AKERS
"""" FHIREK -

Atk i
ﬁé2018$12ﬂ31 A ARFREERE
—NAN—FREDEFE 2 A H D IRFHEL
A ABR%2855718,0007 + £ A R ¥
95,106,000 7T 7 4% 4 [ 22 3 K 3 2 oK H AR

B o
N

ME - BERRBERRENRE
ARARAEBREFLNZDE - BER

BB LI EMEZ ) 2FFE D RIERT
RARMFF17 K218 °

FERRERAT 20185 %

113



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS &&= & R&

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 5% of the Group’s total sales were
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers. Approximately
44% of the Group’s total purchases were attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers, with the largest supplier accounting for
approximately 19%.

Apart from the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, COFCO
Corporation (“COFCO"), which is one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers, none of the directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) or
any of their close associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the other four
largest suppliers or the five largest customers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Luan Xiuju
Mr. Shen Peng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Xubo (Chairman) Mete )
Mr. Ma Jianping "ote 2

Ms. Xiao Jianping

Mr. Qin Yelong

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben

Notes:

1. Mr. Yu Xubo was appointed as non-executive Director and the chairman of the
Board with effective from 4 January 2019.

2. Mr. Ma Jianping resigned as non-executive Director and the chairman of the

Board with effective from 4 January 2019.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors are appointed with specific terms.

According to bye-law 94 of the Bye-laws, any director appointed by
the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director to
the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to election at such
meeting. In this regard, Mr. Yu Xubo will retire and, being eligible,
offer himself for election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent pursuant to the criteria set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and that a confirmation of independence has
been received from each of them.

No Director proposed for election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

Biographical details of the Company’s Directors and Senior
Management are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” on pages 36 to 45 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transactions, arrangements and contract of significance to
the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is authorised by the shareholders to fix the directors’
remuneration at general meetings. The directors’ emoluments
are determined by the Board based on the recommendation by
the remuneration committee of the Board with reference to their
job complexity, workload and responsibilities and the Company’s
remuneration policy. Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year
are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified by the Company out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur or about the
execution and discharge of his/her duties or in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into
or existed during the year.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS,
OPTIONS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

There is no conversion or subscription rights under any convertible
securities, warrants or options or similar rights issued or granted by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year or subsisted
at the end of the year. In addition, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company, or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors has any interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which will have to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which any Director is deemed or
taken to be under such provisions of the SFO), or which are required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register to
be kept by the Company or which are required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)
As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of

substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the
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Company as notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register of interests of the
Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, were as
follows:

Aggregate long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the RAEDTRRORAARRG 272488

Company
Number of shares held (Note 1)
FrERMGEEB (Hit1)
Directly Through Approximate
Name of beneficially controlled percentage of
substantial shareholder owned corporations Total issued shares
HERITROH
FTERRER BEEEREE ZEBRTELE wmey BAED
(Note 2)
(Htst2)
China Foods (Holdings) Limited 2,072,688,331 - 2,072,688,331 74.10%
FERMER)BRAE
COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
FlREEE (H8)BRAFR (Note 3)
(Ki7#3)
COFCO - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
Hig (Note 4)
(Kizt4)
Notes: McE
1. Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity derivatives such 1. ARRM 2 5B (RASTE T AMEERE - 2
as share options, warrants or convertible bonds. [543 Bk AT R AR & 5RO ©
2. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of shares of the 2. B TREADNGN2018F 12 A31 B2 %

Company in issue as at 31 December 2018, i.e. 2,797,223,396 shares.

3. COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited (“COFCO (HK)") was deemed to be interested in 3.
2,072,688,331 shares held by China Foods (Holdings) Limited which was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO (HK).

4. COFCO was deemed to be interested in 2,072,688,331 shares held by China 4.
Foods (Holdings) Limited and COFCO (HK) which were wholly-owned subsidiaries

of COFCO.

1Tt #2(BN2,797,223,396 Ml n ) 5t E -

2,072,688,331 B Mctn o e M2 -

TERARARAT

TIREE(FB)ARAR(THEEE D RER/R
PERR(ER) ARAB(RTRETENZEN
BAR)FiF52,072,688,331 IRAR A R A M A o

TREGSARTERAER)ARAF RS
BEEHRTENZEMBAR) AHAHR

2018 F#
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)
Aggregate long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company (continued)

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions
with certain connected persons of the Company. These transactions
constituted connected transactions or continuing continued
transactions and are subject to reporting requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

1. 2015 FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 11 December 2015, the Company, COFCO Foods Sales
& Distribution Co., Ltd. (FRERMmEHARAF) (“Sales
& Distribution Co.”), a then wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and COFCO Finance Corporation Limited (“COFCO
Finance”) entered into a financial services agreement for a
term commencing from 1 January 2016 and expiring on 31
December 2018 (the “2015 Financial Services Agreement”).
Pursuant to the 2015 Financial Services Agreement, COFCO
Finance shall provide the Group depository services, fund
transfer services, entrustment loan services and the other
financial services. Details of the 2015 Financial Services
Agreement were disclosed in an announcement of the
Company dated 11 December 2015.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 16 October 2017 and 18 December 2017, and the
circular of the Company dated 6 November 2017 in relation
to the disposal of the Company’s disposal of its entire equity
interest in certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the sale and
purchase agreement entered into between the Company
and China Foods Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of COFCO, on 16 October 2017 (the “Disposal”).
The Disposal includes the disposal of the holding company of
the Sales & Distribution Co..
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

1.

2015 FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (continued)

As Sales & Distribution Co. is no longer a subsidiary of the
Company after the completion of the Disposal took place on
18 December 2017, there has been no transaction carried
out under the 2015 Financial Services Agreement since 18
December 2017 and throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2018.

2017 COFCO MUTUAL PROVISION AGREEMENT

On 10 November 2017, the Company and COFCO entered
into a mutual provision of products and services agreement
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2018
and expiring on 31 December 2020 (the “2017 COFCO
Mutual Provision Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2017 COFCO
Mutual Provision Agreement, the COFCO and its subsidiaries
(collectively “COFCO Group”) and COFCO'’s associates shall
supply certain raw materials, packaging materials, products
and provide certain services to the Group while the Group shall
supply certain consumer products and provide certain services
to the COFCO Group and COFCQ'’s associates. Details of the
2017 COFCO Mutual Provision Agreement were disclosed in an
announcement of the Company dated 10 November 2017 (the
“2017 Announcement”) and a circular of the Company dated
30 November 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, (a) the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to the COFCO Group and COFCQ’s
associates for the purchase of products, raw materials,
packaging materials, services and others was approximately
RMB1,114.9 million, and (b) the total amount paid/payable
by COFCO Group and COFCQ’s associates to the Group for
the purchase of consumer products, services and others was
approximately RMB3.93 million.

HEBEXS (&)

2015 F o KR (&)
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

3.

China Foods Limited

2017 CONCENTRATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 10 November 2017, the Company and Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) Company Limited (“Coca-Cola (Shanghai)”)
entered into a concentrate purchase agreement for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2018 and expiring
on 31 December 2020 (the “2017 Concentrate Purchase
Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2017 Concentrate Purchase
Agreement, members of the Group with prior written approval
from Coca-Cola (Shanghai) shall purchase concentrates
from Coca-Cola (Shanghai) at prices determined by Coca-
Cola (Shanghai). Details of the 2017 Concentrate Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the 2017 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total amount paid/
payable by the Group to Coca-Cola (Shanghai) for the purchase
of concentrates was approximately RMB1,978 million.

2017 STILL BEVERAGES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 10 November 2017, the Company and Coca-Cola Bottlers
Management Service (Shanghai) Limited (“Coca-Cola
Bottlers (Shanghai)”) entered into a still beverages purchase
agreement for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2018 and expiring on 31 December 2020 (the “2017
Still Beverages Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2017
Still Beverages Purchase Agreement, certain members of
the Group shall purchase still beverages from the Coca-Cola
Bottlers (Shanghai) for distribution and resale within designated
areas in the PRC. Details of the 2017 Still Beverages Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the 2017 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total amount paid/
payable by the Group to the Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai) for
the purchase of still beverages was approximately RMB2,279
million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

5.

2017 PACKAGING MATERIALS AND SERVICES PROVISION
AGREEMENT

On 10 November 2017, Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Bottler”), a deemed subsidiary of the Company and
Tianjin Shifa Zijiang Packaging Co., Ltd. (“Zijiang”) entered into
a provision of packaging materials and services agreement for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2018 and
expiring on 31 December 2020 (the “2017 Packaging Materials
and Services Provision Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2017
Packaging Materials and Services Provision Agreement, Zijiang
shall supply packaging materials and provide conversion
services and other services to Tianjin Bottler. Details of the
2017 Packaging Materials and Services Provision Agreement
were disclosed in the 2017 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total amount
paid/payable by the Tianjin Bottler to Zijiang for the purchase
of packaging materials and conversion services was
approximately RMB31 million.

2018 FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

On 13 November 2018, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited
(“CCBL") (a 65%-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered
into the framework agreement with Coca-Cola Bottlers
Manufacturing Holdings Limited (“CCBMHL"), (The Coca-
Cola Company and CCBL indirectly holds 38% and 21%
interest, respectively), a connected person of the Company,
for a term of two years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2019 (the “2018 Framework Agreement”). Pursuant to the
2018 Framework Agreement, relevant members of the CCBL
and its subsidiaries (“CCBL Group”) shall provide processing
services to the relevant members of the CCBMHL and its
subsidiaries (“CCBMHL Group”) based on the business needs
of the relevant members of the CCBMHL Group. The annual
caps with respect to the transactions contemplated under
the 2018 Framework Agreement for the financial year ending
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are RMB160
million and RMB200 million, respectively. Details of the 2018
Framework Agreement were disclosed an announcement of the
Company dated 13 November 2018.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

6.

China Foods Limited

2018 FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total amount paid/
payable by the CCBMHL Group to the CCBL Group for the
provision of processing services was approximately RMB 157
million.

2018 FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 14 December 2018, the Company, COFCO Coca-Cola
Supply Chain (Tianjin) Limited (Fr#& ] O A £&{t fEdE (K
#)ARAF]) (“Supply Chain (Tianjin)”), an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and COFCO Finance
entered into a financial services agreement for a term of three
years from 14 December 2018 to 13 December 2021 (the
“2018 Financial Services Agreement”).

Pursuant to the 2018 Financial Services Agreement, COFCO
Finance shall provide Supply Chain (Tianjin) and the Group
depository services, fund transfer services, entrustment loan
services and the other financial services. The annual caps in
respect of the maximum daily deposit amount (including the
corresponding interest accrued thereon) placed by the Group
with COFCO Finance for the period from 14 December 2018
to 13 December 2019, 14 December 2019 to 13 December
2020 and 14 December 2020 to 13 December 2021 are
RMB250 million, RMB300 million and RMB400 million,
respectively. Details of the 2018 Financial Services Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14
December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the maximum daily
deposit amount (including the corresponding interest accrued
thereon) placed by the Group with COFCO Finance was
approximately RMB32.34 million.
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Deloitte have issued
their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions numbered 2 to 7
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions numbered 2 to 7 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and the report of the Company’s auditors,
and confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were:

1. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the terms of respective agreements
governing the transactions and are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors are considered to have interests in any
business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with that of
the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 87 to 109 of this
annual report.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB5,000,000.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed with the auditor of the Company
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 and has also discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including the review of the accounting practices
and principles adopted by the Group.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retired as auditor of the Company upon expiration of
its term of office at the 2018 annual general meeting (“2018 AGM”)
on 1 June 2018. Deloitte was appointed as auditor of the Company to
fill the vacancy and its appointment was approved by shareholders of
the Company at 2018 AGM.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been audited by Deloitte who retire and,
being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Deloitte as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

YU Xubo
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

Deloitte

To the shareholders of China Foods Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Foods Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 130 to 240, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) ARETEE (&)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key BRENEE ZEBEEEGHREDN

audit matter AT FEET Y

Fair value of franchise rights and impairment assessment of franchise KA ERA FERTRERREERE
rights and goodwill T
We have identified the fair Our procedures in relation to fair ANESRNEALR BSENETHEEHE
value of franchise rights and value determination of franchise AYEEERRE] ATFEETERFHTL
the impairment assessment of rights and impairment assessment HETERMEANEE SRIEERET S
franchise rights and goodwill of franchise rights and goodwill B R i 2
of beverage cash-generating included: BB S EE
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units as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the
balance and the significant
management judgement and
estimations involved in fair value
determination and impairment
assessment.

As disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements,
as at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018, the Group had
franchise rights and goodwill of
RMB3,506,274,000. The fair value
determination and impairment
assessment performed by
management involves judgements
and key estimations as set out
below:

o Budgeted gross margins;
and

° Discount rate

Details of the key management
estimations are disclosed in notes
5 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

OTHER MATTER

° Evaluating the methodology
and discount rate used in
determining the fair value
of franchise rights and
the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating units
by consulting valuation
specialists;

e  FEvaluating the key estimations,
including the budgeted gross
margins, by comparing to the
Group’s historical information;
and

e  Evaluating management’s
sensitivity analysis over the
key estimations applied in
the impairment assessment.

The consolidated financial statements (before the change of
presentation and functional currencies and restatement of goodwill
and franchise rights as set out in notes 1 and 20, respectively to the
consolidated financial statements) of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those statements on 27 March 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 3/ iZ21EM R &5

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Y&/ #% St e ¥R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 3/ iZ21EM R &5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mak Chi Lung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Y maER®mE

O
For the Year ended 31 December 2018 #(ZE 20184F 12 A 31 HILFfE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
HZ 20184 HZE2017F
12H31H 12 H31H
IEFE IEFE
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
e ARET T ARETIT
(Restated)
(#eE75)
Continuing operation BERE K
Revenue WA 6 15,648,051 13,357,992
Cost of sales SHE A (10,106,740) (8,661,123)
Gross profit EF 5,541,311 4,696,869
Other income and gains H A K Wz 8 228,637 1,952,739
Distribution and selling expenses 285 S S (4,467,172) (3,767,620)
Administrative expenses TR (450,848) (613,937)
Other expenses and losses Hith 57t N E518 (83,106) (9,503)
Finance costs [ 9 (74,835) (88,344)
Share of profits of associates FE(GESE & R B s A 44,168 41,133
Profit before tax from continuing BEREER ZBRBAT
operation A 738,155 2,211,337
Income tax expense P8 10 (161,790) (588,788)
Profit for the year from continuing BEREERCEE
operation Al 12 576,365 1,622,549
Discontinued operations RIERE R
Profit for the year from discontinued RIHREEE 2 FE
operations gl 11 = 380,127
Profit for the year FERF 576,365 2,002,676
Profit for the year attributable to owners AN RA EIEAE AFE(S
of the Company FNm@A
— from continuing operation —REEEREER 320,858 1,185,354
— from discontinued operations eI i = 374,293
Profit for the year attributable to owners N2 BB AFE(EER
of the Company gl 320,858 1,559,647
Profit for the year attributable to JETE I e FE (R I
non-controlling interests bl
— from continuing operation —REFBELEER 255,507 437,195
— from discontinued operations —REKR ISR - 5,834
Profit for the year attributable to IR E(EF A
non-controlling interests il 255,507 443,029
Earnings per share BREA 16
From continuing and discontinued REFELERKIE
operations K ZE TS
Basic (cents) BER(5) 11.47 55.76
Diluted (cents) e (9) N/A i 55.76
From continuing operation REFELEER
Basic (cents) EXR(H) 11.47 42.38
Diluted (cents) wE (o) N/ATRERA 42.38
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

o
For the Year ended 31 December 2018 & Z 20184 12 A 31 B ILF & Sse2mB AT
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
HZE 20184 EHZE20174F
12H31H 12H31H
IHEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(#e&:75)
Profit for the year FERNRF 576,365 2,002,676
Other comprehensive expense Htt2EXH
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently EgngeEsio A Es
to profit or loss: ZIEH
Share of other comprehensive loss FEL B A A EA
of associates, ZHEBE
net of related income tax (BHEREREFTEH) - (1,546)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FREMZEZH
net of income tax (BHIBRETEH) - (1,546)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEWAELEE 576,365 2,001,130
Total comprehensive income for the FERFAZEW AL :
year attribute to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ SN 320,858 1,558,642
Non-controlling interests IR A 255,507 442,488
576,365 2,001,130
FERRERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION .
o ﬁgg\yjﬁﬂﬁjﬂlﬁ At 31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 F
12H31H 12H31H
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR¥T T ARBT T
(Restated)
(geE5)
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 17 4,886,534 4,658,037
Investment properties TEYZE 18 20,100 20,100
Prepaid lease payments TEfS A EFRIE 19 529,445 542,232
Prepayments for property, plant and E NGNS
equipment SEUNE O] 4,126 7,389
Intangible assets BB E 20 3,506,274 3,506,274
Interests in associates i /N W iy 21 742,028 708,360
Deferred tax assets EET IR A 2= 30 379,390 271,495
10,067,897 9,713,887
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 1,650,318 1,292,430
Accounts receivables JE U BR TR 23 304,788 299,480
Prepayments, deposits and other TERNFHIE - He Rk
receivables Ho A e sk IE 24 566,129 497,356
Due from fellow subsidiaries EESNENEIVER 38 23,892 22621
Due from the immediate HEERRARIKRR
holding company 38 138 138
Due from the ultimate holding company — S 435 AR A IR 5K 38 71 71
Due from non-controlling shareholders  Fi B A &l,2 FEIEARAR B
of subsidiaries KRR 38 359 5,081
Due from associates NI 21 19,743 9,305
Due from other related party EL b BER A R R 38 385,665 481,729
Prepaid tax TR IA 18,254 25,146
Pledged bank deposits EHRIRITIER 25 7,961 6,424
Bank balances and cash SRITEEB NI 25 243,235 832,063
3,220,553 3,471,844
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R& B AR 5&

At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
128 31H 12H31H
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARET T AREFIT
(Restated)
(&&E5))
Current Liabilities REBAE
Accounts and bills payables JESBR RN 215 26 606,811 930,858
Other payables and accruals HippeNZOaRETRE 27 2,695,379 3,090,958
Borrowings BE 28 580,000 =
Contract liabilities BHEE 29 1,341,686 =
Due to fellow subsidiaries USEESNEPNGIER 38 152,685 89,507
Due to the ultimate holding company REAIERR A B FRIE 38 1,336 1,336
Due to non-controlling shareholders RBTIB A B2 FEER%
of subsidiaries J% B FIE 38 6,749 17,974
Due to associates NN EGE] 21 163,330 120,066
Due to other related party NN /NI O 38 110,539 185,993
Tax liabilities WIEBE 29,978 492,089
5,688,493 4.928,781
Net Current Liabilities REBEEFE (2,467,940) (1,456,937)
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities EEAERRBEE 7,599,957 8,256,950
Non-Current Liabilities ERBARE
Borrowings BE 28 586,500 1,756,620
Deferred income FRIEU A 204,355 210,106
Deferred tax liabilities FRIEFIAE & 30 95,666 38,193
886,521 2,004,919
Net assets BEFE 6,713,436 6,252,031
Capital and Reserves EARREE
Share capital &4 31 293,201 293,201
Share premium and reserves &7 (B M frE 3,925,711 3,663,305
Equity attributable to owners of KARHEE AELER
the Company 4,218,912 3,956,506
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 2 2,494,524 2,295,525
Total Equity EmEaE 6,713,436 6,252,031

The consolidated financial statements on pages 130 to 240 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

LUAN Xiuju
BEH

Director

EF

R20193 A26 HES S /& RIRERTT
£ 130 E 240 B R MEIREK - WHIAT

ATREEE :
SHEN Peng
TR
Director
o
FERRERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o

O
For the Year ended 31 December 2018 #(ZE 20184F 12 A 31 HILFfE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROER AR
Employee
share-hased Rsset
Issued Share  compensation Capital Reseme  revaluation Retained Non-controlling Total
capital —~~ premium fesene Teseng funds Tesere rofits Total  interests quity
B&f [EERALE 1 2R
Bh o RfRE  BMRE  EAER 0 BEE EMER  REW it B REEE
RUBOD  RWBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOD  RMBOD  RWBOND RMBODO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBUOOD
NRETT MRBTT ARETT ARETT  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
nofe*
it
431 December 2016 (Restated) R6E12731R (7))

(nate 1) (1) 301 080 A% 316107 638 8101 LI0L3% 480019 1574719 6439915
Adjstment ononcontoling nterestasa. MG HELIETR

esutofecognion of fanchierights EERGER (1)

(note 20) - - - 104844 104,844
At 1 Januery 2017 (Restteq) ANTEIRIR(EER) 2320 30820 A2 31607 35382 8101 LI0L3%6  48651% 1679563 b4 TH)
Prftfor e ear FERA - - - - - - LM LG U430 2006
Othr comprehensive expence o heyesr  EEEMAEER (1,005) - - (1,008 G (1)
Total comprefiensie expenselncomefor— £EAE () MA

the year b (1,00) = - 1909647 1008642 s 2001130
Roguistonofsusidares (Restated) —~ WEHBAF (T3

(nate 32) (h32) - - - - - 269941 269941
Fouiseted shere opin arangements - EAHEERERA (1017 - - - (101) - 10
Tranfer o resere funds BEDGES - 330 - (332) - - -
Foretue or expiy o share ofions R e 222 - - - 02 - -
Releas ofesenes upon disposel subsideres 1 ETBAT KRS S 1)1 1 N 1) R ) - B W
Specia dividends (nate 15) kRS (1) {2.201.007) = = (230382 (2437.389) - 8739
Finel 2016 dividend declred BERNIERERE - - - (896 (8926) - (8%
Contbuton fom non-confoling DGR

shareholders of a subsidiary i} - - - 36,000 36,000
Dividends paid fo o controling BAREATHERRR

shareholdersof subsidiares R = - - - (78094 (780%)
At 31 December 2017 (Restated) AATE12R3IA

(noe  and ot 2) (E%5))

(I 1 i 0) 231 080 823.0% 284 300 2790 3906 229655 6292081
Proftand tota comprebensive noomefor - FERHREANAEE

the year - - 30858 320858 85501 576,365

Finel 2017 diidend deceed (e 15)— EERA01 EEHE

(H15) - - (3845 (8422) = (58452)
Trenslr o reseefund BRngEe &40 - (640) - - -
Dividends pad o no-contrling EfHEAT

Shareflders o subsidries HiRRERS - - - 1

At 31 December 2018 RBE12A3IA 9301 30820 823.0% 853 3004 3ol 4218912 24454 671343
note* HaE
The Group’s capital reserve includes: REFE LR I -
e the differences between the consideration and the book value of the . T 5 AR K

Share of net assets acquired/disposed of when there is a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control;

o share of other comprehensive income of an associate; and

o the contributed surplus which represents:

- the excess value of the shares acquired over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor under
the group reorganisation in 1991, less the gooawill arising on
the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates which remains
eliminated against the capital reserve; and

- the excess value of the shares acquired over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor under the
reorganisation as completed during the year ended 31 December

2006.
China Foods Limited
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@)
. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 A31 B L& SAOBEESHRER >
2018 2017
20184 2017 &
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARYET T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(gg=75)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K EE)
Profit before tax: BREL AR A
From continuing operation REFELE ET 738,155 2,211,337
From discontinued operations PERE IR = 11 - 419,968
Adjustments for: FATIEB EH A% ¢
Finance costs B E RN 9 74,835 88,488
Share of profits of associates FEAG B & R B A (44,168) (41,133)
Bank interest income RITALE WA 8 (5,023) (16,086)
Dividend income from AMHEERE
available-for-sale investments g EMA - (44,011)
Impairment loss, net of reversal BEETE - HBREE
— property, plant and equipment —ME - BB NERE 17 38,181 6,298
— available-for-sale investments — A ERE = 619
— goodwill —E 20 = 414,222
— receivables subject to ECL —TEAME ARIERTH
FEYFRIR 2,568 83,931
Equity-settled share option expense T 45 BB AR R 2 = (1,017)
Amortisation of intangible assets & BN = 2,574
Depreciation of property, plant Y%~ R &
and equipment HfEITE 17 414,843 515,154
Fair value gains on wEYEATE
investment properties & - (200)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE MRS
and equipment &5 2,470 6,356
Amortisation of prepaid TR T 1o AE & FRIEHE 8
lease payment 19 15,121 13,261
Provision against inventories FERE 24,688 62,825
Asset related government grants & E MR R R AT B (93,501) (160,220)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 11,33 - (1,693,511)
Gain on disposal of equity interests SR A N Al IR ES
in associates 8 - (438,106)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & AT i S 1R B e
investments 8 - (435,735)
Operating cash flows before LB EREBRIACE
movements in working capital BERE 1,168,169 995,514
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 48 &nE X

O
For the Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z 20184 12 31 HILFfE

2018 2017
20184 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
(Restated)
(#&&E7)
Increase in contract liabilities BHBEEEM 312,048 =
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =FEGgm, m (382,576) 169,551
(Increase)/decrease in accounts FEURBRFR (38:00), R >
receivables (5,856) 172,366
Increase in prepayments, deposits TEREIE -« Re REM
and other receivables JE U SR IEHE I (36,618) (17,973)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due CIE N EINGIVE S
from fellow subsidiaries (3Em), (1,271) 102,149
Decrease in an amount due from 5 e S UYL N
the ultimate holding company R = 8,412
Increase in an amount due from the HEERA TR
immediate holding company N - (3)
Decrease/(increase) in an amount due HAabRAE A R RO
from other related party ($0) 96,064 (346,116)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due B B8 A R) FEFE AR AR BR R K
from non-controlling shareholders B, ()
of subsidiaries 4,722 (4,440)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due Bt N ARk (3h0),/
from associates N (10,438) 13,122
Decrease in accounts and bills FE A AR R B SR HR Rk >
payables (324,047) (451,701)
Increase in other payables and HAbfE SR R ERT A&
accruals N 634,059 470,855
Increase/(decrease) in amounts USEES ) ENGIE R
due to fellow subsidiaries #hn, CRd) 63,178 (413,029)
Decrease in an amount due to R EZHFERR N BRI
the ultimate holding company Vo - (19,673)
(Decrease)/increase in an amount R H Ath B A R 5RIE
due to other related party G A,/ (75,454) 120,158
Increase in amounts due to NN ENGIELR 2T 4
non-controlling shareholders FRIEHE N
of subsidiaries 3,525 4,061
Increase/(decrease) in amounts IREgE N B FRIBRE N,
due to associates R ) 53,764 (1,055)
Cash generated from operations REEBRB 2 HE 1,499,269 802,198
Interest paid BIHE (74,835) (88,488)
Mainland China income tax paid BB AR ETS (149,896) (266,677)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING KERES 2R F5
ACTIVITIES 1,274,538 447,033

China Foods Limited
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018 &= 2018412 31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Biar AR¥T T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(&E5)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received B U F 8 8 5,023 16,086
Withdrawal of pledged bank IREE HEIRERI T 5K
deposits 16,046 64,694
Placement of pledged bank deposits 12 IEIFRITER (17,583) (39,356)
Dividends received from associates 2 UkEs 2 N FIRR S - 28,617
Dividends received from BRAIMHEERE ZIRE
available-for-sale investments - 44011
Mainland China income tax paid HEEHENRBEAL
on investing activities PSR (444,868) (22,784)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEZE - BB KR
plant and equipment Fr4S 5008 5,577 8,975
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE BEX
equipment B (686,305) (675,880)
Receipt of government grants WEI BT BD 87,750 176,037
Proceeds from disposal of equity S N a TS
interests in associates I8 — 483,571
Proceeds from disposal of & ] SR B TS
available-for-sale investments AR = 597,053
Acquisition of subsidiaries UG BE BB A A) 32 = (2,946,442)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMW B A B TS Ia
subsidiaries 8,33 - 4,871,387
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BEEE(FTA)FEEE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEE (1,034,360) 2,605,969
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEES
New bank loans raised BEEFILIRITER - 3,170,749
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIRITIEN 34 (590,120) (3,835,326)
Repayments of other borrowings EIEE A EK — (12,320)
Contribution from a non-controlling /B A R SRR AR AR B AL 3R
shareholder of a subsidiary - 36,000
Dividends paid BRI E 34 (167,628) (2,402,844)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ElnENGIE 2
shareholders of subsidiaries SR 34 (71,258) (118,625)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BEEBATARIR ST
ACTIVITIES (829,006) (3,162,366)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERRELEEERRD
CASH EQUIVALENTS = (588,828) (109,364)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R1A1BZRE KRS
1 JANUARY EEER 832,063 1,013,476
Effect of foreign exchange rate RSB E
changes - (72,049)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS M12A31B2EBER
AT 31 DECEMBER He%&EERRTT
REPRESENTED BY BANK EBREERE
BALANCES AND CASH 243,235 832,063
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is a subsidiary of China Foods (Holdings)
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), the ultimate holding company is COFCO
Corporation, which is a state-owned enterprise registered in the
Peoples Republic of China (the “PRC").

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in processing,
bottling and distribution of sparkling beverage products, and
distribution of still beverage products.

The primary economic environment for the Group entities is
Mainland China. It is Renminbi (“RMB”) that mostly influences
the performance of the Group entities and the underlying
transactions, events and conditions relevant to the Group
entities. Accordingly, the functional currency of the Company
has been changed from Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) into RMB
retrospectively. The presentation currency of the consolidated
financial statements is also changed from HKD to RMB in the
current year. Comparative figures have been re-presented in
RMB.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group had
net current liabilities of RMB2,467,940,000 at the end of the
reporting period. In preparing these consolidated financial
statements, the Directors have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group.
Taking into account, inter alia, (i) the unutilised loan facilities
at the end of the reporting period, and (ii) the expected net
cash inflows generated from the Group’s operations for the
next twelve months. The Directors are of the opinion that the
Group will be able to meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due. Accordingly, the Directors consider that the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis is appropriate.

China Foods Limited

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 12 A31 HILFE

DNAREHR

FRERMERRRIIARA] &—
FRBREFMAIZERETLR
A) o NN A Z it EE & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

ARR TR B M B R B B RE AL
ZHERMER) BRARZMEA
Al ARAEFR(EFDRB &
REBRABRRPEARLME ([
BEMOBEERTREEBRA
=l

RAFE - KRR REHB AR (GiE
[AR&EE)2ENT - HMRDHTK
RBERARD T SRR ER

AEEERNTIREERBETENR
o ARE(TAREDZEEEZER
SEEENRARANKERENIAR
X5 FHERRANER - Bt - K
~EYeEBERBT([EIT]) BN
BE /AR - HRGE P BEHRERA
SIMEBENAFERETEERAR
% o LBEFUAARKETD -

mREE

REAEERBEHRARDEBTF
28 AR 2 467,940,000 T © ABTBEE
B iR Ea S EERE - EREL
SRAMKHREE  EECEBESE
AEEMBRREHARNRBES -
EEER (HREE) () RRSHRHEA
FERMNBERRE  R>IDAEEBRR
T = A 33 R A = SR TS T EE A R TR AR
BeRANFE - EFRA A5EE
BEENEBSARE Bt EFR
BIRFHECEERER I ERE I
BEDBEE -



O.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 75 R % B 5

©)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily
Effective for the Current Year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue and
the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the Standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
Revenue and the related interpretations.

3.
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RAFERIER 2B BUBRS
%2 B 37 5T RRAEFT A

RAEE > AEEGREANATHEE
BEMAS((BEEMAE]) R
gzzéi’éﬂﬁ‘%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ'ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&ﬂ%ﬂ

EEUEREE  £@BTA

F9%

EEUEREEN  BEANRARMAREER

F15%

B (BARHRE IEXHRBHNRE

ZEBZEE)

-REE2%

ERHMBRELEN UAROAEBHNINZS

B 2% (17T A) DB RS

ERUEREEN  ERRSHMBREERSE

EVEACHEN) OSSR T AR
A RS ERE
4ERBAY

EEe:ENFE28 (EAEBHBREEL

% (BRI A) 2014 Z 2016 FEH
ZEEBE 2 —5p

EBesElE40 REMEESR

¥ (BT A)

BT XA E SN RAFERERES

B S R 2 $ 5] RIERT A B AR
BRAFERBEFEZHMBRER
HR K,/ Rz ELRE W ERERAES
BN EBEREATE -

BB BHREERE IS KA EFE
HIHTHA
AEEERAFEERERETBHB
WEERF 155 - BEMBREER
£ 15MA TEBGEERIE 1857 1K
ARIRRAREE -

AEBEEPRBE LN HHREEL
F£ 155 MUK EAZELZ RE
T ENVIRER B BH2018F1A1H
HERR o IR M B 2 (A Z BN
PR BB N o WA e W B DI L A
£ s RIBRABM B REERE
I55RMBIR IR - ARED B EZEY
720184 1 A 1 B HARTHREE KB W
FERZZER - Itk - BT HEERK
PVREEBIEE B S ERIE 185 IA
;S_Z*B FAREM RN B EREL L
X o

Gy

139

C



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 B %53l % MY 5+

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily
Effective for the Current Year (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The Group recognises revenue from sale of beverage products.
Information about the Group’s performance obligation and the
accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are
disclosed in notes 6 and 4 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

The following adjustment was made to the amounts recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January
2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included.

3. BRI REETTBBMBR
HER ([ EFBMBREER])

(&)

RAFERHERZEBYHRE
X ET RAERT A (48

BB HEERE 15 BEXKEEFE
HIBIHA ()
AEEBHERHERERLA - F
BAAKERERT BN RE LS
I5SREL BRSNS ERRD 5
WERHIEG &4 -

BRI B B9 BRI 15547
ELZHERE
1201871 A 1A 2 GAMBRRRE
RRUTHEZ 28 - RAEEDY
&2 HA T REER -

Carrying amounts
previously
reported at

Carrying amounts
under HKFRS 15

31 December 2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018

R 2017 & R B

12A318 WEERSE 155

FEIE 2% M2018F1A1H

HERE(E EX K] HRRE(E

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Other payables and accruals — EA e 78 M fEH & (F 3,090,958 (1,029,638) 2,061,320
Contract liabilities AEREE - 1,029,638 1,029,638

Previously included in other payables and accruals,
RMB1,029,638,000 related to advance payment received from
customer for purchase of the Group’s products. This balance
is reclassified to contract liabilities upon application of HKFRS
15.

The following table summaries the impacts of applying HKFRS
15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018 and its consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the current year for each of the line items
affected. Line items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included.

China Foods Limited

FRET AR BN FIAREFAE
F - AR 1,029,638,000 TLELFLEE B
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE =
3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. ER#HIRLEERMBER
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER ([ FBMKREEL )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (4&)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily
Effective for the Current Year (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

RAFERIER B BUBRS
AR ET RAERT A (48)

BB BHEERE 15K EEFE
HIBTHA ()

BB BB B ERIE 15557

(continued) EEZZERZE ()
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position HEAMERRERNEE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustment HKFRS 15
et K FER
BB
HEER
e FE FISHNEEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARETT ARETT ARETT
Other payables and accruals £t & {508 K
fEstaE (a) 2,695,379 1,341,686 4,037,065
Contract liabilities BRBE 1,341,686  (1,341,686) -
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit and loss HEEERBRNTE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustment HKFRS 15
Tat KR pER
BB
HEAER
N2 # FEE E IS
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HizF AREFIT AREBT T ARBT T
Revenue WA 15,648,051 143,303 15,791,354
Distribution and DI RHERY
selling expenses (b) 4,467,172 143,303 4,610,475
Profit for the year FEHM 576,365 - 576,365

FERRARAA
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

3. BRI REETTBBMBR
HER ([ EFBMBREER])

(&)

REEERFEN 2 EBU KBRS
ERIHE] RIEFT A ()
BB BIREERE 15 FXEEFE

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily
Effective for the Current Year (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(continued) ATV (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 BN EH & B IR 2R 15 55 A7
(continued) ELEZTERE ()

HEEHESRERNTE

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

142

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustment HKFRS 15
et K e
EEITS
2R
N2 3R FIEE F 155 SEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AREBTIT AREFT ARETT
(c)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES meE
Increase other payables HoAh FEAS FRIA K
and accruals e & EE (a) 634,059 312,048 946,107
Increase in contract liabilities & #)& &N 312,048 (312,048) -
Cash generated from KEXEBFS 2 RE
operations 1,499,269 - 1,499,269

(a)

(b)

(c)

RMB1,341,686,000 related to advance payment
received from customer for purchase of the Group’s
products would have been included in other payables
and accruals prior to application of HKFRS 15. Under
HKFRS 15, this balance is classified as contract liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018. Cash flow movements have been
adjusted accordingly.

RMB143,303,000 related to promotion expense for
promotion activities performed by the distributors would
have been included in distribution and selling expenses
prior to application of HKFRS 15. Under HKFRS 15, this
amount reduces revenue in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
December 2018, movements in working capital have
been computed based on opening consolidated statement
of financial position as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed
above.

China Foods Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily
Effective for the Current Year (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the Related Amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
i) the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, ii) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for
financial assets and, iii) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9. i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January
2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits, without
restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 4.

3.

PR RS S 3T BB ISR
EER (wer B Rs L)
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BB B IREERE N T RRME
BBEET

RAFEE  AEBCRBEEMBR
ERAESF @ T ARHEMERNE
AUBREEINEET - BARPBRE
EREOFH N EMEENSRAED
DENFE I EREENTARER
BR (FAMERBRD & i) —RY
HEEDESIAFRE °

AEEDBETBMEREEDFE R
FIT & B9 38 16 SR R B8 B 7 R 4
BIZE95% - BN nEE K2R E (B
TERE BRI T RRIE) B E A
R20184F1 A1 B (WHEER B ED) MA
BUHMERAN TR MUESZERTE
FERMN 201841 A1 HEBUSHER M T
B - 2017412 A31 0 7 BRE{EE2018
#£1 A1 B8 ZEEERNEER TR
R R R WESE| L EER o

At - LRERTIRIER A G5 2R
FVHFeRMTE - BRAKTERHE
BETHRERAIEEALE -

EREEVHHRELREIRELNS
AR BN MEES -

Gy

143

C



144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 B %53l % MY 5+

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily
Effective for the Current Year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the Related Amendments
(continued)

Impairment under ECL model

As at 1 January 2018, the Directors reviewed and assessed
the Group’s existing financial assets for impairment using
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9. The application of ECL model has
no material impact on retained profits or other comprehensive
income at 1 January 2018.

Summary of effect arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

The application of HKFRS 9 has no material impact on the
classification and measurement (including impairment) of
financial assets and financial liabilities at 1 January 2018.

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property
meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by evidence that a change in use has
occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations other
than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in
use, and that a change in use is possible for properties under
construction (i.e. a change in use is not limited to completed
properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the
classification of certain properties based on conditions existing
at that date. There is no impact to the classification at 1
January 2018.

China Foods Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs in Issue but not yet

Effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Leases!
Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments!

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the Directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs in Issue but not yet
Effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to
be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in
relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will
be presented as financing cash flows by the Group, upfront
prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented as
investing or operating cash flows in accordance to the nature,
as appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs in Issue but not yet
Effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB80,911,000 as disclosed
in note 36(a). A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 B %53l % MY 5+
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs in Issue but not yet
Effective (continued)
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide additional guidance with the objective of assisting
entities to determine whether a transaction should be
accounted for as a business combination or an asset
acquisition. Furthermore, an optional concentration test is
introduced to permit a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The amendments will be mandatorily effective to the Group
prospectively for acquisition transactions completed on or after
1 January 2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgements. The amendments also align the
definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective
for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e |level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business Combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value.

TEETER ()

EBE 6

WX BRAWBEAR - 556
hEE s RERATENS  BER
SEMEREE  AKERRKET
RITEA AFTAERE R RSB R H%
18 W B 07 42 1l P B 1T AR RO LB B
Hz A FEAMAE - WIBHEEKA
—RRELRERRRER

RURE B R - P RE mI SRl & & S A
AEERB IR AFERER - ERE
B GETERIE 125 S AR M st
BRRERIAEESR B BRI -

BB R PTER B - SRR
WUIBE T Z B SRR - A RWEETT A
ERA 2 RWBBE T B () 2 RF
B 248 - ST URE Rl R & &
FiAERERKB RN FR =8
FTE o MEFFHER - PTE R B
BEEEMAERBEZFRSNATEER
RE - FFEBIERE RGBT 2 E
A8 KRBT AERA 2K K
B (mAE) 2 2 HEEM - ]
ZRABERSRERSRERE R

Ny
S o
T

BIREAGREDZLE TEHSE AR
OB RIS R L ) 2 G FE AP B X A
FREE 2 JFRGIE RS - AR IE
2R AR 1R LL ) 0 16 4R WK B T AT 8
BEFEZCHEASHAIRATEE

HE

151



152

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 B %53l % MY 5+

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal (or any of the cash-
generating unit within group of cash-generating units in which
the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described as below.

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assess whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant
associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for a presented on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

4. FEETHER(E)

(continued)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such as
volume related discount, the Group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled using either (a)
the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount,
depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment
of whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in circumstances during
the reporting period.

Consideration Payable to a Customer

Consideration payable to a customer includes rebate for
promotional activities at customers’ location that the Company
pays, or expects to pay, to the customer. Consideration
payable to a customer also includes credit or other items that
can be applied against amounts owed to the Company. The
Group accounts for consideration payable to a customer as a
reduction of the transaction price and, therefore, of revenue as
the payment is not exchange for distinct good or service that
the customer transfers to the Group. The Group recognises
such reduction of revenue when (or as) the later of either of the
following events occurs: (a) the Group recognises revenue for
the transfer of the related goods or services to the customer;
and (b) the Group pays or promises to pay the consideration
(even if the payment is conditional on a future event).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue Recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as Lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold Land

Payment made for leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing Costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Retirement Benefit Costs

Payments to state-managed defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Short-term and Other Long-term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax, because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, and plant,
machinery and equipment for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below) are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis. The annual rates of depreciation are
as follows:

2% 10 18%
6% 10 33.3%

Buildings
Plants, machinery and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment Properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on Tangible and Intangible Assets other
than Goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is
an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial Assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in

note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value

through profit or loss.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a

financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including accounts receivables, other receivables, due from
related parties, pledged bank deposits and bank balances.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk when
it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’
as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL effects on unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in receivable,
the cash accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
basis:

e  Ageing;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including accounts receivables, deposits and other
receivables, due from related parties, pledged bank deposits,
and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period of 50 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of accounts receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When an account receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Liabilities and Equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liability
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, borrowings and amounts due to related
parties are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only
when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liabilities derecognised and the consideration paid
or payable is recognised in profit and loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINLY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINLY
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Recognition of Intangible Assets with Indefinite Useful Lives
related to Franchise Rights

The Group has been granted franchise rights relating to
bottling and distribution in certain territories in Mainland China.
The Group believes the franchise rights will continue to be
renewed at each expiration date and have therefore assigned
indefinite useful lives to those franchise rights. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of franchise rights with indefinite useful lives that can be
recognized, based upon the probability of renewal at expiration
date and future economic benefits that can flow to the Group.
Further details are contained in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of Goodwill and Franchise Rights with Indefinite
Useful Life

The Group determines whether goodwill and franchise rights
with indefinite useful life is impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill and the franchise
rights with indefinite useful life is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
budgeted growth margins from the cash-generating unit and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount
of goodwill and franchise rights with indefinite useful life
at 31 December 2018 was RMB3,506,274,000 (2017:
RMB3,506,274,000). More details are given in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B S aH A et R RE M
HYBB 2RI (4])
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FHEANEERAEATENERH
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AT ATAS SR 1G5 < A AEIR T A
ERHFR < BIEEE
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TR ERFH - EEEEXNHEAR
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[REAEAFRAFFEERITE -
#E— FHIBHN R A MR M0 -

T AR R 2 ERHRR

AT BEEERERZRKEEZRE
RN E AR ER E A E R EF T
FRABARE - Al gt @ EH AN T — A
MBRFEREEENBEREEFLEX

/% -

BT R ALAE R F ] (& FHF B 2 A
A
AEBELEFETRHERAERTE
AIERAFR LTS HIER
EBE-EHETEHEAEHERAEERT
AT EHEEEMENRRE
ZHEEEEEMNZFREE - Bt
FAEEMNS  A5EFHTERES
EfBUMNBEAEERREKREE
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AFPZEFEEEZEREAAR
¥ 3,506,274,000 70 (2017 F « AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND 5. BESTHEMNGT TREY

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINLY
(continued)

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
(continued)

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2018 was RMB16,212,000 (2017: RMB27,334,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2018
was RMB179,520,000 (2017: RMB127,305,000). Further
details are contained in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REVENUE
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

HYBBSE 2R ()

RASE BURE AR R i ()

A REE

fiaf P R A e A1) T AR FOORUES 18 - Rl @t
AERRABBRERRLENIAEE °
EE A THRNRLERIAERESGE -
RE TR BARIE AT AL B R R EER T s
) 0 s ] e BB 52 R R PR AR A5 =1 813K
BEVE L ERHIE - R R IAEE
BB IAEENR20184F12 A
31 HMERE(E A AR 16,212,0007T
(20174 : AR¥27,334,0007T) © R
2018F 12 A3l AW AERHIEEE S
A AR 179,520,000 7T (2017 £ -
AR ®127,305,0007T) © #— 515
N A PIEHMRMEES0 -

L'ON

A. EIE2018F12A31HILF
E
BREADBRASE

For the year

ended
31/12/2018
HZ2018%F
12A31H
ILEE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Types of goods (Gl

Sparkling drinks Variie 11,427,782
Juices £t 2,255,625
Water PINCEE 1,319,519
Others Eih 645,125
Total et 15,648,051

Timing of revenue recognition FERR UL A B B
A point in time —IRMEETA 15,648,051

China Foods Limited
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6. REVENUE (continued)

A. For the year ended 31 December 2018

(continued)

The Group sells sparkling and still beverage products to
its customers, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customer’s specific location. Following
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. Payment
in advance or payment on delivery is typically required
from customers, except for certain customers granted
with credit term ranging from 7 to 90 days upon delivery.

All Group’s sale of goods are for periods of one year or
less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

B. For the year ended 31 December 2017

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold
during the year, after allowance for returns and trade
discounts.

OPERATING SEGMENT

After the wine segment, kitchen food segment and the
others segment were disposed of during 2017, the Group’s
revenue and consolidated results are mainly derived from
processing, bottling and distribution of sparkling and still
beverages, which is regarded as a single operating segment
in a manner consistent with the nature of the products and
production process, the types of customers for their products,
the methods used to distribute their products, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Accordingly, no segment
information is presented.

Geographical information

All revenue of the continuing operation of the Group is derived
from customers operating in Mainland China and over 90%
of the Group’s non-current assets, other than deferred tax
assets, are situated in Mainland China, hence no geographical
information is presented in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments.

Information about major customers

During the current year, there was no revenue derived from
a single customer which accounted for 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue (2017: Nil).

A (48)

A. BEE2018F12HA31HILF
E(#)
AEBRERZFHEERIKETE
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K R an R MR Z AR - BRE
ERBRRNFIEQHEER
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RRERIRK

B ARNEMmEESE —FX
FREBEATNK - BEVBRSE
ERIZE ISR AFFROERELR
RIEV A 5 (BRI E -

B. E£2017F 12831 H L%

i3
WATRFRHERmBEZEBER
EREBRERBESITHNFE -
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R2017FREHEERENH  BER
an D B R B A 0 BB 1R - AREE R UA
MFAEETREREMT ~ Kl RD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R I 5
o
o For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE
8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. HtW ARz
An analysis of other income and gains from the continuing FIE S S TSR E U A R 5 4T
operation is as follows: W
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
BZ2018%F HZE2017F
12H31H 12 H31H
IEFEE LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
(Restated)
(geE=5)
Continuing operation FE L ZETS
Other income EHAUA
Government grants (note i) ERATHERG (PR 93,501 85,304
Compensation income (note ii) fEMA (B EEii) 52,933 906
Sale of by-products and scrap items SHE BlEm M ERIER 23,831 18,713
Commission income RINT U A 23,286 84,311
Bank interest income RITHEHBA 5,023 11,348
Gross rental income HEW A BT 2,356 2,937
Dividend income from AR ERERNRE
available-for-sale investments WA - 44,011
Others EA 23,354 24,411
224,284 271,941
Gains e
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB A RIS = 805,367
Gain on disposal of equity interests HEBENRER
in associates W5 = 438,106
Gain on disposal of HEHLERE Y
available-for-sale investments sk = 435,735
Gain from changes in fair value of WEYHF 2 A TE
investment properties FEples - 200
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment FE 4,353 =
Net foreign exchange gains b = KR F - 1,390
4,353 1,680,798
228,637 1,952,739

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

note i:

note ii:

Various government grants were granted for investments in
certain provinces in Mainland China in which the Company’s
subsidiaries operate. Government grants for which related
expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included in
deferred income (non-current portion) and other payables
and accruals (current portion) in the consolidated statement
of financial position, respectively. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

Compensation income represents amount received from
the holding company of non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company for system related expenses
incurred.

Htp WA R Wz ()
Hiati: FEEERESFRFTHL - A

EREAX N AIEFEAMETE
BB R FIAEE - R R
LR BT B E 5 5 BB A
BRI M2 A BTEIE A (FEE
BEflr) RA M EN SRR R R
1B BE D) A - ZE B
AR EZ IR HFER °

Biatii : FHIE WA FE GRS AR <

AR 2 7] — ZK [T B 2 Al I
PRRR 2 R 2 ARG AR -

9. FINANCE COSTS & KA
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
BZE2018F HZE2017 F
12H31H 12A31H
IEFE LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T AREFIT
(Restated)
(#e&E75)
Continuing operation BFEREEK
Interest on bank loans SRITERZHE 74,835 87,548
Interest on loans from non-controlling [ B)EENCIES 2 S
shareholders of a subsidiary B2 A E - 796
74,835 88,344
FERMAEMRAT 201844
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

10. FREHR X i

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
HZ2018%F EHZE2017F
12A31H 12A31H
IEFE LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(&x&E75))
Continuing operation BEREER
Current tax BNHEARHTE
PRC enterprise income tax B EFTSHR 213,295 600,262
(Over) under provision in prior years BAEFE (BEEE),
PRC enterprise income tax BETR
B EETIS TR (1,083) 1,427
Deferred tax IRIEFIE
Current year ERIFE (50,422) (12,901)
161,790 588,788

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the
“Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was
gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime, the first HKD2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HKD2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HKD2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HKD2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

China Foods Limited

MN201843 A21 B @ BB A2 EB
2017 F R (18R]) (B 75%) (&HI &
) ([MEFIEZR ) 5| AFSFERRH
ZARBIE RN 2018 F 3 A 28 HEE K
BEE S WHRIRBTIEER - BiEF
EBHMAH  AEREBREEE2EHS
B 7T M 5 1R 8.25% HI T R T - #B
B2 &S ToHYm A IR 16.5% K &
B - TRHAMAHNERERNE
EEENEAGEER16.5% 28—
i R FR I8 o

EE=RR BFEHMMARSGIRE M
Z e BEERA M RAIL EE AR
%Rtk BAFERE  B2EEAT
Z AT SR i M1)12 8.25% st E & B
MFH - M2 B BATTIA L 2 AT R
Bs MR 16.5% st H BB RIS o
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B h B E A B EME R 25%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE =
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FREBIZH ()
Pursuant to the approvals issued by the State Administration R #E 2013 F RMERBE D
of Taxation of the PRC in 2013, the Company and certain of 2R ARFRHETH B R RIEER
its subsidiaries are regarded as Chinese Resident Enterprises ATPREERAE(AEIPEERD
(collectively the “CREs”) and relevant enterprise income tax %)) RFEBBACFEAEHEEKR
policies of the PRC are applicable to the CREs commencing 2013F1A1IHEBEBARNFEERE
from 1 January 2013. %o
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit AREFIE S ] EHLR S B R R P B
before tax per consolidate statement of profit or loss as follows: FriS 3t Al T'J/FEJuﬂEIJ—@Z WRPTR
Year ended 31/12/2018 Year ended 31/12/2017
BZE2018F12A31 ALFE  BZE2017F12A31HIEEFE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥ETR AREFTT
(Restated)
(18%5))
Profit before tax from SEICE RS 2 AT
continuing operation 738,155 2,211,337
Profit before tax from ISR 2 B Ang
discontinued operations - 419,968
738,155 2,631,305
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMEFE A 184,539 25.0 665,831 25.3
Income tax at concessionary rate  REEHRRE 2 Fi{5H (4,346) (0.6) 7) -
Tax effect of share of profit AEEE D ERMZ
of associates MG E (11,042) (1.5) (10,102) (0.4)
Tax effect of income not taxable BRAGME R E
for tax purpose (14,656) (2.0) (17,933) (0.7)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A1 B 2 Hifs e 2
for tax purpose 1,821 0.2 176,758 6.7
(Over)/under provision in respect  BAFE (BEEE)/
of prior year BETR (1,083) (0.1) 10,509 04
Adjustments of deferred tax of BAEBREEHIE . B
previous periods 11,161 15 10,866 04
Utilisation of tax losses previously — EIR%RIABER ZFE
not recognised Ba (6,345) (0.9) (216,270) (8.2)
Tax losses not recognised RERTIE 1,741 0.2 14811 0.6

Income tax expenses and effective  ANFEZETEH S H K
tax rate for the year B = 161,790 21.9 634,463 24.1

Tax charge from continuing operation %—*ﬂ“,@%%ﬁ%?ﬁ*ﬁ W&

at the effective rate HEZHESH 161,790 21.9 588,783 224
Tax charge from discontinued IR E
operations at the effective rate er 7 BES - - 45,675 17

FERMEMRAT 201844 179
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
RMB11,042,000 (2017: RMB10,102,000) is included in
“Share of profits of associates” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(1) Disposal of the kitchen food segment

On 25 May 2017, COFCO Food Sales & Distribution
Co., Ltd. (“COFCO Food Sales & Distribution”), a former
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an equity transfer agreement with COFCO Fortune
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, pursuant to which COFCO Food Sales &
Distribution agreed to transfer its entire equity interest
in COFCO Fortune Food Sales & Distribution Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Group’s then kitchen food segment
for a total consideration of RMB1,050 million (the
“Transaction”). The Transaction was completed in
September 2017.

The net assets of the kitchen food segment as at the date

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

10. FrEH < (&)

Ba AR EEHIR AR 11,042,000
7T (2017 4 : AR¥10,102,0007T) *
TRt AR BERERT [EEBE QT
i

11, RIEREER

(1) HEFERRD
201758258 © AR & K
REEMNBARTERMEHEE
RAR([HEEHE]) BARR A
" [F Z MY B A R R B m iR
RARIKZENBARRCOFCO
Fortune Holdings Limited 5732 —
MREEE R - Bt PREE
HRZEEEN AL B E R
ERmOEBHMEB A AT IEREG
MREGEHEER AT/ IR
e REEBEAEARKE]LOBOE
BL([ZR5]) - ZR 51K 2017
F9 AR °

BERmABRHEBHNEE

of disposal were as follows: FEAT

RMB’000
ARETIT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE KRR 5,054
Inventories FE 779,904
Accounts and bills receivables G YN ES 465,010
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIE  Be R EmEKGRIE 186,892
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEIIENGIVE 76,240
Bank balances and cash R1THER MRS 23,606
Accounts and bills payables FET BRI 25 (51,324)
Other payables and accruals EfENAFIERETAE (550,299)
Due to fellow subsidiaries REIRHIB R RIFKIE (902,407)
32,676
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation B AR H A S 2 Wi 1,017,336
1,050,012

Satisfied by: LATRB A BT
Cash B 1,050,012

China Foods Limited
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11. R IEREEK (])
(1) Disposal of the kitchen food segment (continued) (1) HEFEERD I (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ERHERERMIPHBZEER
in respect of the disposal of kitchen food segment is as ReEEBEBRERAFBELSTWN
follows: s 8
Year ended
31/12/2017
BZE 20174
12H31H
IEFE
RMB’000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(F=&:71)
Cash consideration BeRE 1,050,012
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of REERRE MRS EEIAR (23,606)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of FRALERIEREEB 2 RER
discontinued operation ReEEBRRAFRE 1,026,406

FERBAERAE 20184 181
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o
o For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE
11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11, RIERE XK ()
(1) Disposal of the kitchen food segment (continued) (1) HEFERERD I (&)
The results of the kitchen food segment for the period HERMDHBR2017F1AE
from January 2017 to September 2017 are presented 20179 A ILEARMEE 25 1A
below: e
Year ended
31/12/2017
HZE2017F
12H31H
IEFE
RMB’000
AREF T
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Revenue A 8,572,980
Cost of sales THEKR AR (7,797,931)
Other income and gains E A A R s 3,147
Distribution and selling expenses DR EHE (753,018)
Administrative expenses FTE S (7,080)
Other expenses and losses E Atz i k&1 (35)
Profit before tax from discontinued operation IR\ RS TS 2 BR B AT A 18,063
Income tax expense Frf8Ris (4,221)
Profit for the year from discontinued operation 4% -4 & %55 2 [ 5 Kl 13,842
Post-tax gain on disposal of HER RS ERL 2 Bkl
discontinued operation 1,017,336
Profit for the year attributable to IR TG 2 F s F
discontinued operation 1,031,178
Profit before tax attributable to BRI R TS IEAE 2 R A& A
discontinued operation 1,035,399
Income tax expense attributable to RIS S TG 2 B R
discontinued operation (4,221)
Profit for the year attributable to IR TS AL 2 T A
discontinued operation 1,031,178

1 82 China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE =

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11, R IEREEK (8])
(1) Disposal of the kitchen food segment (continued) (1) HEFERERD I (&)
The net cash flows incurred by the kitchen food segment BERMmD IMN2017F1AZE
for the period from January 2017 to September 2017 are 20179 A ILEAMEERRE TR
as follows: SFFENE
Year ended
31/12/2017
HZE2017F
12H31H
IEFE
RMB’000
ARETTT
(Restated)
(F&E5)
Operating activities KR ED (164,297)
Investing activities HEEED (3,291)
Net cash outflow RE L5 (167,588)
Earnings per share: BRAR :
Basic, attributable to HAK - RMB36.86 cents
discontinued operation IR TS AR#36.86 9
Diluted, attributable to discontinued operation BE o IRIRREERS N/A i R
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share STEAR IR S ERE
attributable to discontinued operation are based on: ANEERNTHER
Year ended 2017
BE2017FILEE
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RARES AERR R RMB1,031,178,000
the Company from discontinued operation EBOFER R AR#1,031,178,0007T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for HERERRFNE < LBk
the purpose of basic earnings per share (note 16) a2 (fizE 16) 2,797,223,396
(2) Disposal of the wine segment and the others (2) HEBEMmESERAEMD I
segment
Ong 16 October 2017, the Company entered into an 201746 10H 16 A » KA A&
equity transfer agreement with China Foods (Holdings) AAREEERARFER R
Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company, (FZERR) BR QA RT3 — 1) Bk 4
pursuant to which the Company agreed to transfer its EEGE - Bt ARFREHE
entire equity interest in COFCO Wines & Spirits Holdings FENARBRES B REMD
Limited, COFCO Premier Brands Limited, Global Lander EBHIM B A R RBEERA R
Limited and Superb Vision Limited, comprising of ~|] ~ COFCO Premier Brands
the wine segment and the others segment for a total Limited » RFZEAR A A K&
consideration of RMB1,187 million (the “Disposal”), Superb Vision Limited 892 2%
and the Company would receive payment of RMB3,107 O REZEEARARKLISTE
million from China Foods (Holdings) Limited before the BrT(HEFHE]) EAXAQAEE
date of completion of the Disposal for the settlement of HREHESETKAEFBER
loans owned to the Company by the relevant members m (%) BR A RMEA R
of those companies to be disposed of. The Disposal was JI07EETLUEEZELER
completed in December 2017. RIMEEK B ARG R A RFINE
Ao HEFER2017F12A %
B o

FEARERAR 20184 183
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11. RUEREXK (F)

(2) Disposal of the wine segment and the others 2 HEBREIRBRHM DI
segment (continued) (#&)
The net assets of the wine segment and the others BB R EM YR HER

184

segment as at the date of disposal were as follows: R EEFEPT ¢

RMB’000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(€<=270D)
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB K& 1,351,536
Investment properties BB 9,300
Prepaid lease payments Ef L e 141,970
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment 473 - BE M & & 2 T+ 5008 1,173
Other intangible assets EfEpEE 7,183
Interests in associates REE R R ZIRE 10,397
Deferred tax assets REFIBEE 4,680
Inventories FE 1,345,465
Accounts and bills receivables U BR T R A 487,220
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERFIE © e MEAEUEIE 404,591
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEINEVNEIVEN 60,672
Due from the ultimate holding company b S NCIVSE 2,571
Prepaid tax TEBHIE 3,565
Pledged bank deposits EIPERTTIER 10,937
Bank balances and cash R1TEB MRS 1,447,794
Accounts and bills payables FER IR R R (281,705)
Other payables and accruals HEMEMRIEREGTAE (351,574)
Due to fellow subsidiaries UG EL N ENGIE S (80,312)
Tax liabilities MIEBE (4,867)
Deferred income PRIEYA (71,927)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE (22,210)
Non-controlling interests eI i (54,373)
4,422 086
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations SR RS TS 2 B518 (129,192)
4,292,894

Satisfied by: AT RAERT -
Cash B 4,292,894
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(o,
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(2) Disposal of the wine segment and the others
segment (continued)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of the wine segment and the
others segment is as follows:

11. RIERERK (&)

(2) (tﬂg’é))ﬁ?nﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁf&ﬁ%ﬁ
FELERRES B REMH I
Z2HEeRBELEEBBEAAFE
DATIOR

Year ended
31/12/2017
HZE2017F
12H31H
IEFE
RMB’000
AREFIT
(Restated)
(&E5)

Cash consideration HeERE

4,292,894

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of REERZREMAEEHEER (1,447,794)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FRELERIEREEB 2 RER
respect of disposal of discontinued operations REFBEIER MAFRE 2,845,100

PEEREMRART 201844
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R I 5
o
o For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE
11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11, R REEK (8])
(2) Disposal of the wine segment and the others 2 HEEBMmEI DR HMo I
segment (continued) (#&)
The results of the wine segment and the others segment BmE D MR EAM D ERARFEE
for the year are presented below: RIZEEZ5)AT ¢
Year ended
31/12/2017
HZE2017F
12H31H
IEFE
RMB’000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(#e&E5)
Revenue A 2,363,717
Cost of sales SHEA (1,418,116)
Other income and gains E A A Rz 112,761
Distribution and selling expenses DR EHE (831,513)
Administrative expenses T (210,555)
Finance costs BhE AR (144)
Other expenses and losses E Atz i k&8 (502,389)
Loss before tax from discontinued operations IR\ S TS 2 R AT E 1R (486,239)
Income tax expense FrfSRisz (35,620)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 4% |- 4R & 355 2~ <F [ 518 (521,859)
Post-tax loss on disposal of HERIERE XL 2 HBEE
discontinued operations (129,192)
Loss for the year attributable to R E XS IEL 2 FE BB
discontinued operations (651,051)
Loss before tax attributable to RS TSR 2 BRI B R
discontinued operations (615,431)
Income tax expense attributable to RIS S TS G 2 TR
discontinued operations (35,620)
Loss for the year attributable to IR TSR (L 2 FE TR
discontinued operations (651,051)

1 86 China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 75 2R % i 5

(o,

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(2) Disposal of the wine segment and the others

11. RIEEEER (F)
(2 HEERED R HEtD

segment (continued) (#8)
The net cash flows incurred by the wine segment and the B R E A FEE IR
others segment are as follows: SREFHEMOT -
Year ended
31/12/2017
HZE2017F
12H31H
IEFE
RMB’000
ARETTT
(Restated)
(#eE75)
Operating activities KR ED 28,835
Investing activities TEEE (16,308)
Financing activities AhE RS 1,078,864
Net cash inflow REMAFEE 1,091,391
Loss per share: i EE -
Basic, attributable to HA RMB23.27 cents
discontinued operations IR TS AR¥E23.27 7
Diluted, attributable to discontinued operations B8 » 42| P& K N/A T i
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share ETER IR B EHERE
attributable to discontinued operations are based on: AEEEHEEBIER
Year ended
31/12/2017
HE2017F
12H31H
HFE
(Restated)
(s=E751)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of RAREE AERR R RMB651,051,000
the Company from discontinued operations EBMAFEEE AR¥651,051,00075
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for HEREARRFNS
the purpose of basic earnings per share (note 16) 2 EBRIMETHE (M3 16) 2,797,223,396
TERRERAT  2018FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & BA 73R 3% it
o
o For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE
12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. REERF
Profit for the year from continuing operation has been arrived SEREEB 2 FRmF Ty &40
at after charging/(crediting): B (G A) AT B IBIEIER
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
HZE2018% BE20174
12A31H 12A31H
LEE LHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
(Restated)
(&&E71))
(@) Cost of sales (@) SHERA
Cost of inventories sold EHRTFERA 10,082,052 8,648,603
Provision against inventories FERE 24,688 12,520
10,106,740 8,661,123
(b) Other items (b) HttEE
Depreciation of property, plant M - BERERETE
and equipment 414,843 515,154
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR -1 A0 & IR 5 15,121 13,261
Total depreciation and amortisation WEREHESR 429,964 528,415
Capitalised in inventories FEEMNME (25,240) (8,299)
404,724 520,116
Employee benefit expense (including EERMAL (B
directors’ and chief executive’s EERESTBAR
remuneration (note 13)) HE (FI=E13))
Wages and salaries TERES 1,652,192 924,728
Equity-settled share option expense DA 4 E OB RR AR
53 - (1,017)
Pension schemes contributions RIRFTEIE R 230,423 103,197
Auditor’s remuneration T2 EEMET B 1,887 3,652
Impairment property, plant and equipment M - BE REERE 38,181 6,298
Impairment/(reversal) of receivables FEWRIERE, (BEE) 2,568 (1,048)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remunerations for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and

13. EERERITRAEME

RIFE A LR R

REMGROIBE 2
RAEREERFRITBRABHEHT

Companies Ordinance, is as follows: (1 N
(a) Executive Directors (a) BITESE
Mr.
Ms. Mr. Mr. Zhou
Luan Xiuju! ~ Shen Peng? Jiang Guojin® Chenguang*  Mr. Wu Fei® Total
BFEHL!  ANKE? IEEEE? BRAELE*  RRALES @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETR
2018 2018 F
Salaries, allowances and benefits %4 « ZBIREY)
in kind il 1,559 550 - - - 2,109
Discretionary bonuses BfEfta 1,706 570 - - = 2,276
Pension schemes contributions  &/KEH 214 125 125 - - - 250
3,390 1,245 - - - 4,635
2017 2017
Salaries, allowances and benefits 4 « 2B REY
in kind GilkS 1,632 566 1,165 407 770 4,540
Discretionary bonuses BEEa 1,545 294 1,319 237 869 4,264
Equity-seftled share option RSB ERIRERS
expense 8 - - - 7 15
Pension schemes contributions  &{AztElt5x 138 98 221 78 130 665
3,323 958 2,705 722 1,776 9,484
! Ms. Luan Xiuju was appointed as an executive director of g BEZG L FHEZ (FREA LS
the Company with effect from 17 January 2017 and was FTEE 20171817 HE
appointed as the chief executive of the Company with L WEZTBARARE
effect from 29 December 2017. TTBAE » 52017412 A29H
FBAERL o
2 Mr. Shen Peng was appointed as an executive director of 2 N SEEEEFREILEHT
the Company with effect from 29 December 2017. EE - {H2017F12H29 i+
3 Mr. Jiang Guojin resigned as an executive director and S THEEEFHFARRNTE
the chief executive of the Company with effect from 29 ERZEITHALR + 2017 F
December 2017. 12 529 H#EAR -
hEARERAT
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)
% Mr. Zhou Chenguang resigned as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 29 December 2017.

9 Mr. Wu Fei resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 April 2017.

The executive director’s emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(b) Non-Executive Directors

13. EERERITRAEME (&)

(a) MITEE (&)
4 BERASLEFFEARNABITE
% H2017F 1229 H # 4
;yo

5 @ REEEFAALNAINTE
% B2017F4 41 HEELR -

FPRATEEHME /AWEERER
REMAKBEEBE B RS
M -

(b) FHITES

Mr. Mr.

Ma Jianping® Qin Yelong’
BEYEES EEEEET
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT

Ms. Mr.
Xiao Jianping’”  Wang Zhiying? Total
HEYLZt? IzRBE4S st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETRT  ARETR

2018 20184 = = = = =
2017 2017 %
Equity-settled share BnitERRE
option expense 53 6 = - = 6
6 _ _ _ 6

& Mr. Ma Jianping resigned as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 4 January 2019.

7 Mr. Qin Yelong and Ms. Xiao Jianping were appointed as
non—-executive directors of the Company with effect from
17 January 2017.

& Mr. Wang Zhiying resigned as a non—executive director of

the Company with effect from 17 January 2017.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Independent Non—executive Directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

13. EERERITHRAEME (&)

(c) BYFHITES
RERSNBULIFRTEFTZH
THEHIT -

Mr. Paul Mr. Yuen

Mr. Stephen  Mr. Li Hung  Mr. Mok Wai Kenneth Tin Fan,

Edward Clark Kwan, Alfred  Bun, Ben® Etchells™ Francis™ Total

fUfEE ZEHEE REREE GRUEED RRAKE! st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETr ARETR
2018 20185

Fees e 320 320 320 - - 960
2017 20175

Fees e 324 324 112 74 209 1,043

g Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben was appointed as an independent
non—-executive director of the Company with effect from 29
August 2017.

0 Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 1
April 2017.

an Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 29
August 2017.

The independent non—executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

10

11

Vo i ey e RNUNT
VIHHTEE - H2017F8A
29 HFELRL »

BB BT AL R B I
HiTEE  H2017F4 51 HEE

RANELEFEARL B IF
#HiTEE  §2017F8H29H
BEAER

BB ERTEETME REE
ERARREERHERE M
2 -

RAFE  BEEFHATBITHR
ABREXRFRBREERHEH
E 7o

Gy
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China Foods Limited

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two directors (2017: two), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2017: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

14. A EREHFM2ES

FRAEELERSFINZER &

FEMBES (2017 F ¢

SEMR SO 13
£ (20175 : =2) &

MmE) - Hifle
o N HER=

=H 2 FEAD

AESNEFNTEREZFEMNE

executive of the Company are as follows: HHT -
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
HZE20185F HE2017F
12831H 12A31H
ItEE LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREFIT
(Restated)
(&&=751)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEREYH = 4,602 4513
Discretionary bonuses EI5IEAL 3,392 2,887
Equity-settled share option expense w4 E BB IR R 2 = 16
Pension scheme contributions RONGT 2R 306 357
8,300 7,773

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
Directors whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

RmaEE GEEE) ZFHMN K T

HRIZ NS

2018 2017

20184 2017 &

No. of employees No. of employees

EEHE EEHAE

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 /& 7t 3,000,000 % 7T - 1
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 &7t 3,500,000 % 7T 3

3 3

In prior years, the non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees were granted share options of the
Company in respect of their services to the Group. The
fair value of these options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the prior year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. R &
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
BZE2018F HZE2017F
12A31H 12H31H
IFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of REERERBD KL
the Company recognised as distribution AR FE R IEAR R
during the year 2R E
2017 final-HK2.4 cents (2017: final 2017 FREf-2.4 %81
dividend of HK1.2 cents in respect (20174 : #E20164F
of the year ended 31 December 12831 HIEFE
2016) per ordinary share ZAREBREE 1.2784)
B E AR 58,452 28,926
2017 special-HKD1.03 per 2017 FHFRIRR E - FA
ordinary share A 1.03 7811 - 2,437,389
58,452 2466315

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of HK3.9
cents (2017: HK2.4 cents) per ordinary share, in an aggregate
amount of HKD109,092,000, equivalent to RMB95,106,000
(2017: HKD67,133,000, equivalent to RMB58,452,000), has
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

RBEHKRE  EFEERIRERE
£2018F 12 A31 B It FE 2 REAR S
FRE3.95ENL (20174 « 2.45:4) (425
4 4109,092,0008 7T (HHE R AR
95,106,0007T) (2017 £ : 67,133,000
BT (HHE R ARES8,452,0000T)) B
FRRERFERS FER R

PEEREMRART 201844
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

16.

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

BRER

ARAHEE ANEEBRERBNZE
HIHERIA T BUR -

BNEIETIRIA T EIBE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
HZE2018%F HZE 2017 F
12H31H 12A31H
IEEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&&E7)
Profit for the year attributable to owners RARIES ANEBIEREE
of the Company gl 320,858 1,559,647
Less: Profit for the year from discontinued 3 : R E & IE&EH
operations FRa T - 374,293
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings  Ftat E & L& 27K
per share from continuing operation FRERER Z BT 320,858 1,185,354

China Foods Limited

Number of shares BREOEE
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic earnings
per share from continuing operations FH98
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the year ended 31 December 2017 in
respect of a dilution because the impact of the share options
outstanding had no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per
share amounts presented.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued
operations is RMB nil cents per share (2017: RMB13.38
cents per share), based on the profit for the year from the
discontinued operations of RMB nil (2017: RMB374,293,000)
and the denominators detailed above for both basic and
diluted earnings per share.

Annual Report 2018

At ERBECEEBER
EARBN 2 BBt

2,797,223,396

AR B AT EERELSMEFRE
AAFECHEATREFTTE &
HEFE2017F12 A31 HIEFEME5
FREANRFCEELEBEENH

B o
=

2,797,223,396

KEEREEEER

RIE B AR IR TS A AR
T JL(20174F © A R # 374,293,000
T0) N b X RS AN N R S A Y
DE o BERIEREEBRTRERR#
SERNAFRAREZIL(20174F ¢
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BERRZE

Plant,
machinery
Freehold and Bearer  Construction
land Buildings  equipment plants i progress Total
KAFE B - #
T g7 REE  EERED fETR &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETT  ARETR
COST 7
At 1 January 2017 R0I7E1A1R 73,340 1,930,667 3,695,942 106,964 445710 6,252,623
Additions AR - 22,369 361,646 - 329924 713939
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32)  WEEMIB AR (i3 32) - 832,242 14079% = 1291 2241529
Disposals ik - (3,298) (12,533) - - (15,831)
Disposal of subsidiaries (notes 1)~ HEMBAF (HzF11) (73340)  (881,797) (1,359438)  (106964)  (169827)  (2,591,366)
Reclassification B - 307,594 248,705 - (556,299) -
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A31 B - 2,207,777 4,342,318 - 50,799 6,600,894
Additions RE - 77,930 240,185 - 371,453 689,568
Disposals irk= - (23599)  (322,351) - - (345,950)
Reclassification ENNE = 194,457 40,824 - (235,281) -
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A31H - 2,456,565 4,300,976 - 186,971 6,944,512
DEPRECIATION AND WERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 R201741A18 - 666,938 1977449 11,7% - 2,656,181
Provided for the year EmEE - 103,042 409,432 2,680 - 515,154
Disposal of subsidiaries (notes 1)~ HEMBAE (HzF11) - (260.354)  (959,948) (14,474) - (1234,776)
Impairment loss recognised in RERRAMRESE
profit or loss = = 6,298 = = 6,298
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A31 B - 509,626 1,433,231 - - 1,942,857
Provided for the year ENEE - 93,951 320,892 - - 414,843
Impairment loss recognised in RERRRMRESE
profit or loss - 4,468 33,713 - - 38,181
Eliminated on disposals R SR 3 - (21,9800  (315923) - - (337,903)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H - 586,065 1,471,913 - - 2,057,978
CARRYING VALUES ]
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H - 1,870,500 2,829,063 - 186,971 4,886,534
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A31 B - 1,698,151 2,909,087 - 50,799 4,658,037

2018 4
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BERSRE (E)

(continued)

An impairment of RMB38,181,000 (2017: RMB6,298,000)
was recognised for certain property, plant and equipment with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB38,181,000 (2017:
RMB6,298,000) during the year because those property, plant
and equipment had been dormant and/or obsolete.

At 31 December 2018, certificates of ownership in respect
of certain buildings of the Group in Mainland China with an
aggregate net carrying amount of RMB276,738,000 (2017:
RMB265,146,000) had not been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities.

ARFRNETYE  BERREEE
BEM EE  HEREESFTRA
R #38,181,0007L (2017 F : AR¥
6,298,0007T ) MIZ FW X ~ BB K&
TR AR 38,181,0007T (2017 £ -
AR#6,298,0007T) HIRE °

MR2018F 12 A31H » AEBENHFERK
HEREREAS A R #276,738,0007T
(20174 : AR 265,146,000 ) ]
B TEF R EE R B R 2 T
BREE o

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWH

RMB’000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(F&=E3)

FAIR VALUE DNVE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 29,200
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss A EZSFERR A FELE HNE 5 200
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEHBAR (K1) (9,300)
At 31 December 2017 R20174 12 HA31H 20,100
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss  FAEEEFERR A T E L HNEEE -
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31 H 20,100

The Group’s investment properties consist of one (2017: one)
commercial property in Mainland China. The Directors have
determined that the investment property are commercial
property based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each
property.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further detail of which are included in note
36(b) to the financial statements.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

China Foods Limited

AEBZEREMEBRNPEAHLD
—E(017F: —B)ERYE-&
ERBEEREMEZME - FEKLE
o BUREVESERAYE -

AREBN2018F K% 2017412 A31 H
ZAFEDRESE — K FH &S EE
FEEREMERARNRZEHBHET
ZAEEER (G {EAD A 5 B 42
g °

REWEREREAVHEHE TS =
77 BRE - SRBERMBHRERHM
7 36(b) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18.

Fair value hierarchy

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

REW= ()

AT EER
BRI KB 13 ) 2 S RN
RATEERZAHHIIWT -

Fair value as Fair value as

Level 3 at 31/12/2018 Level 3 at 31/12/2017
#2018 F 2017 &

12A31H 12A31H

28 2 AT 2= 2 AF{E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBT ARBTTT ARBTTT

Investment properties REME

20,100 20,100 20,100 20,100

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

RS R EYRETEER
RANBETNERTIEZH

Significant
Valuation technique unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
ER % FERTBESHY Ll B
2018 2017
2018F 2017
Commercial properties Discounted Estimated rental value RMB66 to RMB70 to
cash flow method (per sg.m and per month) RMB75 RMB74
[ElikIES HRFEREE AEtHERE AR¥66 TE ARETOTE
(BFAAREEA) ARMT5 ARE 747
Rent growth (p.a.) 0% 0%
HERE (BF) 0% 0%
Long term vacancy rate 10% 10%
RHAZEER 10% 10%
Discount rate 7% 7%
AR 7% 7%

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life. This method involves the
projection of a series of cash flows on a property interest. A
market—derived discount rate is applied to the projected cash
flow in order to establish the present value of the income

stream associated with the asset.

RIBRRIRR S REL - R FEIIERA
FREEFHAMARNNENEE
MBRRAEITIEE - ZIEF REYE
R —EERSREBNTRA - T5
ITEMMRRBERR AR S RE N
B EEEF RN RATRRAIRE

197



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 B %53l % MY 5+

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. REW=* (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income is then discounted.

An increase/decrease in the estimated rental value and the
market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would result
in an increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties. An increase/decrease in the long term vacancy rate
and the discount rate in isolation would result in an decrease/
increase in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in
the rent growth per annum and an opposite change in the long
term vacancy rate and the discount rate.

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

NFERR ()
RenErnaRE MR ARG
B ARRRBIAESR - BOE
HRAAREEE ERRBHEFE(HR
E o EERHERRRZTISTR (B
RERINEE) R E - EHRSRER
BB EE - Al EWER - K
BRIB& - HERRE)  wEER  KE
FOR 5B 25 AL A2 M0 28 2 P
Bz EREMRE RN FRET
RhIRBEIE ©

At HEEERMSEHESFRRXRE
BEM, RO EEBREMEN AT
B, ML o REZEERRAH X
BB AR N, R S EBURE
BN FERD, B —RME - 5t
AEEEEEEHNRRED S
EHEFIRRE LRI E B TR #
B MEMEEXHERAEED) -

19. A L HEFKIE

2018 2017
20184 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
(Restated)
(F&E3)
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1HZERmE 559,687 415,626
Provided for the year FREE (15,121) (13,261)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEMRERAR (MEE1l) - (141,970)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) WEEHT B A |l (fiEE32) - 299,292
Carrying amount at 31 December R 12 A31 BZERmAE 544,566 559,687
Current asset included in prepayments, STATENFIE ek
deposits and other receivables E AR 2 RBN B B 15,121 17,455

Non—-current asset ERBEE 529,445 542,232

544,566 559,687
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. BV EE

Franchise
rights
Goodwill Note* Total
[5ES Bzt * e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(&E7) (&=71) (=71)
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 R20174F1A1H 1,195,288 419,375 1,614,663
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) WEEH B A (FizE32) 1,065,733 1,240,100 2,305,833
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (414,222) - (414,222)
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 MN2017F K 201812 A31H 1,846,799 1,659,475 3,506,274
Impairment RE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1HE - - -
Impairment loss recognized BRERRERR 414,222 = 414,222
Eliminated on disposal R SR Y (414,222) = (414,222)
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 2017 F K% 20184 12 A31 H - - -
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12F31H 1,846,799 1,659,475 3,506,274
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12B31H 1,846,799 1,659,475 3,506,274
Note* The previously reported goodwill included certain franchise Wit * I E2HMEEREITE FHFAE

rights of RMB1,659,475,000, which related to the Group’s
bottling and distribution rights in certain regions in Mainland
China acquired in prior years’ business combinations. The
franchise rights of RMB419,375,000 acquired before 1
January 2017 and RMB1,240,100,000 acquired in 2017
are now separately identified and recognised; and the
corresponding non-controlling interests of RMB104,844,000
and RMB227,114,000 as at 1 January 2017 and 31
December 2017, respectively are adjusted retrospectively. The
consolidated total assets and net assets as at 1 January 2017
and 31 December 2017 are increased by RMB104,844,000
and RMB227,114,000, respectively. The basic and diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
not affected.

The amounts of franchise rights represented their fair value at
the respective acquisition dates, which have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer.

The franchise rights have been assigned indefinite useful lives
as the Group believes those franchise rights will continue to be
renewed at each expiration date.

# A 116594750005 @ £
7K £ [B] 7r o 5 () ) 2 TG B2 S
R HEHE(RBIFFEEEE
GFAFUYCRE) B B - IR2017F 1A 1
H .2 BT Y 8 1 ¥ 5T AT & BEA R B
419,375,0007T KR 2017 F Y H)
HF AT HEA R 1240,100,000
TC & T E B PR R - AR R
201741 A1HR20174¢12H31H
B 73 FlIiE W] 58 # 76 FE FE AR 1 e
A B #104,844,0005T K A [ #
227,114,0007T > R2017F151H
R2017F12A31H @ # & & E
A E R EEFED FENA
K #104,844,000T K A & #
227,114,0007T ° BZ2017F 12 4
31 HIFFJZ - GRBEARHEE T
WARRTE -

FFEFAE SIS RSB H A2 2
;%éﬁﬂgﬁj BRI EAR G EE
b E

HATAS S E I TR GHER AR
FFER] - TR AL EFE 2 AT
AR BB B AEFT

2018 G =

FERRARAA
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Franchise Rights
with Indefinite Useful Lives

Goodwill and franchise rights with indefinite useful lives
acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
beverage cash—generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash—generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five—year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 11% (2017: 12%) and
cash flows beyond the five—year period are extrapolated using a
growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the cash—generating unit for 31 December 2018 and 2017.
The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the years immediately before the
budget year.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

In year 2017, in view that the wine business has been loss
making in recent years and it is not considered probable
that profits will be available in the foreseeable future, an
impairment loss of RMB414,222,000 was recognised for
goodwill in relation to the wine cash—generating unit. The wine
cash—generating unit was disposed of in December 2017.

China Foods Limited

20. BELEE (&)

AEREERTERFH 25
A R E R
REBAHEBzZAERARERA
ERFHRFEERED EERFR
TELBUERENR

Pt RIB L EA B 2 AU E R
TiREFERAEEETE - FHEEIR
PR A B T f S 2 T 4F HARS B
EETERRESREEEE - 1§
CREBEMERAZBERALL%
(20174 : 12%) ° MRBAFHEN
HE R TIIR3% (2017 F : 3%) 218K
K LAHEA o

2018 2017412 A31H - 5t &
ReELBU EREER  CEA
ETHRR - UTHAEEERERE
MEREMKE 2T —BRM|EK - A
ETRBRERR

2 IR — R T A
EEEEZEE  ARRREFEAN
ETERRGZ THERE -

PAIRE —FE MR X B EHIE
Al WIRBRAERE B PSS N2 B E R
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B8 BER AR AR e S
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. RBFE DR 2R

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 2017 &
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
(Restated)
(FEE5)
Interests in associates i /N P iy 742,028 708,360
The amounts due from and to associates included in STARBEER GBS ABZHE AT
current assets and current liabilities of RMB19,743,000 RAKRREERNBRED R AEAR
(2017: RMB9,305,000) and RMB163,330,000 (2017: #19,743,0007C (20174 : A R ¥
RMB120,066,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest—free 9,305,000t ) & A R #163,330,0007T
and are repayable on demand. (20174 : AR #120,066,0007T ) °
HREER  RERREKRER -
Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the WMEBRANEER SR E 25587
reporting period are as follows: R
Country of
incorporation/ Proportion of ownership
Name of entity registration interest held by the Group  Principal activities
B,/ 5 rEBFEHARE
BERER R ER B TEEE
2018 2017
20184 2017 4
(note) (note)
(Hizt) (fizt)
Coca—Cola Bottlers Manufacturing Hong Kong 13.7% 13.7%  Investment holdings
Holdings Limited
0 REER
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
(Dongguan) Company Limited and distribution
AOAREAEEE (R) BRAR g FRIRAEE - SHERDH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
(Wuhan) Company Limited and distribution
AR EE(RE)BRAR g FRIRAEE - SHERDH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
(Foshan) Company Limited and distribution
A ORI AE (FBIL) BRAR g FRIRAEE - SHERDH
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. ABtE ARl 2= ()
Country of
incorporation/ Proportion of ownership
Name of entity registration interest held by the Group  Principal activities
B,/ AEERRHEE
BERER HRYER Bl TEEH
2018 2017
20184 2017 4
(note) (note)

(=) (Hiat)

Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
(Hangzhou) Company Limited and distribution
O A LEMmEEE (M) BRAR g REBEE - HERDH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
(Suzhou) Company Limited and distribution
RO A LM EE (BM) BRAR ] REBEE - HERDH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Jinan) ~ PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
Company Limited and distribution
RO AR £ (Fr ) BRAR] ] REBEE - HERDH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
(Shijiazhuang) Company Limited and distribution
AIOA M EE (AR BRAR ] REBEE - HERDH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Management Service PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
(Shanghai) Company Limited and distribution
A O AL REERRYS ( L8) ABRAR ] REBEE - HERDH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
(Nanning) Company Limited and distribution
AIOAEEMmEEE (BE) BRAR ] REBEE - HERDH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage bottling production, sale
(Yingkou) Company Limited and distribution
O LEREmEE(S0) BRAR ] KEBEE - HERDH
CBPC Limited Hong Kong 21.7% 21.7%  Procurement of raw materials for
Coca-Cola bottlers in Mainland
China
BE TERR B A A A] O A 25 R iR e
R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE =

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. Rt N a2 (4])
note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Wit ABZERFZEFSHELER
the associates as the boards of these companies comprise LI - BEKEREBE  AE
representatives of the Group, who participate in the policy B et & A AT EAXF
making process. Accordingly, they are accounted for as £ FH o BEREENERZH
associates of the Group. All of the above associates are ENE o B LB ER A A K
indirectly held through a 65% owned subsidiary of the LNEFF B 65% RIEAINT B L\ Al ET#E
Company. FFH °
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually ERIZEEARE & A RIREAES
material:
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 2017 &
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(&E5)
The Group’s share of profit NG B A g A 44,168 EINES
The Group’s share of other comprehensive 2N & fE( H b 2 E ks
income - 15,488
The Group's share of total comprehensive — ZN&= & fE(L 2 E U5 4258
income 44,168 56,621
Dividends declared by associates BENRIEEIRERE (10,500) -
Aggregate carrying amount at 31 December 7 12 A 31 H Z BREI#1(E 742,028 708,360
22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
20184 2017 &
12831H 12AH31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
(Restated)
€=l
Raw materials JR# 486,273 427,819
Finished goods I o 1,164,045 864,611
1,650,318 1,292,430
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

23. EWERF R EE

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

2018 fF 2017

12H31H 12 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

(Restated)

(#eE=5)

Accounts receivables FEUS AR X 307,073 301,307
Allowance B (2,285) (1,827)
304,788 299,480

The Group gives credit term to key customers, while for other
customers, payment in advance or payment on delivery is
normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
commissioner to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts
receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivables are

AEERTHRELEES  MERN
H X FRIAEABBRAINRE
B YR 7 55 B =5 SR A 55 BR AR 122 Il L
AEERVERRRBEEELRHZE
8 BRHEERRRERE - &K
EEETHERARESR BN L
A ARARESRAETRAETFZ
MR - MEERR 2 EHEEY
TERE - AEE L E R H B WARRAE
BRI A R e A (S B AR -
FEYSRF B TELR -

non-interest—bearing.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivables, net
of allowance for credit loss, presented based on the date of the

delivery of goods:

AN B 12X 6 B e W AR SR R i
i (R EEBEREFE) -

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

2018 F 2017 &

12H831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBEFIT

(Restated)

(&E5)

Within 6 months NMEA R 297,106 150,469
6 to 12 months ~NE+ @A 7,682 148,998
1 to 2 years —EWE - 13
304,788 299,480
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EWBRF R ESE (8&)
Ageing of accounts receivables which are past due but not B2 %80 23 {8 3¢ MR (B 2 FE W BR 3R 2 BR
impaired: B
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 2017 &
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTT
(Restated)
€ ==
Within 1 year —FA 29,027 41,230
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a E?@%@E?ﬁiﬁ@ﬁ’\]%%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁil‘%
number of independent customers that have a good track Bz Ea R s BLIRFE
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors Bl o MIBBEER  EERA - AR
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary ERFIENEEE =L EEESKE
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant B RADR B AIEBIRE - WEERA
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered RALESRET IR BB -
fully recoverable.
Details of impairment assessment of accounts receivables for B Z2018F 12 A31 HILFEEUWK
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 41. BRFURE T BRI E R MIEE 41 -
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year %@?2017512)5] 31HLEFE  RER
ended 31 December 2017: BEEE -
31/12/2017
2017
12 H31H
RMB’000
AREFIT
(Restated)
(#e&E75)
1 January 1A1H 112,401
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 19,928
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BB BB R =) 7,894
Written—offs 16! (3,014)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR (135,382)
31 December 12A31H 1,827
In 2017, included in the above provision for impairment of R2017 %F » 5t A Lt FEWERFURE B
accounts receivable is a provision for individually impaired B ERIER EE AR ¥ 3,998,000 7T 2 1@
accounts receivable with a carrying amount before provision of R EEHERK °
RMB3,998,000.
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

24. Eﬁ%ﬁtlﬁ s BE R AR

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

20184 2017 &

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T AREF T

(Restated)

(#eE5)

Prepayment to suppliers TR SRIE 306,397 213,252
VAT recoverable A]Ug B E R 134,209 156,947
Prepaid marketing expenses TEfT &R 99,913 105,792
Others Efb 25,610 21,365
566,129 497,356

25. BANK BALANCE AND CASH 25. RITERRES

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

20184 2017 &

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARET T

(Restated)

(#eE=5)

Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHEER 243,235 832,063
Pledged bank deposits HEIRIRITE R 7,961 6,424
251,196 838,487

Less: Pledged bank deposits for bills B RENEERER

payable (note 26) RITTF R (B 5 26) (7,961) (6,424)
Cash and cash equivalents HekFeEEIER 243,235 832,063

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily GFHRIRTTZIRE RS HIRITFR
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits FRAE 7% B REREA B o $R1T
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of R MR FE R FE A RO EE N

default. PR EEBRIZIRTT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

26. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payables
presented based on the invoice date.

26. ENRARER

FERN R BRI DT IRE E B HAZ2 5140
T

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

2018 & 2017

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AREFIT

(Restated)

(ge=5)

Within 3 months 3fEAR 535,792 882,921
3to 12 months 3EAZEI2MEAN 53,777 41,281
1 to 2 years 1EE2FR 10,651 4516
Over 2 years HBiE2F 6,591 2,140
606,811 930,858

The accounts and bills payables are non-—interest-bearing
and are normally settled in one to three months and one to six
months, respectively.

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the pledge
of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to RMB7,961,000
(2017: RMB6,424,000).

BN MEBR TR - —RON
TSR R —E=EAR—Z=/EA -

AEBETENEBERNSBRAR
#7,961,000C (20174 : A R %
6,424,0007T ) 2 AEBIRITFR T A
A

PEEREMRART 201844
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. Hit B REREHEE

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 F 2017 &
12H31H 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(#eE=5)
Accrued marketing expense FERT & SR 2 622,550 340,342
Deposit for fridges KFEE S 457,867 463,287
Sales rebate $HE B30 407,884 242,189
Accrued payroll BETTE 277,245 213,212
Accrued expense EETHAX 245,401 364,970
Tax element of contract liabilities AHBERIE 214,730 175,105

Payables for purchase of property, BEME  BER&E
plant and equipment O FE 1S 38 158,081 88,455
Accrued logistics expense FEET IR 85,321 72,920
Accrued utility expense FERT AR R MER 2 30,137 14,437
Advances from customers BEER = 1,029,638
Others Hit 196,163 86,403
2,695,379 3,090,958
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28. BORROWINGS 28. &A™
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
20184 2017 &
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Bank loans RITER 1,166,500 1,746,500
Other loans HMER = 10,120
1,166,500 1,756,620
Unsecured A 1,166,500 1,756,620
The carrying amounts of the above FEFRAEREEER
borrowings are repayable:
Within one year —FR 580,000 —
Within a period of more than one year —F P HETBBMRE
but not exceeding two years HAfE 586,500 1,756,620
1,166,500 1,756,620
Amounts due within one year shown mENBEINT—FERN
under current liabilities B H 2 kI8 580,000 =
Amounts shown under non—current liabilities RIEREN & & T 55
Z R 586,500 1,756,620
The borrowings carry an interest rate of loan prime rate 1%%(#?15 BE = -0.25% ELF
-0.25%. The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment B o B Hf IEB*Eﬁéf)T/TJXTﬁ% & PTEET
dates set out in the loan agreements. gERA Hﬁ*‘l‘
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. BHEE

31/12/2018 1/1/2018*

2018 fF 20184

12831H 1A1B8*

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREFIT

Sales of beverages THE R 1,341,686 1,029,638
Current e 1,341,686 1,029,638

* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the

application of HKFRS 15. FUZE 15 F £ 755 -
The followings table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried—forward
contract liabilities.

ZWATHE -

Y AR BT BB

TREJIAFERERAOAERER

Sales of
beverages
RMB’000
ARETIT
Revenue recognized that was included REVFAGHEBEESRZ
in the contract liability balance at the BRI A
beginning of the year 1,029,638

30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

30. EEERIBEERERE
TEREIIMSBRE BT B HE

financial reporting purposes: ERLIRAERR AT

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

2018 F 2017 &

12831H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

(Restated)

(&x&E751))

Deferred tax assets LT TBE B 379,390 283,576
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE (95,666) (50,274)
283,724 233,302
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon:

30. EEBIREERAE (F)

TXHIIE R EEEAEREE
REET

Impaiment
Provision ECL of property,  Accelerated
against ~ provision of Unrealised Deferred plant and tax Fair value
inventories ~ receivables Tax losses Accruals profits income equipment  depreciation  adjustments Others Total
fElsaRs hg BR
GERRE EREZEE 0 REERE  BRER  ARRER EEW RRRNE  ZHEERE ATEER -4 it
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB100 RMB100 RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBI000
ARETR  ARBT  ARBTR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2017 ROE1R18 % 4074 31572 88586 4201 1433 2106 - (2931) 6% 12933
Aequisiion of subsidiaries 0
(note 32) 978 1618 - 56,132 12818 - (51829) 413% 8382
Disposal of subsidiaries
(notes 11.and 33) (149 (4.281) = (8223) - - - - 20 (750) 8807
Charged to proft and loss 1728 847 (10238) 806 (550) 1945 (7,744) - 8716 (15) 11308
At 31 December 2017 ROTE12A31A 3494 564 27334 137,301 3651 33,784 67,180 - (50,274) 10,268 233302
Charged oprofitand oss BT 3146 1,588 (11,122) 81811 14,965 827 2718 (52,720) 7328 1881 50422
At 31 December 2018 ROB%12A31A 6,640 2152 16212 29112 18616 34611 69,898 (52,720) (42,946) 12,149 283,724

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB179,520,000 (2017: RMB127,305,000) that are available
for offsetting against future taxable profits to a maximum
period of five years of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss—making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China or
offshore incorporated enterprises which are regarded as
CREs. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. Pursuant
to the approvals received by the Company from the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC, the Company and most
of its subsidiaries are regarded as CREs and relevant enterprise
income tax policies shall be applicable to the Company
and these subsidiaries starting from 1 January 2013. As a
result, the Company and these subsidiaries are therefore no
longer liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
their subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of retained earnings generated. No deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes on the unremitted earnings of
the Group subsidiaries or associates established in Mainland
China at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

AEBRETEABZRERAR
#179,520,0007T(2017F : A R ¥
127,305,0007) AIMtE A EE 2 A 7
ERg&EREAF ZHEAREHER
RIERTUEH - BRZFBEEAD
BREBEBRE—BREREZHBAR -
i BT 5248 SR B s A AT &) B 7%
EFHE AU BERZFEEERDELT
MIBEE °

RIBHECEMETE  EHEARM
PRI Z SNE T E AR INEMAK L 2
TEEREXRMIBEREET KK
B BRAREAMM10% 2 BIH -
AR EM 20084F 1 A 1 B AR @EAR
2007412 A31 B 2 REF[ 2 &R - 1R
BARREHBEERBGHREOH
X AR E R EKER D M B A AR R
ERTEERESE - ME2013F1A
1 @A RRAETA - Bt
ARBRUMEME QB FERARER
Bl AR 37 2 Y B A B EE AR RO AR B
A7 Ik H BB BUR TR - 122018
F12A31H  WARAEEEFER
AL 2 T B~ B Sl Bk 1 B 2 R EE
B FE T ERR T IE (2017 4F -
) -

PEERERAA 20

18 G
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 31. XAF KRR

212

Number of
shares Share capital
%k S 4E| &N
(Restated)
(geE=5)
HKD’000
AT
Authorised: JETE
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,000 fx &Rz EE
HKDO.10 each 0.108 T2 T@Ax 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid BEITREE
At 1 January and 31 December 2017 and 2018 % 2017 £E & 2018 4F
2,797,223,396 ordinary 1A1BX12AH31H
shares of HKDO0.10 each 2,797,223,396 I 5%
HE0.10/8 2 L@ 2,797,223,396 279,722
Equivalent to RMB’000 ERARETT 293,201

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 17 November 2016, COFCO Coca—Cola Beverages Limited
(“CCBL"), a 65%—owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the non-public sale equity transfer master agreement
with The Coca—Cola Company (“KO”) and Swire Beverages
Holdings Limited (“Swire”) pursuant to which:

0]

KO procured its subsidiaries to transfer to CCBL all the
issued share capital in Coca—Cola (Chongging) Beverages
Ltd., Coca-Cola (Jilin) Beverages Ltd., Coca-Cola
Liaoning (Central) Beverages Ltd., and Coca-Cola
(Heilongjiang) Beverages Ltd., 93.75% of the issued
share capital in Coca—Cola Liaoning (North) Beverages
Ltd., 89.3% of the issued share capital in Coca—Cola
(Sichuan) Beverages Ltd., 75% of the issued share
capital in Coca—Cola (Shanxi) Beverages Ltd., and 60%
of the issued share capital in Coca—Cola Liaoning (South)
Beverages Ltd., (collectively the “CBL Companies”), for
an aggregate base consideration of RMB2,900,000,000;

China Foods Limited

32. #6465t

M2016511 178 » KR GEIHEE65%
ez 2 B AR PIER] ORI ERH A
FRAE ([HRATERA ) B A] O A 440 A
([ATOAE ) RAHRBHERBR A
A ([REATERFA L EEREZR
BAK Bt

(i)

A AR REEMBAR AP
AR AT QA 45 (BB ) 8RK)
BRAR] - ATOATLE(EM) K#
BIRAF - ATAALEEE ()R
MBR AR KA AR (REET)
KB BER AR Z 22 BHITHRAR
AR FT AR 4438 % (40 ) kB B IR
ANA93.75% B EATIRA - AT A
AIZE ()N SR B IR 2 R 89.3%
EEITAA - ATA A (LE) R
HMAERRDB7T5%E HETRAR
A] A4 % () SRR B IR A A
60% 2 F1TARA (i [ Al gkt
RAED  BEAREBRERARKE
2,900,000,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(i) Swire procured its subsidiaries to transfer to CCBL all
the issued share capital in Swire Coca—Cola Shaanxi
Beverages Ltd. (“Coca—Cola Shaanxi”) for an aggregate
base consideration of RMB487,000,000; and

(iii) Such base considerations shall be subject to customary
closing accounts adjustments by reference to the net
cash balance and the working capital level of each entities
as at the date of completion.

The CBL Companies and Coca—Cola Shaanxi are engaged in
the processing, bottling and distribution of sparkling beverage
products, and the distribution of still beverage products in
various regions in Mainland China.

On 1 April 2017, the aforementioned acquisitions in relation to
the CBL Companies and Coca—Cola Shaanxi were completed.

The Group has elected to measure the non—controlling
interest in the CBL Companies at the non—controlling interest’s
proportionate share of respective identifiable net assets.

32. EBE 6 (F)

(ii)

(iii)

K EIREE M B AR [P Ak
FHEBEPRPE A S Al O AT 4480 EL R
BRAA] ([ A AT 24BR T |) 2 2 80
EBITHA  ERAREEE/A
R # 487,000,000 7T i K

FRERAREBAGL2EZEER
TRKHEZIRE #%@%&EL
BEKEREERERE ELH
%o

AT AR A A N A] O ] SRR PG A R
M B FITREMMMT - K
MR ERTERABERNDH o

R2017%4A 18 « Lt aRH ARk
AR AT O AT R R IR B e -

AEBEDREBRIFEREREAETA
B ABEB A BRI EEFEZL
BIEt 8% F QA2 FRIER L -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 32.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
CBL Companies and Coca—Cola Shaanxi as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

EBaot (&)

R = /NG S W - ey g
Bz #pEERBERFEN
T

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
U B R
AN
RMB’000
ARBT T
Notes (Restated)
HiaF (&E5)
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB MR 17 2,241,529
Intangible assets EEE 20 1,240,100
Prepaid lease payments SEU N i 19 299,292
Deferred tax assets RIETHIEEE 30 95,967
Inventories FE 452,450
Accounts receivable FEUBR TR 417,608
Prepayments, deposits and other TEMFIR -« e REM
receivables FEUGRIA 243,041
Bank balances and cash IRTTEERR NIRE 591,803
Accounts payable FEASBRIR (854,677)
Other payables and accruals Efh B RIBERERT AE (930,303)
Bank borrowings RITEE (997,645)
Tax liabilities HIAAE (18,389)
Deferred income FEIELIA (26,208)
Deferred tax liabilities BETIEAE 30 (12,115)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFTE 2 #5!
BEFERRE 2,742,453
Non—controlling interests e I (269,941)
2,472 512
Goodwill arising on acquisition WWHRE £ 2 a2 20 1,065,733
Satisfied by: ATF B
Cash He 3,538,245
The fair value of the accounts receivable and other UGBS B HE e U BR 30 &2 E b e U 08
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to ZRNFED R EANREA417,608,000
RMB417,608,000 and RMB243,041,000, respectively. The 7T B A R #243,041,0007T © JE U
gross contractual amounts receivable and other receivables BT REMEKZBASENS
were RMB425,502,000 and RMB243,320,000, respectively, |5 Rl A A R #425,502,000 7T &

of which accounts receivable of RMB7,894,000 and other
receivables of RMB278,766 are expected to be uncollectible.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB44,095,000 for
this acquisition. These transaction costs were expensed and
included in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2017.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition is follows:

32. EBE 6 (F)

AEBREHERBEERIKAAR
#44 095,0007T ° PEE 2017412 A
BB IEFEZERSGKAE FXIEIL
stAER

BRAMGEMS k2R E MRS FER
BREFEANAT

RMB’000

ARBTIT

(Restated)

(g&=75)

Cash consideration HERE (3,538,245)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired BAZHeRRSEEIER 591,803
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents WREFmE R 2 Re MR EEEE

in respect of the acquisition Pinfasbe:s=cl (2,946,442)

Since the acquisition, the CBL Companies and Coca-Cola
Shaanxi contributed RMB4,557,384,000 to the Group’s
revenue and profit of RMB133,160,000 to the consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
reporting period, the revenue from the continuing operation of
the Group and the profit of the Group for the year 2017 would
have been RMB14,867,564,000 and RMB2,003,420,000,
respectively.

BUEELAR gt Aa ke d
AR AAEB ERIIKAAREK
4,557,384,0007T & AE =2017 F 12
A3l BIEFE ZHEmFERN&F A
E# 133,160,000 7T, ©

& HrR R & RYIETT - R 2017 F -
FAEBZHBEEEBRARREE
wm F i 5 Bl A A R ¥ 14,867,564,000
TR AR 2,003,420,000 7T, ©
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEMBATE
The details of disposal of subsidiaries, other than those related REZE2017F12 A31 HILFE HEMN
to the discontinued operations included in note 11 to the BARZ G (HRRE SRR T
consolidated financial statements, during the year ended 31 115 B IS TS 2 5B IN #F)
December 2017 are as follows: R
31/12/2017
2017
12A31H
RMB’000
ARET T
Notes (Restated)
Kt (ge=5)
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFENT :
Property, plant and equipment e 17 282,823
Prepaid lease payments TEf T EFIE 19 30,782
Prepayments for property, plant BEME - BB K&
and equipment Z B FOR 25
Goodwill [EES 91,351
Deferred tax assets BT & E 8,723
Inventories FE 81,029
Accounts and bills receivables JFE Ui BR TR N R A 21,428
Prepayments, deposits and TERFRIE e MEAM
other receivables FEUS R IE 16,109
Due from fellow subsidiaries CE N EINCIVE 2,621
Prepaid tax TETIIE 2,960
Pledged deposits HEIRER 2,399
Bank balance and cash IRITEBR MRS 45,624
Accounts and bills payables e BRI 15 (132,915)
Other payables and accruals H A ERRIE &
EEraE (132,345)
Due to fellow subsidiaries REI R B R EFIE (74,375)
Due to associates REG N B FRIE (6,101)
240,038
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBA RS 8 805,367
1,045,405
Satisfied by LATRZI A HER
Cash B 1,045,405
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERELEZHESRA
JHEE
Cash consideration BERE 1,045,405
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B N ER RS
disposed of KIR&EEIER (45,524)
999,881
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34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 4. METBHEEE B 2R
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities MEETHEEEEZEH
Dividend
payables Borrowings
PEAS AR 2 CEN
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT AREFIT
(Included in other
payables and
accruals and

tax liabilities)
(G AE A ER R
HREFTEEMN
EBESE)
At 1 January 2017 (Restated) R2017F1 A1 H(KEE5) 100,986 1,423,552
Acquisition of subsidiaries UG BB B A A) = 997,645
Dividends declared EEIRRE 2,544 409 =
Financing cash flows MERERE (2,521,469) (664,577)
At 1 January 2018 (Restated) M2018%1 A1 R (&KE5) 123,926 1,756,620
Dividends declared BEIRRE 114,960 =
Financing cash flows MEEESRE (238,886) (590,120)
At 31 December 2018 M2018F 12 A31H = 1,166,500
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. HRAR
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any R|EHR  NEBELEEFEARK
significant contingent liabilities. BEBE-

RFHEARERAD 217
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36. &ML
(@) AEEEREBAA

36. OPERATING LEASE

(a) The Group as lessee

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
20184 2017 F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(#e=5)
Minimum lease payments paid under & AEEFI AR LD
operating leases during the year =IERAERE 103,904 104,950

R|EK - ARERBD P
A RGHE LA RN 2 RE&E

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: eS| -

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

2018 F 2017 &

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBEFIT

(Restated)

(&=351))

Within one year R—FRA 41,896 43,068
In the second to fifth year, inclusive E=zm s

(BREEREME) 35,174 29,492

After five years FFEE 3,841 181

80,911 72,741

REBONFRRARERAE
THAEMEZRNAS - &
A FIHARME - B15FA
ZFHRSRISFTE -

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of 2 years and rentals are
fixed for an average of 1.5 years.

China Foods Limited  Annual Report 2018
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36. OPERATING LEASE (Continued)

(b) The Group as lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 18)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms of six months. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

36. REHEN (&)

(b) AEEERHBAA
AEBRBLEEOLHEEE
KREWE(KEL) KR
MR EA - —KRME - B
ZIERFRERP XS - I
FIRAR EHIRIEE BT L A A

S
S

RBERR - AEBEREHEHE
PRIz TR & & 4 el
ZARKEHRSERRNT

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

20184 2017

12H31H 12 A31 H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBTIT

(Restated)

(&E5)

Within one year R—FA 1,083 594

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EARELE

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

2018 2017 F

12H31H 12 H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T AREFIT

(Restated)

(ge=75)

Capital expenditure in respect of the BT S s mER A

acquisition of property, plant and BRI AERARERZ
equipment contracted for but not provided #1% - ME N & E 2

in the consolidated financial statements B ENE 254,207 218,172

FERRERAF
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

38. AEALRS
MBS IRR H A 5 PR EE 2

(a) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed

(a)

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the RGN KREBRAKNFE
following material transactions with related parties during NEE A THETZEAR S
the year: s 38
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 fF 2017 &
12H31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&E5)
Transactions with fellow subsidiaries: EERIZRMIB AR 25 :
Sales of goods* HEEm™ 3,930 160,208
Purchases of goods* HEEm* 1,092,000 7,206,050
Service fee income* RRIFEUTA * = 2,478
Rental expenses* e 15,120 19,483
Service fee expenses* RIS & * 9,560 a7l
Interest expenses FEX T = 144
Transactions with the ultimate SRR AR ZR S
holding company:
Sales of goods* HEEm 16 31
Rental expenses* Hezit~ 6 18,619
Service fee expenses* FRIs B * = 1,274
Transactions with associates: HEENR 2R S ¢
Sales of goods HEEM - 14
Purchases of goods* BEER* 2,279,020 2,035,574
Commission income RAINTUA 156,950 76,010
Rental expenses e 5,960 5,648
Transactions with related companies®: EREg:E N 7] 2325 *
Purchases of goods* BEEMm® 2,005,243 1,704,081
*  These related party transactions constituted continuing BEBEN TR ZIRE L

connected transactions discloseable in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

& Related companies are companies under significant
influence of the Group’s ultimate holding company and
subsidiaries of the minority shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiary.

These transactions were carried out in accordance with
the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties

involved.

China Foods Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties and a non-

(c)

(d)

controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiaries

(i)  Pursuant to certain licensing agreements entered
into between a former subsidiary of the Group and
COFCO Corporation, the Group was granted the
exclusive right of use certain trademarks for its
kitchen food business. The kitchen food business
was disposed in September 2017. The licensing
fees for the prior year were waived by COFCO
Corporation.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group disposed of a subsidiary, namely COFCO
Food Sales & Distribution Co., Ltd., to a subsidiary
of the Company’s ultimate holding company. Further
details of the transaction are included in note 11(1)
to the consolidated financial statements.

(iii)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group disposed of three subsidiaries, namely
COFCO Wines & Spirits Holdings Limited, COFCO
Premier Brands Limited, Global Lander Limited and
Superb Vision Limited, to the Company’s immediate
holding company. Further details of the transaction
are included in note 11(2) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Commitments with related parties

Pursuant to certain lease agreements entered into
between the Group and COFCO Plaza Development
Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of COFCO Corporation, the
Group’s future minimum lease payments amounted to
approximately RMB15,314,000 at 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB12,560,000).

Outstanding balances with related parties and
non-controlling shareholders of the Group’s
subsidiaries

Except for amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary of the Group of RMB10,120,000 in 2017
(included in note 28 borrowings as other loans) which
were unsecured, born interest at the rate of 4.28%, the
remaining balances with the holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries, associates, related companies and non-
controlling shareholders of the Group’s subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

38. HEALRS (&)
(b) BEEALE-—BXEEKE

(c)

(d)

DEWFEBRBRRZEMR S

() BEAEEHEFPEEEGR
RAFIM 2 & TR
AEFERBRIFAE - 7]
REFERMFEFERAET
B2 BFERMEBER
2017 F9 AHE - MiBEF
BB EBRE+ IEEE
ARARER -

(i) BZE2017F12A31HIEF
B AEELE-RHBA
APERMEEARLAAT
R B R PER A B —
MEARE - AR ZHE—
FHIBEN R E PR
AL A

(i) AZE2017F12A31H 14
B AEBLEE=RHKE
ARAIREHEERERA
a) ~ COFCO Premier Brands
Limited * IRFZZEBRAF
K Superb Vision Limited 7%
NEEBEERAT - BEAR
SHE— S HBHRERE Y
ERRMTLLR)A ©

BARRE A £ ZARGE
BEAEHETIEEFRGR AR
— BB ATFTEESEREA
RARGIMYHETHERZ
M20184 12 A31H A~ & H &
RN HENRBBHAARE
15,314,000 7% (2017 4F = A R &
12,560,000 7T) °

BEATRAEEMEQFFE
BERRR 2 REEEREE

BRI 2017 SR AN E B E A FIFE
7[5 IR B B A R #5 10,120,000
TGt AME281EAREMERZ
H i ER) BEIKIT K428 F
TR EAEE B AR ZIERA
Al AEMBAR - BEAF] -
BAE N E) MR IR A ar i
B M - R B BEETFEXR
gg o
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e) Compensation of key management personnel of

()

the Group
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

38. HEALRS (B)
(e) AEEEEEEAR ZHM

RAFE EERHEMTIEER
ABZF ST

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

2018 fF 2017 &

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

(Restated)

(#eE5)

Short term employee benefits SE == EER 21,183 12,423

Equity-settled share option expense 1 45 B B IRRER 2 15 20

Pension scheme contributions RIRGET B 1,221 892
Total compensation paid to key NTFEEEERAE

management personnel 2 RN AR EE 22,419 13,335

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's
emoluments are included in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Transactions and balances with other state-owned
enterprises

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government through its
numerous authorities, affiliates or other organisations
(collectively “State-owned Enterprises”). During the
year, the Group entered into extensive transactions
covering, but not limited to, sales of goods, purchases
of raw materials, property, plant and equipment and
other assets, receiving of services, and making deposits
and borrowings with certain State-owned Enterprises,
other than COFCO Corporation and its affiliates, on terms
comparable to those with non-state-owned enterprises.
The Directors consider that transactions with those State-
owned Enterprises were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, and that dealings
of the Group have not been significantly or unduly
affected by the fact that the Group and those State-owned
Enterprises are ultimately controlled or owned by the
PRC government. The Group has also established pricing
policies for products and services, and such policies do
not depend on whether or not the customers are State-
owned Enterprises.

China Foods Limited
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ME - BEMEREMAEGBEE
BB WEFEREEARA
RIEE: I EUNCIPIN: TR R S
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

(a) General information of subsidiaries
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out

39. REAAXAFRIMB AR 2H1F

(@) MBLT—RER

RI|BERARRR B EEZ KR EERF
BZWBARMFHBHIIMT

below:
Place of
Registration Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMALR BRTHE/
WEARER Tghs EMER rARFRHEERS TEED
2018 2017
2018 % 20175
% %
Polar Treasure Limited Hong Kong HKD2 100 100 Investment holding
BEERAR Bt 28T RARR
COFCO Beverages Limited Samoa USD1 100 100 Investment holding
EKHARAA BED 18T RERR
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Hong Kong HKD2,524,855,402 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
R A2 HBRAR Bt 2,524,855,402 57T RARR
COFCO Beverages (Nanjing) Samoa USD3,800,001 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
RS (R BRAA BED 3,800,001 %7 RERR
COFCO Beverages (Hangzhou) Samoa USD4,000,001 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
IR (M) BRAR BED 4,000,001 %71 RERR
COFCO Beverages (Guangzhou) ~ Samoa USD11,720,001 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
iR (BM) BRAR BED 11,720,001 RERR
COFCO Beverages (Hunan) Limited ~ Samoa USbl1 65 65  Investment holding
IR (i) AR AR BED e RERR
COFCO Beverages (Beijing) Limited  Samoa USD6,825,001 65 65 Investment holding
EHH (L) BRAT BED 6,825,001 T RERR
COFCO Beverages (CCBMH) Samoa USD1 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
BED I RERR
COFCO Beverages Hunan (HK) Hong Kong HKD62,400,001 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
MESENE (FE)ARRE  FA 62,400,001 7 REHR
COFCO Beverages Beijing (HK) Hong Kong HKD53,235,001 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
PRAHIR (BB ARAR  BF 53,235,001 T RERR
COFCO Beverages Qingdao Samoa USD20,134,375 65 65 Investment holding
Company Limited
EED 20,134375% L RARR
RERMAERRHE
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. EEARATIMB AR ZF#1E
COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MIBAT—RER ()
Place of
Registration Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMALR BRTHE/
WEARER -3k EMER FARFEHEERA Y FEED
2018 2017
2018% 017%
% %
COFCO Beverages (Qingdao) Samoa Usbl1 65 65  Investment holding
Limited
mEHRH (58 ARAA BED 1% REER
COFCO Beverages (Hainan) Limited ~ Samoa USD4,387,501 65 65  Investment holding
Mg (88) AR AR BED 4,387,501 T RAHER
COFCO Beverages Tianjin (Samoa) ~ Samoa HKD13,623,897 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
PRAHKZ(BED)BRAR BED 13,623,897 57T REER
COFCO Beverages Qingdao (HK) ~ Hong Kong HKD82,454,768.01 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
HESHES (BE)EBAH Y 82,454,768 01 /BT REZR
COFCO Beverages Hainan (HK) Hong Kang HKD143,052,501 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
RS EE (B ERAR Bl 143,052,501 7t REHER
COFCO Beverages (Xinjiang) Samoa USD1 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
IR (H18) BRA) EED 1% RAER
COFCO Beverages (Xinjiang) Hong Kang HKD1 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
e (H18) BIRAT] M 1A RERR
COFCO Beverages (Jiangxi) Limited ~ Samoa USD1 65 65 Investment holding
FESH (TA) BRAR EED 127 RERR
COFCO Beverages (Jiangxi) Limited  Hong Kong HKD1 65 65 Investment holding
FEHH (TA) BRAR A 1A RERR
COFCO Beverages Tianjin (HK) Hong Kong HKD60,450,001 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
mEHERE (B8) BRAR 3 60,450,001 7T RERR
COFCO Beverages Qingdao Samoa HKD12,000,000 65 65 Investment holding
(Samoa) Limited
BED 12,000,000 RAHR
COFCO Beverages Beijing (Samoa) ~ Samoa HKD100,000 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
EED 100,000/ RERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

39. EEA A AMEA A5

&

(@) MEBLAR—RER (B

Place of
Registration Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMALR ERTHE/
WEAREH B EMER FARFRHEERS  FEED
2018 2017
2018 017%
% %
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD110,000,000 65 65 Investment holding
(China) Investment Ltd.
g A QAT LERE (B REER 110,000,005 RERR
A7
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD10,000,000 48.75¢ 4875 Beverage hottling production,
(Shanxi) Limited sale and distribution
g A QAR (WA BRAR PE 10,000,000 FREMAEE - HERER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD20,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
(Shaanxi) Limited sale and distribution
g Al QAT LEREH (RE) BRAR E 20,000,000% 7T SRS E - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Liaoning (South)  PRC RMB72,000,000 39 39*  Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Limited sale and distribution
ERAAEEE (B FHERLR PE AR#72,000,0007 FREMAEE - HERER
COFCO Coca-Cola Liaoning (North)  PRC USD23,500,000 60.94 60.94  Beverage hottling production,
Beverages Limited sale and distribution
RERAAEEE (L) FHERLR PE 23,500,000 7T SRS E - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Liaoning PRC USD13,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production
(Central) Beverages Limited
ER AR () FHERLR PE 13,000,000%7T SRS E
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD44,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
(Heilongjiang) Limited sale and distribution
g Al QAT EERE (B3 hE 44,000,0005 7 SRS - HEREX
BRATF
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Jilin)  PRC USD18,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
Limited sale and distribution
g QAR (EM)BRAR o 18,000,000%7T SRS E - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD17,000,000 58.05 5805  Beverage bottling production,
(Sichuan) Limited sale and distribution
T DR () BRAR & 17,000,000 RS - HERER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD72,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
(Chongging) Limited sale and distribution
B OISR (EE)BRAR & 72,000,000% 7T SRS E - HEREX
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE
39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. EEAATIMB AR ZFHE
COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
(a) MBAT—RER (M)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

226

Place of
Registration Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMALR BRTHE/
WEARER B EMER FARFEHEERA Y FEED
2018 2017
20185 017%
% %
COFCO Coca-Cola Supply Chain PRC RMB10,000,000 63.5 635  Wholesale and retail of pre-
(Tianjin) Limited packaged foods, raw
and auxiliary materials,
supply chain information
consultation, management
services and others
I DA ELg e (KF) i AE%10,000,0007 KERTERDRRD R
BRAT B fEEES AR BR
TR R At
Zhongke Enterprise Management ~ PRC RMB3,000,000 65 65 Enterprise management
(Tianjin) Limited service and consulting,
business information
consulting, marketing
planning, and computer
information system
development, consulting,
promotion and service
PAGXER(RR)BRAR & AR 3,000,000 CEERRERAN  XBE
B BHRE HEH
RERGHE  #W - AR
R
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD15,500,000 32.5 325 Beverage hottling production,
(Tianjin) Limited sale and distribution
Mg OALHE (RR)BRAR 15,500,000 % 7T SRS E - HERER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC RMBB83,000,000 32.5¢ 325 Beverage hottling production,
(Hebei) Limited sale and distribution
g QAR (A1) BRAR & AE%83,000,0007T SRS E - HERER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC RMB48,000,000 43.55¢ 4355¢  Beverage hottling production,
(Inner Mongolia) Limited sale and distribution
g O AR (AR i AR 48,000,000 SFRSMAE - HERER
BRAT
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD12,500,000 48.75¢ 4875 Beverage hottling production,
(Shandong) Limited sale and distribution
mEA O ALHE (WR)BRAR & 12,500,000% 7T SRS E - HERER

China Foods Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

39. BEA A AMEA AR

&

(@) MEBLAR—RER (B

#

Place of
Registration Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMALR ERTHE/
WEAREH B EMER FARFRHEERS  FEED
2018 2017
2018 017%
% %
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD5,000,000 48.75¢ 4875 Beverage hottling production,
(Jinan) Limited sale and distribution
gl QALK (B BRAR E 5,000,000% T FREMAEE - HERER
COFCO Coca-Cola Huazhong PRC RMB144,400,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Limited sale and distribution
MEAOALERHHERAR  PE AR 144,400,000 SRS E - HEREX
Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola PRC USD5,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Limited sale and distribution
HRTRUOULRHERRT  HE 5,000,000% 7 SRS - HEREX
Tibet COFCO Coca-Cola PRC RMB2,000,000 65 65 Beverage sale and distribution
Commerce & Trade Limited
BETENONLEEERAT  HE AR 2,000,000 SEHHE REA
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC RMB60,000,000 52 52 Beverage bottling production,
(Xinjiang) Limited sale and distribution
g QALK (31E) BRAR & AE#60,000,0007 FRFMAE - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages PRC USD19,500,000 48.75¢ 4875 Beverage hottling production,
(Beijing) Limited sale and distribution
RETOTESHR)ERAR HE 19,500,000 PRSI E - HERER
COFCO Coca-Cola Huabei PRC RMB78,000,000 58.5 585  Beverage bottling production
Beverages Limited
PEAOALELSHERAR P AE%78,000,0007 SRS E
Beijing Cheng Xiang Foods Co., Ltd  PRC RMB58,211,932 48.75¢ 4875 Wholesale of packaged foods
IREARRBRAT e AR 582119327t HEEAERR

These subsidiaries are accounted for as subsidiaries by
virtue of the Company’s indirect control over them through
a 65% owned subsidiary, which control these subsidiaries.

#

B L B i3 KL A AAFFAR 65%
ZF R AR o
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

39. EBAARMEA R ZFHE

!

(b) BRAEEEXRFERERZIF
2ENBARZFE
TREHIAEE GG EAIEHE
m FFEEHEATRFS -

Place of
incorporation
and principal Proportion of ownership
place of interests and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business by Non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
EMALR FERER T
WEARER TEERHE  WAEERREEZESL  AERFEEREZZERN RitFERES
31/12/2018  31/12/2017  31/12/2018  31/12/2017  31/12/2018  31/12/2017
2018 % 20174 2018 20174 2018 20174
12A31H 12A318  12A31H 12A318  12A31H 12A31R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT  ARETT ARETR ARETE
Coca-Cola Bottlers Hong Kong 35% 35% 147,315 339669 2,017,218 1,869,903

Manufacturing Holdings B
Limited (“CCBMH")

Summarised financial information in respect of CCBL
is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BRI AR 2 TS B2 &
BIENR o NIXFAENH F5E R R
REEARRIEEREANEE

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 £ 2017 4
12831H 12AH31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
(Restated)
(&E5)
CCBL and subsidiaries AR ECRL R B B A F
Non-current assets IEMENVEE 10,241,714 9,887,708
Current assets MENEE 3,146,683 3,260,907
Current liabilities mENE & (5,875,894) (5,041,448)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (886,521) (2,004,919)
Equity attributable to owners of NATEE AELER
the Company 5,814,630 5,342,580
Non-controlling interest eI e e 811,352 759,668
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. EBEARARIMB AR ZFE
COMPANY (Continued) (%&)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) EREEERFERERS 2K
material non-controlling interests (Continued) 2EMB AT ZF1E (&)
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 F 2017 &
12H31H 12 A31 H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(ge=75)
Revenue WA 15,648,051 13,357,995
Expense X (15,067,809) (12,304,821)
Profit for the year F R 580,242 1,053,174
Total comprehensive income FRNEERZLEE
for the year 580,242 1,053,174
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 & 2017
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETIT
(Restated)
(#E=75)
Net cash inflow from operating CEEBEE YIRS
activities MAHFRE 1,278,799 1,446,436
Net cash outflow from WERDEEZRS
investing activities ViiaspeE-C] (1,005,970) (1,465,396)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from BMEESEE RS
financing activities Omit) mAF=E (661,378) 617,910
Net cash (outflow) inflow (Rent) RERAFEE (388,549) 598,950

FEERERAT 229
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O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. EXREMEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank borrowings disclosed in note 28, net of bank
balances and cash and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, share premium
and reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

AREBEEEHENR - URERASE B
EREHFAELE  RANEEE((E
B RBEFERAREHIESRRD
H o BEFREAKEBERBARET

=4

AEBEEARBREERFRE - AP
BIEH A28 TR BR SR 1T & X (2 HUR
RITREBLIRS) RAREIER AR
m (BREBETERA  BRERRE
)

EEERFEHNEARE - ERZE

Bl —207 - BERE/REREAKA
K EZEREABBOER -

RIEMRZ EBLLEREHFINAT -

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

2018 F 2017 &

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREFIT

(Restated)

(&&=751)

Debt (note 28) &7 (B3 28) 1,166,500 1,756,620
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReNMIREEEIER (243,235) (832,063)
Net debt (B ek 923,265 924,557
Equity = 4,218,912 3,956,506
Net debt to equity ratio EGE - CEAL Fadn S 22% 23%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;Z 20184 12 A31 HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 41. €RTH

Categories of financial instruments

SWMITAER

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
20184 2017 4
12A31H 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFIT
(Restated)
(&x&E75))
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BB HEK AR Z
SREE 1,011,462 —
Loans and receivables (including cash B ERGIE (B
and cash equivalents) HekReSEER) - 1,678,277
1,011,462 1,678,277
Financial liabilities SEasE
Amortised cost HSHAAR 4,688,599 4 988,568
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies SREREERERBUR

The Group’s major financial instruments including accounts
receivables, deposits and other receivables, due from related
parties, bank balances and cash, accounts and bills payable,
other payables and accruals, borrowings, and amounts due
to related parties. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include interest rate risk, currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEEXTZSRm I ARERKER
HeRhHEMEWRIE  BEALR
R RITEREES - BHERARE
B HMWEMNRBEREFER &
R REEALHRE - BAZSER
TRAZHBREMERE - BZFD
BTAMRBzERBREMNEZEAR &
¥Rk - FERRIEBESRER -
75 68 40 fe] R0 85 % 2 R\ B 2 BRSR 3051 40
T EEEEEMEEZSAR A
HER K R A TEE R
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most
of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
denominated in RMB. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary assets (mainly bank
deposit) at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

41. €@ T A (&)

TREMEEBERBER (&)

BRI
AEETZNPEAMLE  MAE
BeBRENEKEE ABRRS
AEEBAAREE - RBEHR
AEBEINEHEERBEEZREE
(BREBITHEFOHIIMT

Assets
BE

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 F 2017 &
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(ge=5)
HKD BT 10,457 228,267
usD eI 265 3,049

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group net foreign exchange exposures
and may enter into currency forward contracts, when
necessary, to manage its foreign exchange exposure.

AEBEERINERBR VB BEHRES
ARES B 7 SN [\ SRR - 6 RTRERR AT
E¥EHaN(HLE) - LWEEAES
PE L

2018 2017
20184 2017 &
(Increase)/ (Increase)/
decrease decrease
in profit in profit
after tax after tax
BB BRI FRA 18 A
(3gm),mD> (3hn),/m
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
(Restated)
Cca==))
RMB - USD AREB—FT
Appreciation of RMB by 5% ARBFHES% (10) (115)
Depreciation of RMB by 5% AREEES B 5% 10 115
RMB — HKD AR —ET
Appreciation of RMB by 5% AREAES% (392) (8,560)
Depreciation of RMB by 5% AR B 5% 392 8,560

China Foods Limited
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued) 41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable rate bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank
balances and bank borrowings. The Group aims at keeping
borrowings at variable rates. The Group manages its interest
rate exposures by assessing the potential impact arising from
any interest rate movements based on interest rate level and
outlook.

Total interest income from financial assets that are measured
at amortised cost is as follows:

ERMT A (&)
SREREERBREX ()

Tz

REEAS BT BIRITHE R ST SR
TEFEEAZRSREMN KRR - KX
SEBREREMNEREREBEFNIR
TTRBRRIRTTRRFE R E - AEE
FHENFBMEEFER - ARER
BRF A A K Ko B = AT EE AR B9 (R ]
MEEPHRELNECTETEERN
R o

SRR B 2 S RE R M
@ERIIT

Year ended
31/12/2018
HZE20185F
12H31H
IEFE
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Other income EH A

Financial assets at amortised cost TREEN AT R 2 EMEE 5,023

Total interest income from financial assets that are measured
at amortised cost is as follows:

MR A B2 S A EFBIRA
BRI

Year ended
31/12/2017
HE20174F
12AH31H
LEFE
RMB’000
ARBTIT
(Restated)
(#e=E=5)

Other income E A
Loans and receivables B R GRIE
(including bank balances and cash) (BREBITEHREAS)

11,348

PEEREMRART 201844
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued)

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

41. €@ T A (&)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

TREMREE B RRBGR (&)

Interest rate risk (Continued) FI =z (42)
Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at fair WIER A FEFEIA BT E/E
value through profit or loss: BEFEAX :
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
HZ2018%F HZE2017 F
12A31H 12H31H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
(Restated)
(#E=5)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R ATIER 2
ERBEE 74,835 88,344
Sensitivity analysis BT

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis point (2017: 100 basis points)
increase or decrease in variable-rate bank borrowings are used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. Bank balances
are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the Directors consider
that the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk arising from
variable-rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 would decrease/increase by RMB8,749,000 (2017:
decrease/increase by RMB13,140,000).

China Foods Limited

DI B RE DT TIRIRE A KRS
SR FAT T e B ) R LR T BB E = A
ZATHBENBERRKEESR
TARZFARMAEE - FBRITE
TR IE A0 =R 4> 100 18 £ & (2017 4F -
100 fEIEE) BRAANEREEAS
BENERRESER  FSEEEYH
XA H S - HREF
RAHME KB FERITERZIRE R
EBNXREBRTIITEKR  WEREDIN
TNEIERITHESS -

fisi Fl R £ F+ /71 B& 100 & £ 2f (2017
& 1001EEE) METE EE S REF
Tt NEBMAEE2018F 12831 H
IFFERE R, 1ENARE
8,749,000 7T (2017 £ : /W4 /H#E A
FR¥ 13,140,000 7T) °
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals. Other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Accounts receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spread across diverse geographical areas. The Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on accounts balances

on provision matrix.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are major

state-owned financial institutions in the PRC.

41. €@ T A (/&)

TREMEE B RRBGR (&)

1= EmBR LR E
2018512 A31H  AEERER 5%
FHARGEEITETMAEBABIRL
MRSEERR  KREA MBI
RATEIIEACEREREENKRE
(=0

RSB EERRRERE  AEEEE
BEEZKEN  AREEEREREN
EEEHL - W EREANE b BE 1 45 1 DA TE
RIREN B IEE - BURABE
FEAEBAANMUMBRBERZZER - 1
EREBUBRELENFINRE - A%
EREFEERIERRN (20175 : B
ELERIRR) SR B EHRIR AR
EITRERHS

EERARTERLRE MRS FER
BZEERRER RARRZHTF
ATETERE S REE -

235



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r&

BTSSR MY

236

O
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A31 HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s credit risk grading assessment comprises the
following categories:

41. ¢RI T H (&)
cREREEEERBEE (&)
@fﬂ%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@

AEBEER

Internal credit rating Description

Accounts receivables

Other financial assets

W RS B AR B3 FE T BR X HitemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL not 12-month ECL
default and does not have any credit-impaired
past-due amounts
1 B RZEFHEORRBRRE  BWEE SREERECEE 12@ABREHEL
falE B FRIE TRHAERIEK
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL not 12-month ECL
dates but usually settle after due credit-impaired
date
BimeEs EHFARERIPRZERIETR WAEEREZEZH 12@ARHBERHELX
FERRAER TREAEAER
Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL not
increases in credit risk since initial credit-impaired credit-impaired
recognition through information
developed internally or external
resources
Al &E FRANBERIINGER - EERR HWAEEREZEZH RAEEREZEZH
B VIR HER L B B TREAEAER TREAEAER
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
B8 BEMRKAZEEFEEERE EEERECEHE BEEREZZHE
HEREX HEREX
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
12 5H ENRKZABBABARENABFE KIEEZHE IR 1%

China Foods Limited
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s

financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment:

41. €@ I A (#)
SREREERBREE ()
1= B R RERTH ()

TRFAFMAEEFETRRERIRR

HEzeMEEZEERR :

External Internal 12-month or  Gross carrying
2018 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount
12 A2 H
2018 £ Ktat HNAREAFTER AFBEATR BREHGHEX HERE{E
RMB’000
AREFIT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBERASIRNSREE
Bank balances 25 A N/A 12-month ECL 251,196
IRITHEER TEA 128 A 7557
EEEE
Other receivables N/A N/A (note i) 12-month ECL 32,248
H fth e FRIE THE N A (=D 12 & B 7857
EEBIE
Accounts receivables 23 N/A (note ii) Lifetime ECL (not 307,073
credit-impaired)
FEUER SR NEMA (MF3xi) Z2HEFEHEE
518 (M Am A
ERRE)
Due from related parties N/A N/A (note i) 12-month ECL 429,868
B A LR TiE N A (=D 12 & A 7857
EEBIE

notes: HiaE -

i, For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group i BANEEAREEEENE  AEEE
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has B EH = BREEELE E1]
increased significantly since initial recognition. T TEER LA SR ZSZE N -

Not past due/No
fixed repayment
terms
EER
RMB’000
ARBFor
Other receivables E i fEH B 32,248
Due from related parties oI 429,868
ii.  For accounts receivables, the Group has applied the simplified ii.  BLERERAE « AEEEEE B

approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these
items by using a provision matrix, grouped by ageing.

BRI E O LA FIR
1E R 2 EIRER - KEEEH
BT %S HE < FHEHR
XK (R 5H) -

PEEREMRART 201844
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting

41. €@ T A (&)

TREMEEBERBER (&)

R EZEE

TRAMAREZ EREEFRE

RIFHRHS o TEEE$ETF$‘EEI/,\5&
FERBEMAEESRHAE 2 KRR,

iﬁbfﬁimif’ﬁtﬂ Eﬁﬂ#miérﬁﬁ

B2 B8 B R K B BEE -

TREENERASHERE - 7
SREATE - BIRMBLEARA
EREHIRATIE -

period.

Weighted On demand Total Carrying
average less than undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year 1 to 5 years cash flows 31 December
AEEEE WI12A31H
NELHFE  RENIER 1E54 REEE ZREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2018 12018 12A31 H
Accounts and bills payables R ERFRZE = 606,811 - 606,811 606,811

Financial liabilities included in ~ & A A E(TFER
other payables and accruals Bt EEZEMARE = 2,480,649 - 2,480,649 2,480,649
Due to related parties Kfﬂ@/\tm = 434,639 - 434,639 434,639
Borrowings -6 4.28% 600,520 617,841 1,218,361 1,166,500
4,122,619 617,841 4,740,460 4,688,599

At 31 December 2017 m2017%12A31H
Accounts and bills payables  ERERFRZE - 927,439 3419 930,858 930,858

Financial liabilities included in -~ & A A E(FER
other payables and accruals ~ [EztBEZEREE = 1,886,214 = 1,886,214 1,886,214
Due to related parties REBEANLFHA = 414,876 = 414,876 414,876
Borrowings BR 4.28% 75,09 1,774,854 1,849,950 1,756,620
3,303,625 1,778,273 5,081,398 4,988 568

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

China Foods Limited
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

43.

INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial instruments approximated to their fair values
largely due to the short term maturities of the instruments
or they bearing floating interest rates if they have long term

maturities.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,

other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

42. TR TR A VEE

RBEMFR AEELBIAYET
BEEAATERE  TEERREL
L ] B B 2050 o 3 A B R 8 (L9

FEFREE -

THEERBBZAFERZTAR
BREX S (MIFRESBERIEE)E
RIRH N ZAIRZ SRR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. KRB Z AR R T
COMPANY
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 % 2017
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
(Restated)
(ge=5)
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRG 18 13
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZKE 1,769,560 1,769,560
1,769,578 1,769,573
Current Assets REBEE
Prepayments TR EIR 42,640 243
Due from subsidiaries [ SYEERNCIDNE N 1,482,392 1,745,714
Due from the immediate holding company — B #E#IR A TR A 138 138
Cash and cash equivalents HekFeEBEIRE 6,074 206,366
1,531,244 1,952,461
Current Liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HAbfE SRR ERT A& 4,523 21,468
Due to subsidiaries YN EVNGIE R 116,560 387,667
Tax payable FES IR - 77,463
121,083 486,598
Net Current Assets REBEEZE 1,410,161 1,465,863
Net assets BEFE 3,179,739 3,235,436
Equity =
Issued capital BEITIRA 293,201 293,201
Reserves (e 2,886,538 2,942,235
Total equity REmiRE 3,179,739 3,235,436
PEERERAA
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. KD B Z BB R TR ()
COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves: RABIBEBEEZIAT
Employee
Share  share-based
premium  compensation Contributed Retained

account reserve surplus profits Total
EERTLEE
FRERR

REER ERE BB REEH st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  AREBTL AREBTR ARETT  ARETR

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1R1H
(Restated) (@ EE51)) 30,820 21,239 4,495,338 962,624 5,510,021
Equity-settled share EnfERRELH
option arrangements - (1,017) = = (1,017)
Forfeiture or expiry of B R e 2
share options - (20,222) - 20,222 =
Loss for the year FEEE - - = (100,454) (100,454)
Final 2016 dividend declared  EE % 2016 F R LR S - - - (28,926) (28,926)
Interim 2017 dividend 2017 HAR 2 (B 15)
(Note 15) = - (2,201,007) (236,382) (2,437,389)
At 31 December 2017 Mm2017412A31 8
(Restated) (&&75)) 30,820 - 2,294,331 617,084 2,942,235
Loss for the year FEER = - = 2755 2755
Final 2017 dvidend declared  EE1R 2017 FRZHR S - - - (58,452) (58,452)
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 30,820 - 2,294,331 561,387 2,886,538
44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44, BB mzR2E
The financial statements were approved and authorised for RN 2019F3 A26 HIEES S
issue by the board on 26 March 2019. HEAE RT3 -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements and restated and reclassified as appropriate, is set out

EFEHEHME

AEBBERFVRFEZRENEE
AEEFTEESHEIREEETIEZ
REZEAPHHREK  URBIIREES
O BERTEHR T :

below:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184 20174 20165 20154 20144
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Eal)) (f2E5) (&%) (&E5)
CONTINUING OPERATION BEREEK
REVENUE KA 15,648,051 13357992 9779222 10,032,361 9,833,231
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM TEER/(B8)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 768,822 2258548 580,632 616,592 566,372
Finance costs BAEMA (74,835) (88,344) (21,724) (39,355) (41,435)
Share of profits of assaciates FE(RESE R BIRF 44,168 41,133 63,237 58,455 73,885
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLATEA 738,155 2211337 622,145 635,692 598,822
Income tax expense FriSfi A S (161,790)  (588,788)  (144562)  (177986)  (108,639)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEREER

FROM THE CONTINUING ZEERR

OPERATION 576,365 1,622,549 477,583 457,706 490,183
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS RIEREEK
Profit/(loss) for the year from RIHREEE

discontinued operations FEHT/(B18) = 380,127 166,636 (216,527)  (468,756)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EERAN/ (R 576,365 2,002,676 644,269 241,179 21,427
Attributable to: FE(ET :

Owners of the parent SARHA A 320,858 1,559,647 432,843 44 434 (176,953)

Non-controlling interests RS 255,507 443,029 211,426 196,745 198,380

576,365 2,002,676 644,269 241,179 21,427
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE 8RR

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS R ER
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 13,288,450 13,185,731 14,437,153 14030984 14499113
TOTAL LIABILITIES Fel= N (6,575,014) (6,933,700) (7,892,394) (8,017,949) (7,986,636
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER (2,494,524) (2,295525) (1,679,563) (1,411,310) (1,867,888)

4218912 3956506 4865196 4,601,725 4,644,589
RFHEARERAD
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ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL RESULTS

Tuesday, 26 March 2019

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting: Thursday, 30 May 2019 to Tuesday, 4
June 2019 (both days inclusive)

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final

dividend: Thursday, 13 June 2019 to Friday, 14 June 2019 (both
days inclusive)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Tuesday, 4 June 2019

DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend: NIL

Proposed final dividend: RMB0.034, equivalent to HK3.9 cents, per
share (Payable on or after Friday, 5 July 2019)

China Foods Limited

2EEENG

201943 A26 A (2H1=)
TERHBBFEER
AEERREERRAFASTNE LRE
H)EH - 2019465 A 30 B (EHAr) = 2019
F6 4B (EH ) (HRMABREER)
AETRRERES 2 ABRENER

201946 A 13 A (EHM)ZE 201946 A 14
H(E2HR)(EEMRBEEA)

BRERBAERE

201956 A4 B (EH=)

BE

FRHEARR B ¢ 4

BHRZAHRE : ARBF0.034 7T (48

ER3.9%(L) (R201947 A5H(E&H)
2 RIRAT)
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